
TOWN OF BROOKLINE SELECT BOARD

 Bernard W. Greene – 
Chair

 John VanScoyoc – 
Vice Chair

 Miriam Aschkenasy
 Michael Sandman
 Paul Warren
 Charles Carey – 

Town Administrator

SELECT BOARD CALENDAR
04/24/2024|5:00 PM

WEDNESDAY
HYBRID MEETING

SELECT BOARD HEARING ROOM
6TH FLOOR, BROOKLINE TOWN HALL

OR

Please click this URL to Register & Find the Information to Join as an 
Attendee via your Confirmation Email:

https://brooklinema.zoomgov.com/webinar/register/WN_oIb8iJssTgGzeTrgx
MSsSQ

]

To Join by Phone: [1 646 828 7666
Webinar ID: 160 010 4505

To Watch and Comment:
BrooklineInteractive.org/live

1. ANNOUNCEMENTS/UPDATES
5:00 PM Select Board to announce recent and/or upcoming Events of 

Community Interest.

2. PUBLIC COMMENT
Public Comment period for residents who requested to speak to 
the Board regarding Town issues.
Up to fifteen minutes for public comment on matters not appearing on this 
Calendar shall be scheduled each meeting. Persons wishing to speak may sign up 
in advance beginning on the Friday preceding the meeting or may sign up in 
person at the meeting. Speakers will be taken up in the order they sign up. 
Advance registration is available by calling the Select Board’s office at 617-730-
2202 or by e-mail at kmacgillivray@brooklinema.gov. The full Policy on Public 
Comment is available at http://www.brooklinema.gov/376/Meeting-Policies

3. MISCELLANEOUS
Approval of miscellaneous items, licenses, vouchers, and 
contracts.

Page: 1

https://brooklinema.zoomgov.com/webinar/register/WN_oIb8iJssTgGzeTrgxMSsSQ
https://brooklinema.zoomgov.com/webinar/register/WN_oIb8iJssTgGzeTrgxMSsSQ


SELECT BOARD-CALENDAR -2- 04/24/2024

3.A. Question of approving the following meeting minutes:

April 9, 2024
April 16, 2024

3.B. Question of approving CO 37  with Gilbane Building Company 
in the amount of $9,689.00O 37 for various ATPs related to the 
Driscoll School project

3.C. Question of approving amendment # 34 with William Rawn 
Associates in the amount of $5,000.00 for additional construction 
admin services for $5,000.00

3.D. Question of approving an appropriation transfer request from 
the Police Department in the amount of $28,554.00:

From Administration leased equip $28,554.00
To: Patrol training $8,437
      Patrol supplies $20,117

3.E. Question of approving an appropriation transfer request from 
the Building Department for $19,000
From: personnel accounts
To: Supply accounts

3.F. Question of approving the following CDBG FY2024 Extensions:

Brookline Housing Authority - for Phase 2 of the installation of 
bathroom fans at its High St. Veterans Development $383,703
The Brookline Improvement Coalition (BIC) for Capital 
improvements and fire safety for 154 -156 Boylston Street 
$37,650

3.G
.

Question of accepting scholarships and grants from the 
Brookline Asian American Family Network and the Office of 
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Community Relations in the 
amount of $3,400 from various Brookline Businesses 
Organizations and Individuals:
BAB Korean Bistro, Praise Shadows Art Gallery, Brookline 
Community Foundation, Olive Connection and the Sapoznik 
family, Council of Korean Americans, The Park family, Giles Li, 
Mint Julep

3.H
.

Question of approving the following two (2) requests from the 
Brookline Commission for the Arts:

Page: 2



SELECT BOARD-CALENDAR -3- 04/24/2024

Request from the Brookline Commission for the Arts to extend 
the Poet Laureate term for one year due to Covid interruptions. 
Expires on 4.30.2025

Request to accept a donation from the Puppet Showcase Inc. for 
$20.00 for the Public Arts maintenance fund.

3.I. Question of approving a petition of NStar Electric Company 
d/b/a Eversource Energy for permission to construct, and a 
location for, such a line of conduits
and manholes with the necessary cables therein under the 
following public way(s):

Westbourne Terrace – conduit running northerly from MH3755 
at the intersection
with Beacon Street a distance of about 154 feet to MH9531 and 
southerly from
MH9531 a distance of about 18 feet to Pole 161/2

3.J. Question of approving the petition of Verizon New England, Inc. 
for permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of 
conduits and manholes with the necessary cables therein under 
the following public way(s):

Fisher Avenue – conduit running northeasterly a distance of 38 
feet from existing pole, P.12 on the westerly side of Fisher Avenue 
across the street to 123 Fisher Avenue

3.K
.

Question of approving the application for an alteration of 
licensed premises for an All Alcohol License for Stoked Pizza 
Brookline LLC d/b/a Stoked Pizza at 1632 Beacon Street.  
Expanding its alcohol license to include outdoor dining

3.L. Question of approving the application for an alteration of 
licensed premises for an All Alcohol License for Bartaco 
Brookline LLC d/b/a Bartaco at 1634 Beacon Street.  Expanding 
its alcohol license to include outdoor dining.

3.M
.

Question of approving the application for an alteration of 
licensed premises for an All Alcohol License for DC Associates 
LLC d/b/a Garrison House at 6 Harvard Square.  Expanding its 
alcohol license to include outdoor dining.

3.N. Question of approving the application for an alteration of 
licensed premises for an All Alcohol License for Four S 
Enterprise, Inc d/b/a BAB at 1374 Beacon Street.  Expanding its 

Page: 3



SELECT BOARD-CALENDAR -4- 04/24/2024

alcohol license to include outdoor dining.  Mon-Sun 11:00am -
11:00pm  

Question of approving the application for a change of hours for 
Four S Enterprise, Inc d/b/a BAB at 1374 Beacon Street Current 
Operating Hours Monday – Thursday 11:30AM – 10:00PM, 
Friday – Saturday 11:30AM – 10:30PM , Sunday 11:00AM – 
9:00PM Proposed Operating Hours Monday – Sunday 11:00AM 
- 12:00 AM.

3.O
.

Question of approving the application for a transfer of an All 
Alcoholic Beverages License from Taberna De Haro, Inc. d/b/a 
Taberna De Haro to Weisser, LLC. d/b/a Taberna De Haro at 
999 Beacon Street.  Proposed manager will be Kristina Weiss. 

Question of approving the application for a Common Victualler 
License for Weisser, LLC. d/b/a Taberna De Haro at 999 Beacon 
Street.  Hours of operation will Monday – Saturday 11:00AM – 
10:00PM; Sunday 11:00AM – 10:00PM. The proposed seating is 
48 inside dining seats and 60 outdoor seats.

Question of approving the application for an Alternate Manager, 
Jesse Weiss, for Weisser, LLC. d/b/a Taberna De Haro at 999 
Beacon Street

3.P. Question of approving the application for a Food Vendor License 
Cheryl-Ann’s of Brookline, Inc d/b/a Cheryl-Ann’s at 1010 W. 
Roxbury Pkwy.  Hours of operation will be Monday – 
Wednesday 8:00am – 5:00PM, Thursday – Friday 7:00AM – 
7:00PM. Saturday 7:00AM – 5:00PM. Sunday 8:00AM – 4:00PM

3.Q
.

Question of approving the application of a Common Victualler 
for Keneddy Lavour d/b/a Brother Roast Beef & Pizza at 293 
Cypress Street.  Hours of operation will be Sunday – Saturday 
10:30AM – 10:00PM. Seating will consist of 18 inside seat

3.R. Question of approving the application for a change in D/B/A at 
123 Fisher Ave From Well Balfour Brookline Tenant LLC d/b/a 
Well Tower To 123 Fisher Avenue Tenant LLC. d/b/a The 
Newbury of Brookline.

3.S. Question of approving the application for a change in the 
alternate manager to Jill Cyr as an Assistant Operations 
Manager of NETA located at 160 Washington St. Brookline, MA.

Question of approving the application for a change in the 

Page: 4



SELECT BOARD-CALENDAR -5- 04/24/2024

alternate manager to Sasha Machado as an Assistant Operations 
Manager of NETA located at 160 Washington St. Brookline, MA.

3.T. Question of renewing the Special Outdoor Dining program for 
Prairie Fire, Hamilton, and Punch Bowl.
*Prairie Fire and Punch Bowl contingent upon Transportation 
Board approval

3.U. Question of approving a Temporary Wine and Malt Beverages 
Non-Sales License to Brookline Center for Community Mental 
Health for a Hand in Hand Community engagement event to be 
held on April 25, 2024 from 7:00PM – 9:00PM at 40 Aspinwall 
Ave. 150 people expected to attend

3.V. Question of approving a Temporary Wine and Malt Beverages, 
Non-Sales License, for John Heavey (Brookline High School Hall 
of Fame) to be held on Saturday, April 27, 2024 for Banquet 
1:00PM – 4:00PM at Brookline High School.

4. CALENDAR
Review and potential vote on Calendar Items

5. DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET REVIEW

Review of the FY25 Departmental Budgets for:

Department of Public Works
Water and Sewer

6. NEWBURY SITE TREE EASEMENT

Question of approving and executing an easement between 123 
Fisher Avenue, Owner, LLC, and the Town of Brookline for a 
6,920 sf easement on Fisher Avenue providing for protection and 
maintenance of 6 trees, and to delegate to the Town 
Administrator the ability to execute on the Town's behalf.

7. LANGUAGE ACCESS POLICY

Approval of the Language Access Policy as revised by the Office 
of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Community Relations

8. CDBG ADVISORY COMMITTEE RECOMENDATIONS

Ewana Lindo-Smith, Community Development Administrator, 
will provide an update on the Community Development Block 

Page: 5



SELECT BOARD-CALENDAR -6- 04/24/2024

Grant (CDBG) recommendations as required by HUD as part of 
their Annual Action Plan.

9. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS - INTERVIEWS

The following candidates for appointment/reappointment to 
Boards and Commissions will appear for interview:

Small Business Development

Chris Mutty

10. WARRANT ARTICLES - PUBLIC HEARING

7:30 PM Public Hearing, discussion and possible vote on the following 
Warrant Articles for the May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting:

Article 2 Collective Bargaining (HR)
Article 6 - Unpaid Bills (Select Board)
Article 10 - FY25 Budget (Advisory Committee)
Article 17 - Police Details (Police)

STM2 Article 1 Civil Service

11. BOARDS AND COMMISSIONS - APPOINTMENTS

The following candidates for appointment/reappointment to 
Boards and Commissions:

Small Business Development Committee

Preservation - Associate member to full member

12. TOWN MEETING ARTICLE VOTES

Discussion and possible vote on the following warrant articles for 
the 2024 Annual Town Meeting:

Article 18 Resolution Social Wealth Study Committee ( A Buono)

The Town of Brookline does not discriminate on the basis of disability in admission to, access to, or operation of its programs, 
services, or activities. The Town of Brookline does not discriminate on the basis of disability in its hiring or employment 
practices. This notice is provided as required by Title II of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA) and by Section 504 of the 
Rehabilitation Act of 1973. Questions, complaints, or requests for additional information may be sent to Sarah Kaplan, 
Community Relations Specialist and ADA / Section 504 Coordinator. Persons with disabilities who need either auxiliary aids and 
services for effective communication, written materials in alternative formats, or reasonable modifications in policies and 
procedures in order to access programs and activities of the Town of Brookline are invited to make their needs and preferences 
known to the ADA Coordinator. This notice is available in alternative formats from the ADA Coordinator.

Page: 6



MINUTES

SELECT BOARD |5:00 PM

04/09/2024
HYBRID | 6TH FLOOR HEARING ROOM AND ZOOM REMOTE

Present: Select Board Member, Bernard Greene, Select Board 
Member, John VanScoyoc, Select Board Member, 
Miriam Aschkenasy, Select Board Member, Michael 
Sandman, Select Board Member, Paul Warren (remote)

ANNOUNCEMENTS/UPDATES

Chair Greene announced that the Young Israel synagogue honored Stanley Rabinovitch who passed away 
during covid. Stanley was a supporter of the town and a community advocate.
Board member VanScoyoc attended a service for Eleanor Kaplan who died at 103 and lived an incredibly 
full and rewarding life. Her partner for many years was former Select Board member Sumner Kaplan. An 
extraordinary family.
Please support Team Brookline
Board member Warren thanked the Chair for his quick response related to a hateful graffiti incident at 
the Longwood T stop. 
Board member Aschkenasy addressed a rumor that she is a self-harming Jew and she is not sure where it 
is coming from. These are untrue rumors and she is happy to have a dialog with anyone seeking 
clarification of he views. 

PUBLIC COMMENT

Officer Amy Hall Brookline spoke on the police promotions and announced that Police Officer Megan 
Keaveney was bypassed by the Chief. Officer Keaveney had the second-highest score, and her academic 
score was a perfect 100. She believes the only reason she is not being promoted is because of her 
association with her; she treated Officer Hall fairly and with dignity and now she is paying the price. She 
was bypassed for another white male who scored lower than her. 

MISCELLANEOUS

Question of accepting a gift in the form of a bicycle rack from the Boston Workers Circle.

Approved

3.A.

Page: 7



In Select Board
04/09/2024
Page 2 of 11

Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren 

Question of accepting a grant from the Brookline Community Fund in the amount of $5,000.00.  The 
funds will be used to support Eid, a community event that will commence on June 8th, 2024 on the 
grounds of Town Hall.

   Approved
   Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

Question of accepting a grant from the Brookline Community Fund in the amount of $2,800.00. The 
funds will be used to support a community program called Telling Your Story.
Approved
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

Question of approving Change Order 36 with Gilbane, in the amount of $114,864 for various field changes 
at Driscoll School.
Approved
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

Question of approving amendment number 28 with Jonathan Levy Associates in the amount of $11,374 
for additional vibration monitoring at Driscoll School.
Approved
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

Question of approving amendment 27 with Jonathan Levy Associates in the amount of $90,200 for Geotech 
well inspection at Driscoll School.
Approved
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

Question of approving amendment #5 with Consigili in the amount of $5,328.53 for investigation into 
Old Pierce School masonry.
Approved
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

Question of approving amendment #1 with LeMessurier  in the amount of $10, 800 for mechanical, 
electrical, plumbing (MEP) design services at the High School.
Approved
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

Question of approving a Temporary Wine & Malt Beverages Sales License to Brookline Dining Group 
d/b/a Hamilton for marathon Monday to be held on April 15, 2024 from 9:00AM – 10:00PM at 1366 
Beacon. 400+ people expected to attend
Approved
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

Question of acknowledging the following Dexter Southfield School students for earning placements in 
the 2024 C-SPAN StudentCam video documentary competition:
Troy Basu
Andrew Sloan

3.A.

Page: 8



In Select Board
04/09/2024
Page 3 of 11

Nicholas Dowd
Ryan Kelly
Abigail Matthews 
Emma Yu
Sophie Kravetz
Katie Kirk

Chair Greene read the names of the students and the board offered congratulations to those Dexter 
Southfield students for their achievement.
Approved
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

Question of approving an appropriation transfer from the Department of Public Works in the amount 
of $230,000 (accounts attached)
Approved
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren 

CALENDAR

DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET REVIEW

Review of the Fy25 Departmental Budgets for:

Recreation Department
Interim Director Jeff Nutting noted some increase in wages.  There was a presentation from Justin 
Lawson, General Manager Golf Course, and Business Manager, Jerry Kelly.
Accomplishments:

 Equity Initiative program
 Golf Course Master Plan
 Maintaining operations in a challenging environment

Budget review: 
 General fund
 Rec revolving
 Golf enterprise
 Personnel 

The board inquired about the scholarships, and that was reviewed.
Board member Warren noted the absence of golf scholarships, and the poor gym conditions at 
the Soule facility. 
The board asked about the Larz Anderson rink. The Park and Rec Commission will be reviewing 
the options to best serve the community 

PERSONNEL – RECREATION

3.A.

Page: 9



In Select Board
04/09/2024
Page 4 of 11

Question of appointing Tim Davis to be the Brookline Recreation Director, subject to the approval of 
the Parks & Recreation Commission and passage of all required background checks.

Town Administrator Chas Carey offered his recommendation and reviewed Tim’s qualifications and 
affiliations. He thanked the screening panel and reviewed the hiring process.

The Board acknowledged the great work the department does and the amount of interest in the 
position reflects that. 

On motion it was,

Voted to appoint Tim Davis to be the Brookline Recreation Director, subject to the approval of the 
Parks & Recreation Commission and passage of all required background checks.

Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren 

CHANGE AFFORDABLE HOUSING RESTRICTION

Caritas Communities at 1876 Beacon St.- Change in One Unit’s Area Median Income Limit for Mass 
Housing Grant”.

Emily DeHoog, Senior Housing Planner, reviewed the request. 1876 Beacon Street is a 15-room, single-
occupancy dwelling with shared common spaces. She reviewed the units that are varied in the Area 
Median income levels. These units house formerly homeless and others struggling with housing security. 
MassHousing is requesting one unit be changed from 100% AMI to 80%. 

Chair Greene would like the public to know there are these kinds of housing opportunities for those 
struggling with housing options.

 On motion it was,

 Voted to change One Unit’s Area Median Income Limit for Mass Housing Grant as indicated in the board’s 
packet.

  Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren 

ELECTRICITY AND NATURAL GAS BID SCHEDULE

Question of authorizing the Town Administrator, to have the authority to execute potential multi-
year electricity and natural gas supply contracts with a vendor based on a favorable bid result 
scheduled for April 11, 2024.  Freedom Energy Logistics, our electricity supply consultant, is handling 
the bid and would be making a recommendation to the Town.

Charlie Young, Assistant Town Administrator, reviewed the process for locking in natural gas 
contracts, and in most cases, it is a quick turnaround requiring immediate action to secure the price. 

3.A.

Page: 10



In Select Board
04/09/2024
Page 5 of 11

On motion it was,

Voted to authorize the Town Administrator, to have the authority to execute potential multi-year 
electricity and natural gas supply contracts with a vendor based on a favorable bid result scheduled 
for April 11, 2024.  Freedom Energy Logistics, our electricity supply consultant, is handling the bid 
and would be making a recommendation to the Town.

Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

CHESTNUT HILL STUDY UPDATE

Project update presentation and discussion on the Chestnut Hill Commercial Area Study

Economic Development Director Meredith Mooney made a presentation.
 Incentivize net 
 Review the consultant's scope of work
 Project timeline-goal May 2025 Town Meeting 
 Reviewed Community Advisory Group’s role
 Upcoming community engagement events
 Outreach process

The board recommended expanding the outreach to include seniors and other communities to 
identify their perspectives.

POLICE GENERAL ORDERS POLICIES

Chief Paster will review and request a vote on changes to the Police Department's General Orders to 
reflect the Massachusetts Police Accreditation Commission (MPAC) updated set of standards:
GO 7.2 Evidence, GO 12.2 Information Systems, GO 13.1 Injured Domestic Animals and Wildlife, GO 
16.2 Missing Persons, GO  21.1 Recruitment and Selection of Personnel, GO 23.1 Search and Seizure, 
GO 26.1 Traffic Enforcement, GO 34.3 New Media Relations, GO 34.3 Civilian Complaints process, GO 
48 Bias free policing, GO 50 Duty to report abuse excessive force.

Chief Paster reviewed these are updates to 11 General Orders, with no major overhauls and they 
provided redlined versions that point out the mandated versions from their accrediting body. This 
consists of semantics, grammar, and a few modifications that fold policies and procedures that are 
already in their special orders into the general orders which is a more appropriate place.    

The General Orders are things that are in their manual online, the public can view and they are 
approved first by the PCAC and then by the Select Board. Special Orders are meant to be issued, by 
the Chief, with notification to the board. Most of the requirements are already in practice within the 
Police Department.

The board noted the accompanying memo outlining the changes in detail.

On motion it was,

3.A.

Page: 11



In Select Board
04/09/2024
Page 6 of 11

Voted to approve the changes to the Police Department's General Orders to reflect the 
Massachusetts Police Accreditation Commission's (MPAC) updated set of standards as presented. 

Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

PERSONNEL - POLICE PROMOTIONS

Question of approving the following promotions within the Police Department:

Noah Brothers   Sergeant to Lieutenant
Robert Collins   Sergeant to Lieutenant

Chief paster reviewed the candidate's qualifications.

On motion it was,

Voted to approve the following promotions within the Police Department:

Noah Brothers   Sergeant to Lieutenant
Robert Collins   Sergeant to Lieutenant

 Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET REVIEW CONTINUED

Review of the Fy25 Departmental Budgets for:

Police Department

Accomplishments
 Clearance rates are up for part A crimes (47%)
 Staffing levels improved
 Review of Police Department organization
 Arrests, Field Interviews are up

Key goals for FY25
 Smooth transition away from civil service

Wish list
Would like technology equipment and training opportunities increased
Would like to see increased space and employee parking

The Chair asked about a satellite office maybe in South Brookline; they would be amenable to that.
The Board noted the shift in budget items, notably in supplies, training, and equipment. They appear to 
be funded through salary savings. Is there not enough in the supply accounts to cover these items?

3.A.

Page: 12



In Select Board
04/09/2024
Page 7 of 11

Assistant Town Administrator Charlie Young responded they have been working closely, looking at the 
budget, and they don’t have a good idea of what the liability is year by year, they will get to that point of 
what is an appropriate level. 

WARRANT ARTICLES - PUBLIC HEARING

Public Hearing, discussion and possible vote on the following Warrant Articles for the May 28, 2024 
Annual Town Meeting:

Article 9  Accept Chapter 40, Section 13D of the General Laws, establishing an accrued liabilities 
reserve fund for compensated absences (Deputy Town Administrator and Finance Director)

Correction: This Article held its Public Hearing on March 19, 2024, with a unanimous 5-0 favorable 
Action vote.

Article 13  Amend the Town’s Zoning By-law to reduce the restrictions for Accessory Dwelling Units. 
(Blood/HAB) ADU's

Housing Advisory Board Chair Roger Blood made a presentation on Article 13 which is an initiative to 
make the creation of accessory dwelling units (ADU)by single-family homeowners a bit more user-
friendly. This is probably the first of 2 articles on the subject, one may follow if and after the State 
adopts a similar policy that may preempt local authority. They are seeking to pass an ADU as of right.

 Town meeting approved in 2019 to do ADU in single-family dwelling units; the ads are a 
second smaller subordinated dwelling unit to the main unit, they include cooking facilities and 
bathrooms and sleeping facilities.

 The original article had many restrictive provisions in it. It produced little results in the way of 
creating affordable dwelling units. Which is the intent of this article.

 This article increases as-of-right square footage. And increase special permit maximum square 
footage

 Eliminates special conditions allowing increased space for applicants with a handicapped 
family member needing onsite resident caregiver

 Eliminates the requirements for owner-occupant certification, because the information is 
within the assessing department. Eliminates the 5-year ownership provision

 New provisions addressing non-owner occupants, absentee investors would be required to 
deed restrict their ADU as affordable for at least 15 years.

 Eliminates some exterior appearance requirements 

Roger: the bottom line is that the rent in those owner-occupied ADU’s is not formally regulated, 
because the rent itself tends to be almost entirely something that's below what a profit-seeking 
landlord can get who's in the rental housing business.

Board member VanScoyoc raised concerns should the Town adopt this, and then the State should 
adopt something that departs from what the town adopted. Would the State’s adoption take 
precedence; there is no clear answer to this. The State could have a more favorable version.

3.A.

Page: 13



In Select Board
04/09/2024
Page 8 of 11

Associate Town Counsel Jonathan Simpson added it is important to note we do not know what the 
Governor’s proposal will look like or the impact. Most likely there would be some lead time for a 
community to make adjustments. The State could ultimately overrule what the town does. Most likely 
it may include things you have to allow and not require a special permit, or add excessive 
requirements with the as of right provisions.

Roger added it is a judgment call. The State may be proposing a completely detaching definition of an 
ADU allowing developers to purchase redevelopment for any single-family fully for profit and 
maximizing rents. That would be by right and cities and towns could not restrict anything related to 
owner occupancy.

The board expressed concern with not knowing what the State will present. This is a strategy around 
speculation. There was a concern about unintended consequences that would result in more tear-
downs.
Board member Warren feels this should be part of the community-driven comprehensive plan. 

Public hearing:
Regina Frawley expressed concern about the non-owner-occupied language; in the United States, one 
in 5 homes is investor-owned. Many Brookline residents build on to their homes claiming they need 
more space to house family, in-laws, etc., and without exception, they flip the house within 2 years. 
This is the kind of instability we don’t want in our neighborhoods. We have reached the point where 
the concept of a neighborhood is under attack.

Micheal Rubinstein, TMM 13 noted that ADU’s in Brookline are about .5-1% of the housing stock; it is 
unreasonable to expect over a very long period that there would be any more than 150 ADU’s to be 
built because of this. The deed restriction that has been put in place in this Article for investor, and 
owner-occupants, actually not only affect investor occupants, but it will also potentially affect the 
ability of owner-occupants to be able to finance their homes because of the possibility of lenders who 
do not want to make loans to owner-occupants in an environment that has such a deed restriction.

Fran Perler is conflicted. She supports the concept of a single-family owner having the ability to have 
a granny ADU; but it appears is it very easy to get a special permit for 1200 sf. And that worries her. 
Because investors can do this with a deed restriction it might decrease the housing supply of older 
cheaper single families. She asked about college students renting multiple rooms in a unit. 

  
Article 14  Amend the Town’s Zoning By-law to reduce the setbacks needed for energy-saving devices. 
(ZEAB)

Petitioner Wendy Stahl, Chair of the Zero Emissions Advisory Board (ZEAB) made a presentation of 
the updated version. 

 Getting to Zero Emissions. The State has a legally binding mandate of reaching net zero 
carbon emissions by 2050, and Brookline has committed to 2040.

3.A.

Page: 14



In Select Board
04/09/2024
Page 9 of 11

 Article 14 changes our zoning bylaw to allow for the installation of electrification 
equipment within 2 feet of side and rear lot lines. Electrification equipment is defined as 
any device that's powered by electricity, and that is capable of both heating and cooling or 
vehicular charging. So essentially, this means heat pumps and EV chargers.

 Currently, the Building Commissioner considers mechanical devices, such as heat pump 
condensers to be accessory structures. So, like any other accessory structure, they're not 
permitted to be installed within 6 feet of side or rear lot lines. If someone wants the structure 
closer than 6 feet to their lot line, a special permit is required.

 The navigation of this process is costly, difficult to navigate and time-consuming.
 This article proposes to eliminate the extra cost and extra time for any heat pump or EV 

charger as long as you can maintain 2 feet between the device and the lot line.
 With historic buildings, existing design standards will still apply.

Some exceptions:
 Harvard St. main district
 Special permits
 Rear yards abutting alleys
 Review of exemptions that will not change
 Review of sound-level examples. Ms. Stahl added the main concern she has heard is noise.

Other municipalities have adopted similar policies and there have been no complaints on sound or 
any other issues since their adoption.

The board asked for clarity on the exception for multi-family or large buildings. That definition is 7 or 
more units; they would require a special permit.

Public hearing:  No speakers

On motion it was,

Voted 5-0 favorable action on the revised article which was supported by AC, and the Planning Board 
recommendation.
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

 

DPW TRANSPORTATION & MOBILITY PLAN PROGRAM UPDATE

Commissioner Chute and Environmental Partners Consultants will provide an update on the 
Transportation and Mobility Plan, Pavement Condition Report, Pavement Management Program, 
Prioritization for Capital Work, and associated Town policies. The Select Board may review and take a 
possible vote on guidance for the revision of those plans and policies.

3.A.

Page: 15



In Select Board
04/09/2024
Page 10 of 11

Commissioner Chute made the introductions to discuss the crucial aspect of our community 
infrastructure. Our roadway is inclusive of bicycle and pedestrian accommodations, facilitates 
commerce, and connects neighborhoods to schools, parks, and business districts. They support a 
vibrant and healthy quality of life and ensure the smooth functioning of daily activities. However, 
ensuring that they're safe, in good repair and designed for equitable access and use requires 
considered effort, time, funding, and strategic planning. So this, the transportation and mobility plan, 
is our effort to pull these together from maintenance through to policy, asset management and 
construction. 

Presentation:
 Summary of Town Assets/ roadways, sidewalks and curb ramps
  Transportation and Mobility goals
 Approach to infrastructure improvements
 Upcoming work
 Summary

Transportation & Mobility Plan progresses & incorporates several Town policies & program:
• Complete Streets Policy
• Sidewalk Policy
• Pavement Management Program
• Cost of infrastructure work has increased notably over the past 3-5 years
• Project scopes established in a way that maximizes the use of the Town’s funding to improve the     
overall condition of the Town’s infrastructure in accordance with relevant policies & programs
• DPW revisits the plan annually as costs

Discussion: 
The board noted that the miles of roadway maintained by Brookline have precipitously declined and 
noted the increase in repair costs. 
The board inquired about the backlog of maintenance
The board reviewed the various costs related to maintenance.
The board noted prioritizing which roads are slotted for repair.
The board noted the ADA compliance factor and the community that is disproportionately 
durationally impacted by their ability to use the sidewalks.

Commissioner Chute added these are not book jobs. They require survey, design and analysis to 
determine what components of them need to be completed; it is a process that takes time. 

WARRANT ARTICLES

Discussion and possible vote on the following warrant articles for the 2024 Annual Town Meeting:

Article 16 - Amend 3.14.1 of the General By-Laws to change the number of Commission for Diversity, 
Equity, Inclusion and Community Relations members from 15 to 9 (Select Board)

Board member VanScoyoc noted that the Advisory Committee made the observation it is not 100% 
clear in the language of the original bylaw that the voting members of the DEICR are the members who 
are appointed members by the Select Board, so they made a revision:

3.A.

Page: 16



In Select Board
04/09/2024
Page 11 of 11

The Commission shall consist of fifteen (15) nine (9) residents, who shall be called 
Commissioners, and are the voting members of the Commission.

On motion it was,

Voted to reconsider Article 16.

Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

On motion it was,

Voted 5-0 Favorable Action on Article 16 with the revision recommended by the Advisory Committee.
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman, Paul Warren

There being no further business, the Chair ended the meeting at 9:50 pm.

ATTEST

3.A.

Page: 17



MINUTES

SELECT BOARD

04/16/2024|5:00 PM
ZOOM REMOTE MEETING

Present: Select Board Member, Bernard Greene, Select Board 
Member, John VanScoyoc, Select Board Member, 
Miriam Aschkenasy, Select Board Member, Michael 
Sandman, Select Board Member
Absent: Paul Warren

ANNOUNCEMENTS/UPDATES

Congratulations to Team Brookline for their Boston Marathon accomplishments.
Thank you to the staff for a successful Marathon event.
The National Community survey questions went out via postcard. Please be on the lookout.

PUBLIC COMMENT

Ade spoke on the Brookline Ave Park noting that sometimes the dog park gets closed up and folks bring 
their dogs onto the pay areas where they are not allowed. Please provide proper signage. Congratulations 
to the leaders of the Black N Brown community for promoting the aviation program.

DEPARTMENTAL BUDGET REVIEW

Review of the Fy25 Departmental Budgets for:

Building Department

Health and Human Services

Building budget: Dan Bennett, Building Commissioner made a presentation of their FY25 budget.
Review of divisions and duties

 Public Buildings
 Code enforcement
 Construction renovation CIP

Accomplishments 
 implement CIP plan
 competed the Driscoll School
 advanced the Pierce School design

3.A.

Page: 18



In Select Board
04/16/2024
Page 2 of 4

 proceeded with the Fire Station upgrade project.
 implemented stretch energy code -11 new structures that are fossil fuel free as of January 1, 

2023

Goals 
 continue recruiting efforts and staffing and dept reorganization
 HVAC positions 
 scanning and digitizing 
 looking for strategic preventative maintenance support

wish list
 electrification - fully fund to electrify all town buildings
 document scanning
 provide reports for all town building systems. 
 expand code enforcement division by creating a zoning admin

Review of construction projects.

The board asked about ARPA-funded projects- that was reviewed
The board asked about painting the Senior Center, Dan provided an update
The board asked about the allocation of staff between school and town buildings – 75 schools/25 town

 
Health: Health Director Sigalle Reiss made a presentation

 review of projects implemented. 
 accomplishments Metro Health Collaborative
 completed Brookline Marijuana research study
 Brookline Bounty program 

Major goals 
 community health improvement and health assessment plan
 Narcan program
 review of community surveys
 rodent update

 dept demand from new bylaws and initiatives; new staff and new roles. 
 collaboration with other departments

The board congratulated Sigalle on obtaining significant grants 
The board reviewed the ARPA-funded programs
The board reviewed the new Housing Stability Office and its functions

WARRANT ARTICLES - PUBLIC HEARING

Public Hearing, discussion and possible vote on the following Warrant Articles for the May 28, 2024 
Annual Town Meeting:

3.A.

Page: 19



In Select Board
04/16/2024
Page 3 of 4

Article 8 - Establish a Departmental Revolving Fund for vaccines (Select Board)

Deputy Town Administrator Melissa Goff reviewed the Article to establish a revolving fund for vaccines. 
She reviewed the vaccine program and the reimbursement process from insurance companies. The fund 
would allow the town to purchase the vaccines and expand upon them. All revolving funds are listed in 
the Town’s By-law.

Public hearing: No speakers

On motion it was,

Voted 4-0 Favorable Action on Article 8 as presented
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman 
Absent: Paul Warren 

Article 4 - Spec. Appropriation Close-Out Report/Bond Authorization Rescission (Select Board)

Melissa Goff reviewed this is an annual article providing a listing of accounts that provide the 
Comptroller certainty in closing accounts and viewing which accounts may have a surplus and rescinding 
unused balances of prior bonds. Not much has changed in the last few years. She recommends leaving 
the accounts where they are and a No Action vote.

On motion it was,

Voted 4-0 No Action on Article 4 as presented.
Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman 
Absent: Paul Warren 

SPECIAL TOWN MEETING

Question of calling a Special Town Meeting on Tuesday, May 28, 2024, at 8:00 p.m. at the High 
School Auditorium and Zoom remote meeting to waive the requirements of Sections 2.1.2 through 
2.1.4 of the Town’s By-Laws; to open and close the Warrant; and to insert in the said Warrant the 
following article:

STM 2 - Article 1 Police Civil Service

Melissa Goff reviewed there is a collective bargaining agreement with the Police Union which 
allows the Town to leave Civil Service. The warrant had already closed before the agreement was 
reached, so this requires a Special Town Meeting. She reviewed the required process to add this 
article.

On motion it was,

3.A.

Page: 20



In Select Board
04/16/2024
Page 4 of 4

Voted:  To call a Second Special Town Meeting on Tuesday, May 28, 2024, at 8:00 p.m. at the High 
School Auditorium and via Zoom; to waive the requirements of Sections 2.1.2 through 2.1.4 of the 
Town’s By-Laws; to open and close the Warrant; and to insert in the said Warrant the following 
article:

ARTICLE 1:

To see if the Town will vote to remove all positions in the police department of the Town of Brookline 
from the provisions of the civil service laws, including General Laws, chapter 31, et seq., and the 
rules and regulations relating to the same, by revoking the Town’s acceptance of the provisions of 
Chapter 267 of the Acts of 1894, voted under the Third Article of the Warrant for the Town Meeting 
held on May 29, 1894; or act on anything relative thereto.

VOTED: To execute the Warrant for the May 28, 2024 Second Special Town Meeting.

Aye: Bernard Greene, John VanScoyoc, Miriam Aschkenasy, Michael Sandman 
  Absent: Paul Warren 

There being no further business, the Chair ended the meeting at 6:15 pm.

ATTEST

3.A.

Page: 21



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48

helen Charlupski

4/11/2024

3.B.

Page: 22



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 23



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 24



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 25



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 26



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 27



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 28



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 29



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 30



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 31



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 32



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 33



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 34



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 35



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 36



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 37



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 38



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 39



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 40



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 41



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 42



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 43



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 44



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 45



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 46



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 47



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 48



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 49



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 50



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 51



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 52



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 53



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 54



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 55



DocuSign Envelope ID: 8066D0F1-BF71-4252-8D32-4739686BDC48 3.B.

Page: 56



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4D328C15-2BCD-47A9-8B7D-7E584FA061F1

4/11/2024

Helen Charlupski

3.C.

Page: 57



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4D328C15-2BCD-47A9-8B7D-7E584FA061F1 3.C.

Page: 58



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4D328C15-2BCD-47A9-8B7D-7E584FA061F1 3.C.

Page: 59



DocuSign Envelope ID: 4D328C15-2BCD-47A9-8B7D-7E584FA061F1 3.C.

Page: 60



3.D.

Page: 61



3.D.

Page: 62



3.E.

Page: 63



3.E.

Page: 64



Town of Brookline 
Massachusetts 

 
 
 

 
 

  
  
  
 

   To: Brookline Select Board 
From: Ewana Lindo-Smith, CD Administrator 

Re:  FY 2023 CDBG – Contract Extensions 

Date: April 23, 2024 
 
Requested vote:  
 
Approve and authorize the Chair or designee to execute contract extensions between the Town of Brookline and 
the above listed Sub-recipients: BHA and  BIC (BCDC). 
 
We ask the Board to approve and authorize the Chair or designee to execute FY 2023 contract extension with the 
following CDBG Sub-recipients: 
 

A.  The Brookline Housing Authority (BHA) : 
  CDBG funds are to be used for Phase 2 of the installation of bathroom fans at its High St. Veterans 
Development.  The project has its design and bidding approval, is out to bid and an award to a general 
contractor could be made by the end of October 2023.  The BHA anticipates work to be completed by the 
end of June  30, 2024 if there are no construction delays. 
Budget: 1807G023-6C0057 and 1807G021-6C0057.   Amount:  $ 383,703. 
 

B. The Brookline Improvement Coalition (BIC) : 
CDBG funds will be used for Capital improvements and fire safety for 154 -156 Boylston Street. The 
funding will be used to hard wire the fire and carbon monoxide alarms at 154-156 Boylston property and 
to implement upgrades to high efficiency boilers, new water efficient toilets aerators.  
 Budget: 1851G023-6C0054 and 1851G021-6C0054.  Amount: $ 37,650.00 
 

 
 

 
 
Cc:  Michelle Tejeda 
 
  

 
 
 
 

   

 Department of Planning and 
Community Development 

 

Town Hall, 3rd Floor 
333 Washington Street 
Brookline, MA 02445 

(617) 730-2130  Fax (617) 730-2442 
kbrewton@brooklinema.gov 

 

Kara Brewton 
Director 

 
 
 

3.F.

Page: 65



Extension of Contract 
 

Between 
 

The Town of Brookline 
 

and 
 

The Brookline Housing Authority 
 
WHEREAS, an Agreement for $383,703  Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) funds was entered 
into between the Town of Brookline (the Town) and the Brookline Housing Authority (the Recipient) 
(together, the "Parties"), for the FY 2023 Resident Capital Projects (the Project) on November 29, 2022, 
charged to codes 1807G023-6C0057; and 1807G021-6C0057. 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties desire additional time beyond March 31, 2024 contract term to complete the 
Project; 
 
THEREFORE, the Parties hereby agree to extend the Agreement until June 30, 2024.    
 
All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 
 
 
Executed on this _____ day of April 23, 2024.   
 
 
TOWN OF BROOKLINE               RECIPIENT 
 
Select Board                         Brookline Housing Authority 
 
 
By: _________________________      By: ____________________________ 
 
Chair or designee 
                          Title: ___________________________ 
 
 
 
Comptroller: 
 
  
 
_________________________ 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
 
Town Counsel 
 

 

3.F.

Page: 66



S:\Commforum\Community Development\FY20231\Contracts\FY_2023_BIC_Capital_Projects–154-156_Boylston 

Extension of a Developer Agreement 

Between 

The Town of Brookline 

and 

The Brookline Improvement Coalition(BCDC) 

 
 

WHEREAS, the Town of Brookline and the Brookline Improvement Coalition (the PARTIES) entered 

into a DEVELOPER AGREEMENT on November 29, 2022 for the CDBG FY 2023 154-156 Boylston 

Street  Capital Improvements Project  Agreement # CD1851-23  (PROJECT - 1851G023-6C0054 in the 

amount of $27,650.00 and 1851G021—6C0054 in the amount of  $ 10,000.00 for a Total of $ 37,650.00  

 

WHEREAS, additional time beyond the March 31, 2024 contract term is needed to complete the Project;  

 

THEREFORE, the PARTIES agree to extend the term of the AGREEMENT to June 30, 2024.    

 

All other terms and conditions of the Agreement remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

 

Executed this _______ day of April 23, 2024 

 

 
TOWN OF BROOKLINE               RECIPIENT 
 
Select Board                         Brookline Improvement Coalition  
 
 
By: _________________________      By: ____________________________ 
 
Chair or designee 
                          Title: ___________________________ 
 
 
 
Comptroller: 
  
 
_________________________ 
 
 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
 
__________________________ 
Town Counsel 

  

3.F.

Page: 67



TOWN OF 

BROOKLINE    

 

  
OFFICE OF DIVERSITY, EQUITY, 

INCLUSION AND COMMUNITY 

RELATIONS 
 

11 Pierce Street, Brookline, Massachusetts, 

02445 

Telephone: (617) 730-2300      Facsimile: (617) 

730-229

 April 15, 2024 

 

Memo: Approval of Sponsorship Funds  

 

To: Brookline Select Board 

Attn: Bernard Greene - Chair Person of the Brookline Select Board              

    

Chairperson Greene, 

 

The Brookline Asian American Family Network and the Office of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Community 

Relations seeks the Select Board’s authorization to accept $3,400.00 in Sponsorships and Grants from various 

Brookline Businesses, Organizations, and Individuals:  

 

BAB Korean Bistro - $300.00 

Praise Shadows Art Gallery  - $300.00 

Brookline Community Foundation Grant - $1,300 

Olive Connection and The Sapoznik Family- 

$300.00 

Council of Korean Americans - $300.00 

The Park Family - $300.00 

Giles Li - $300.00 

Mint Julep - $300.00

These sponsorship funds are to be appropriated into account 5200SH07 and the full amount will be used towards 

Awards and Supplies for BAAFN’s 9th Annual Award Ceremony of the Asian American Student Essay Contest 

to be held on Wednesday May 15th at the Coolidge Corner Theatre.  

 

Thank you for considering this request. 

            

Sincerely, 

Caitlin Starr, MPH, CDE 

Office of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Community Relations - Town of Brookline 

Assistant Director  

Office: 617-730-2345 

Cell: 617-308-8750 

3.G.

Page: 68



3.H.

Page: 69



3.H.

Page: 70



3.H.

Page: 71



3.H.

Page: 72



3.H.

Page: 73



3.H.

Page: 74



3.H.

Page: 75



3.H.

Page: 76



3.I.

Page: 77



 

 

PETITION OF NSTAR ELECTRIC COMPANY D/B/A EVERSOURCE ENERGY 

FOR LOCATION FOR CONDUITS AND MANHOLES 
 

To the SELECT BOARD of the Town of     Brookline              , Massachusetts: 

 
 Respectfully represents NSTAR ELECTRIC COMPANY D/B/A EVERSOURCE ENERGY, a company 

incorporated for the transmission of electricity for lighting, heating or power, that it desires to construct a line for 

such transmission under the public way or ways hereinafter specified. 

 

 WHEREFORE, your petitioner prays that, after due notice and hearing as provided by law, the Board 

may by Order grant to your petitioner permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits and 

manholes with the necessary wires and cables therein, said conduits and manholes to be located, substantially as 

shown on the plan made by T.Thibault dated February 5, 2024 and filed herewith, under the following public 

way or ways of said Town: 

 

WESTBOURNE TERRACE –  

- Northeasterly from MH3755, at Beacon Street, to MH9531, install approximately 154 feet of 

conduit. 

 

- Southwesterly from MH9531 to Pole 161/2, install approximately 18 feet of conduit.  

 

Work Order #15962266 
 

 NSTAR ELECTRIC COMPANY D/B/A EVERSOURCE ENERGY 

 

 By: Kelly-Ann Correia  

 Kelly-Ann Correia, Supervisor 

 Rights and Permits 

  

26th   day of February, 2024          

Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 

Received and filed_____________________________ 

3.I.

Page: 78



3.I.

Page: 79



Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 
Project Information for Grant of Location Request 

Utility Company   

Work Order Number   Petition Date   

Street Extents 

      

      

Project Description   

  

Estimated Start Date   Expected Duration   

Days and Hours of Work     

Noise By-Law Waiver (required for work between 7PM-7AM) yes/no 

Road Closures yes/no If yes, describe the location, timing, duration, and whether abutters will have access 

during road closures.     

    

Parking Restrictions yes/no If yes, describe the location and estimated number of spaces affected and the timing 

and duration of parking restrictions.     

    

Resident Access Restrictions yes/no If yes, describe the residents affected, and the timing and duration of access 

restrictions.     

    

Service Interruptions yes/no If yes, describe the customers affected, and the timing and duration of service 

interruptions.     

    

Service Replacements yes/no If yes, describe the customers affected, and whether the service replacements are 

underground or overhead.     

    

Gas leak(s) within the project limits or abutting streets yes/no If yes, describe the number, location and grade of 

gas leak(s).     

    

EVERSOURCE ELECTRIC

15962266 02/23/2024

WESTBOURNE TERRACE BEACON STREET to #15

INSTALL 2-5" PVC EB IN CONC FROM MH3755 TO MH9531, 154'; 

2-4" PVC EB IN CONC FROM MH9531 TO POLE 161/2, 18'

03/11/2024 8 WORKING DAYS

MONDAY - FRIDAY; 7:00AM to 3:00PM

WILL TAKE 4 NON-METERED PARKINGS SPACES PER DAY

N/A

3.I.

Page: 80



3.I.

Page: 81



ORDER FOR LOCATION FOR CONDUITS AND MANHOLES 
 

Town of Brookline, Massachusetts, April 23, 2024 
 

WHEREAS, NStar Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy has petitioned for permission to construct a line for the transmission of electricity 
for lighting, heating or power under the public way or ways of the Town hereinafter specified, and notice has been given and a hearing held on said petition 
as provided by law. 

It is ORDERED that NStar Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy be and hereby is granted permission to construct, and a location for, 
such a line of conduits and manholes with the necessary wires and cables therein under the following public way or ways of said Town: 

Westbourne Terrace – conduit running northerly from MH3755 at the intersection with Beacon Street a distance of about 154 feet to 
MH9531 and southerly from MH9531 a distance of about 18 feet to Pole 161/2 W.O.# 15962266 

 
Substantially as shown on a plan made by T. Thibault dated February 5, 2024 on file with said petition. 

All construction work under this Order shall be in accordance with the following conditions: 

1. The conduits and manholes shall be of such material and construction and all work done in such manner as to be satisfactory to the Select Board 
or to such officers as it may appoint to the supervision of the work, and a plan showing the location of conduits constructed shall be filed with the 
Town when the work is completed. 

2. In every underground main line conduit constructed by said Company hereunder, said Company shall install one separate conduit for the exclusive 
use of the Town in accordance with technical specifications for such separate conduit developed by the Town.  Said Company shall maintain said 
separate Town conduit free of charge. 

3. Said Company shall indemnify and save the Town harmless against all damages, costs and expense whatsoever to which the Town may be 
subjected in consequence of the acts or neglect of said Company, its agents or servants, or in any manner arising from the rights and privileges 
granted it by the Town. 

4. In addition, said Company shall, before a public way is disturbed for the laying of its wire or conduits, execute its bond in a penal sum of Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) (reference being made to the bond already on file with said Town) conditioned for the faithful performance of its duties 
under this permit. 

5. Said Company shall comply with the requirements of existing by-laws, as well as regulations of the Town and requirements of by-laws and 
regulations of the Town as may hereafter be adopted by the Town governing the construction, installation, maintenance and use of conduits and 
wires, so far as the same are not inconsistent with the laws of the Commonwealth. 

6. The grant-of-location hereunder is for the sole use and occupation of said Company hereunder.  No other company or entity may utilize said grant-
of-location at any time.  Any other company or entity must apply to the Select Board, in writing, for a grant-of-location, pursuant to Town regulations 
and by-laws. 

 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
We hereby certify that the foregoing Order was adopted after due notice and a public hearing as prescribed by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the 

General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, to wit: - after written notice of the time and place of the hearing mailed at least 
seven days prior to the date of the hearing by the Select Board to all owners of real estate abutting upon that part of the way or ways upon, along or across 
which the line is to be constructed under said Order, as determined by the last preceding assessment for taxation, and a public hearing held on April 17, 
2024, at the Town Hall in said Town. 
 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
I hereby certify that the foregoing are true copies of the Order of the Select Board of the Town of Brookline Massachusetts, duly adopted on April 

23, 2024, and recorded with the records of location Orders of said Town, Book 2024 , Page  , and of the certificate of 
notice of hearing thereon required by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, as the 
same appear of record. 
 
 

Attest:   
Clerk of the Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 

3.I.

Page: 82



ORDER FOR LOCATION FOR CONDUITS AND MANHOLES 
 

Town of Brookline, Massachusetts, April 23, 2024 
 

WHEREAS, NStar Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy has petitioned for permission to construct a line for the transmission of electricity 
for lighting, heating or power under the public way or ways of the Town hereinafter specified, and notice has been given and a hearing held on said petition 
as provided by law. 

It is ORDERED that NStar Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy be and hereby is granted permission to construct, and a location for, 
such a line of conduits and manholes with the necessary wires and cables therein under the following public way or ways of said Town: 

Westbourne Terrace – conduit running northerly from MH3755 at the intersection with Beacon Street a distance of about 154 feet to 
MH9531 and southerly from MH9531 a distance of about 18 feet to Pole 161/2 W.O.# 15962266 

 
Substantially as shown on a plan made by T. Thibault dated February 5, 2024 on file with said petition. 

All construction work under this Order shall be in accordance with the following conditions: 

1. The conduits and manholes shall be of such material and construction and all work done in such manner as to be satisfactory to the Select Board 
or to such officers as it may appoint to the supervision of the work, and a plan showing the location of conduits constructed shall be filed with the 
Town when the work is completed. 

2. In every underground main line conduit constructed by said Company hereunder, said Company shall install one separate conduit for the exclusive 
use of the Town in accordance with technical specifications for such separate conduit developed by the Town.  Said Company shall maintain said 
separate Town conduit free of charge. 

3. Said Company shall indemnify and save the Town harmless against all damages, costs and expense whatsoever to which the Town may be 
subjected in consequence of the acts or neglect of said Company, its agents or servants, or in any manner arising from the rights and privileges 
granted it by the Town. 

4. In addition, said Company shall, before a public way is disturbed for the laying of its wire or conduits, execute its bond in a penal sum of Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) (reference being made to the bond already on file with said Town) conditioned for the faithful performance of its duties 
under this permit. 

5. Said Company shall comply with the requirements of existing by-laws, as well as regulations of the Town and requirements of by-laws and 
regulations of the Town as may hereafter be adopted by the Town governing the construction, installation, maintenance and use of conduits and 
wires, so far as the same are not inconsistent with the laws of the Commonwealth. 

6. The grant-of-location hereunder is for the sole use and occupation of said Company hereunder.  No other company or entity may utilize said grant-
of-location at any time.  Any other company or entity must apply to the Select Board, in writing, for a grant-of-location, pursuant to Town regulations 
and by-laws. 

 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
We hereby certify that the foregoing Order was adopted after due notice and a public hearing as prescribed by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the 

General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, to wit: - after written notice of the time and place of the hearing mailed at least 
seven days prior to the date of the hearing by the Select Board to all owners of real estate abutting upon that part of the way or ways upon, along or across 
which the line is to be constructed under said Order, as determined by the last preceding assessment for taxation, and a public hearing held on April 17, 
2024, at the Town Hall in said Town. 
 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
I hereby certify that the foregoing are true copies of the Order of the Select Board of the Town of Brookline Massachusetts, duly adopted on April 

23, 2024, and recorded with the records of location Orders of said Town, Book 2024 , Page  , and of the certificate of 
notice of hearing thereon required by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, as the 
same appear of record. 
 
 

Attest:   
Clerk of the Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 

3.I.

Page: 83



ORDER FOR LOCATION FOR CONDUITS AND MANHOLES 
 

Town of Brookline, Massachusetts, April 23, 2024 
 

WHEREAS, NStar Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy has petitioned for permission to construct a line for the transmission of electricity 
for lighting, heating or power under the public way or ways of the Town hereinafter specified, and notice has been given and a hearing held on said petition 
as provided by law. 

It is ORDERED that NStar Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy be and hereby is granted permission to construct, and a location for, 
such a line of conduits and manholes with the necessary wires and cables therein under the following public way or ways of said Town: 

Westbourne Terrace – conduit running northerly from MH3755 at the intersection with Beacon Street a distance of about 154 feet to 
MH9531 and southerly from MH9531 a distance of about 18 feet to Pole 161/2 W.O.# 15962266 

 
Substantially as shown on a plan made by T. Thibault dated February 5, 2024 on file with said petition. 

All construction work under this Order shall be in accordance with the following conditions: 

1. The conduits and manholes shall be of such material and construction and all work done in such manner as to be satisfactory to the Select Board 
or to such officers as it may appoint to the supervision of the work, and a plan showing the location of conduits constructed shall be filed with the 
Town when the work is completed. 

2. In every underground main line conduit constructed by said Company hereunder, said Company shall install one separate conduit for the exclusive 
use of the Town in accordance with technical specifications for such separate conduit developed by the Town.  Said Company shall maintain said 
separate Town conduit free of charge. 

3. Said Company shall indemnify and save the Town harmless against all damages, costs and expense whatsoever to which the Town may be 
subjected in consequence of the acts or neglect of said Company, its agents or servants, or in any manner arising from the rights and privileges 
granted it by the Town. 

4. In addition, said Company shall, before a public way is disturbed for the laying of its wire or conduits, execute its bond in a penal sum of Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) (reference being made to the bond already on file with said Town) conditioned for the faithful performance of its duties 
under this permit. 

5. Said Company shall comply with the requirements of existing by-laws, as well as regulations of the Town and requirements of by-laws and 
regulations of the Town as may hereafter be adopted by the Town governing the construction, installation, maintenance and use of conduits and 
wires, so far as the same are not inconsistent with the laws of the Commonwealth. 

6. The grant-of-location hereunder is for the sole use and occupation of said Company hereunder.  No other company or entity may utilize said grant-
of-location at any time.  Any other company or entity must apply to the Select Board, in writing, for a grant-of-location, pursuant to Town regulations 
and by-laws. 

 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
We hereby certify that the foregoing Order was adopted after due notice and a public hearing as prescribed by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the 

General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, to wit: - after written notice of the time and place of the hearing mailed at least 
seven days prior to the date of the hearing by the Select Board to all owners of real estate abutting upon that part of the way or ways upon, along or across 
which the line is to be constructed under said Order, as determined by the last preceding assessment for taxation, and a public hearing held on April 17, 
2024, at the Town Hall in said Town. 
 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
I hereby certify that the foregoing are true copies of the Order of the Select Board of the Town of Brookline Massachusetts, duly adopted on April 

23, 2024, and recorded with the records of location Orders of said Town, Book 2024 , Page  , and of the certificate of 
notice of hearing thereon required by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, as the 
same appear of record. 
 
 

Attest:   
Clerk of the Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 

3.I.

Page: 84



ORDER FOR LOCATION FOR CONDUITS AND MANHOLES 
 

Town of Brookline, Massachusetts, April 23, 2024 
 

WHEREAS, NStar Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy has petitioned for permission to construct a line for the transmission of electricity 
for lighting, heating or power under the public way or ways of the Town hereinafter specified, and notice has been given and a hearing held on said petition 
as provided by law. 

It is ORDERED that NStar Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy be and hereby is granted permission to construct, and a location for, 
such a line of conduits and manholes with the necessary wires and cables therein under the following public way or ways of said Town: 

Westbourne Terrace – conduit running northerly from MH3755 at the intersection with Beacon Street a distance of about 154 feet to 
MH9531 and southerly from MH9531 a distance of about 18 feet to Pole 161/2 W.O.# 15962266 

 
Substantially as shown on a plan made by T. Thibault dated February 5, 2024 on file with said petition. 

All construction work under this Order shall be in accordance with the following conditions: 

1. The conduits and manholes shall be of such material and construction and all work done in such manner as to be satisfactory to the Select Board 
or to such officers as it may appoint to the supervision of the work, and a plan showing the location of conduits constructed shall be filed with the 
Town when the work is completed. 

2. In every underground main line conduit constructed by said Company hereunder, said Company shall install one separate conduit for the exclusive 
use of the Town in accordance with technical specifications for such separate conduit developed by the Town.  Said Company shall maintain said 
separate Town conduit free of charge. 

3. Said Company shall indemnify and save the Town harmless against all damages, costs and expense whatsoever to which the Town may be 
subjected in consequence of the acts or neglect of said Company, its agents or servants, or in any manner arising from the rights and privileges 
granted it by the Town. 

4. In addition, said Company shall, before a public way is disturbed for the laying of its wire or conduits, execute its bond in a penal sum of Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) (reference being made to the bond already on file with said Town) conditioned for the faithful performance of its duties 
under this permit. 

5. Said Company shall comply with the requirements of existing by-laws, as well as regulations of the Town and requirements of by-laws and 
regulations of the Town as may hereafter be adopted by the Town governing the construction, installation, maintenance and use of conduits and 
wires, so far as the same are not inconsistent with the laws of the Commonwealth. 

6. The grant-of-location hereunder is for the sole use and occupation of said Company hereunder.  No other company or entity may utilize said grant-
of-location at any time.  Any other company or entity must apply to the Select Board, in writing, for a grant-of-location, pursuant to Town regulations 
and by-laws. 

 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
We hereby certify that the foregoing Order was adopted after due notice and a public hearing as prescribed by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the 

General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, to wit: - after written notice of the time and place of the hearing mailed at least 
seven days prior to the date of the hearing by the Select Board to all owners of real estate abutting upon that part of the way or ways upon, along or across 
which the line is to be constructed under said Order, as determined by the last preceding assessment for taxation, and a public hearing held on April 17, 
2024, at the Town Hall in said Town. 
 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
I hereby certify that the foregoing are true copies of the Order of the Select Board of the Town of Brookline Massachusetts, duly adopted on April 

23, 2024, and recorded with the records of location Orders of said Town, Book 2024 , Page  , and of the certificate of 
notice of hearing thereon required by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, as the 
same appear of record. 
 
 

Attest:   
Clerk of the Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 

3.I.

Page: 85



333 Washington S t ree t    Brook l ine ,  Massachuse t t s  02445-6863 
Te lephone:  (617)730-2156      Facsimi le :  (617)713-3727 

www.brook l inema.gov  

 
 

T O W N  o f  B R O O K L I N E 
Massachusetts 

 

Department of Public Works 
April 5, 2024 

 
             

Erin Chute 
Commissioner 

 
 
1614 BEACON STREET CONDOMINIUM, 
C/O ROMNEY LADERBERG,1614 BEACON ST #2 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 
 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
 
Attached you will find a notice of a public hearing to be held on the petition of NStar Electric 
Company d/b/a Eversource Energy (Eversource) to install underground conduit in Westbourne 
Terrace near your property. 
 
Eversource has requested the location to provide electric service to 1618 Beacon Street.  
Eversource is proposing to run new conduit in Westbourne Terrace northerly from MH3755 at the 
intersection with Beacon Street a distance of about 154 feet to MH9531 and southerly from 
MH9531 a distance of about 18 feet to Pole 161/2. 
 
If you have no objection to the granting of this location, it is not necessary for you to attend the 
hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this hearing, you may contact Karen Hersey in the 
Engineering/Transportation Division at 617-264-6464. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Erin Chute 
Commissioner of Public Works 
 
 
 
Cc: Town Meeting Members Precinct 11 

 

3.I.

Page: 86



 TOWN OF BROOKLINE 
  
 
 PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
In conformity with the requirements of Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws 
(Ter. Ed.) you are hereby notified that a public hearing will be held in Room 111 of the 
Town Hall, 333 Washington Street, Brookline, with remote participation via Zoom on April 
17, 2024 at approximately 10:00 AM upon the petition of NStar Electric Company d/b/a 
Eversource Energy for permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits 
and manholes with the necessary cables therein under the following public way(s): 
 
 
Westbourne Terrace – conduit running northerly from MH3755 at the intersection 
with Beacon Street a distance of about 154 feet to MH9531 and southerly from 
MH9531 a distance of about 18 feet to Pole 161/2 
 
Registration information is provided at www.brooklinema.gov/calendar under the April 17, 
2024 Select Board licensing hearing details.  After registering, you will receive a 
confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar. 
 

 
SELECT BOARD 

 
By:  Charles Carey 
Town Administrator 
 
 

 NStar Electric Company d/b/a  
 Eversource Energy  
 1165 Massachusetts Avenue 
 Dorchester, MA 02125 
 Attn: Kelly-Ann Correia 
       
  
 Department of Public Works:   

 Engineering Division    
 Highway Division 

3.I.

Page: 87



��������� ��	
����������
���������

������������� ������������������������������ ��������������� ����� �!"#�$�"	
�� ����� �!"#$�%  �� & '"�( #��''!) ���*�+�,��-��.���
���,+���
��.�	
��
��.���,+��������,��.�������
��/��0�+�.�*��
���,+���
�$����,�1/�$2��+�+3+��4�.����	
����������
��,+����
��*�+�,�)�
���������
�+���
�)+
��
��	+��+
����)��5����������,�����)�*�
*��
�
0��.�6+�������1�5����������,�����2)��.������+3�����)�����.��+**7�+*�����.��/�$��+�+�+
��/�$��+�+�����7*����7�
��.���3��.����	
)��
*�7��
0��.���,������6+����������+
��7�������7*.��+�+4�.���+����*+���
�����
��
��������������
*���
��4�8���*���������+�*����
���,+���
����+���*�
�+*���.����	
����������
�����������"���*�4

3.I.

Page: 88



1614 BEACON STREET CONDOMINIUM, 
C/O ROMNEY LADERBERG, 
1614 BEACON ST #2 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  1616 BEACON ST LLC, 
23 ST MARYS CT 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  1618 BEACON STREET DEVELOPMENT 
LLC, 
661 TREMONT ST 
BOSTON, MA   02118‐ 

TERRACE COURT CONDO TRUST, 
C/O LUNDGREN MGMT GROUP INC, 
121 CAPTAINS ROW 
CHELSEA, MA   02150 

  TOWN OF BROOKLINE, 
C/O DRISCOLL SCHOOL & 
PLAYGROUND, 
333 WASHINGTON ST 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  WASHINGTON ON THE SQUARE 
CONDO, 
C/O NORDIC PROPERTIES, 
15 THIRD AVE 
BURLINGTON, MA   01803 

DAVID LOWE 
177 MASON TER 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  SHANNA GIORA‐GORFAJN 
66 WINCHESTER ST Unit 101 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  DAVID LESCOHIER 
50 WINCHESTER ST Unit 103 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

MARTHA GRAY 
113 SUMMIT AVE 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  JOSHUA BLOUWOLFF 
63 SUMMIT AVE Unit 1 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  JENNIFER GOLDSMITH 
148 JORDAN RD 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

SHIRA FISCHER 
76 SUMMIT AVE 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  REBECCA MAUTNER 
12 YORK TER Unit 1 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  ZSUZSANNA KALDY 
36 SUMMIT AVE Unit 3 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

JONATHAN GOLDEN 
1450 BEACON ST Unit 301 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  ANNE WEAVER 
87 MASON TER Unit 2 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  LISA SHATZ 
252 SUMMIT AVE 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

KENNETH LEWIS 
232 SUMMIT AVE Unit W103 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  LEONARD WHOLEY 
119 LANCASTER TER 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

  DAVID POLLAK 
112 LANCASTER TER 
BROOKLINE, MA   02446 

         

         

         

3.I.

Page: 89



 TOWN OF BROOKLINE 
  
 
 PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
In conformity with the requirements of Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws 
(Ter. Ed.) you are hereby notified that a public hearing will be held in Room 111 of the 
Town Hall, 333 Washington Street, Brookline, with remote participation via Zoom on April 
17, 2024 at approximately 10:00 AM upon the petition of NStar Electric Company d/b/a 
Eversource Energy for permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits 
and manholes with the necessary cables therein under the following public way(s): 
 
 
Westbourne Terrace – conduit running northerly from MH3755 at the intersection 
with Beacon Street a distance of about 154 feet to MH9531 and southerly from 
MH9531 a distance of about 18 feet to Pole 161/2 
 
Registration information is provided at www.brooklinema.gov/calendar under the April 17, 
2024 Select Board licensing hearing details.  After registering, you will receive a 
confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar. 
 

 
SELECT BOARD 

 
By:  Charles Carey 
Town Administrator 
 
 

 NStar Electric Company d/b/a  
 Eversource Energy  
 1165 Massachusetts Avenue 
 Dorchester, MA 02125 
 Attn: Kelly-Ann Correia 
       
  
 Department of Public Works:   

 Engineering Division    
 Highway Division 

3.I.

Page: 90



3.J.

Page: 91



   
 

 
PETITION FOR CONDUIT LOCATION 

   
 
To the Select Board                                       
 
in BROOKLINE, Massachusetts 
 

VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC. request permission to lay and maintain 
underground conduits, with the wires and cables to be placed therein, under the surface of 
the following public way or ways: 
 
Fisher Avenue: 

Place one new four-inch (4”) conduit ±38’ northeasterly from existing pole, P.12, 
which is situated on the westerly side of Fisher Avenue across the street to private 
property at 123 Fisher Avenue. 
 
This petition is necessary in order provide new services to new construction. 
 

 Also, for permission to lay and maintain underground conduits, manholes, cables 
and wires in the above or intersecting public ways for the purpose of making connections 
with such poles and buildings as it may desire for distributing purposes. 
 
 Plan marked-VZ N.E. Inc. No. 1A6VR6B dated March 26, 2024 showing 
location of conduit to be constructed is filed herewith. 
 
 

VERIZON NEW ENGLAND INC. 
 
    By _________________________________________ 
              Karen Levesque 

          Manager - Rights of Way 
 
 
    Dated this _____day of ____________, 2024. 
   
 

26th March

3.J.

Page: 92



3.J.

Page: 93



Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 
Project Information for Grant of Location Request 

Utility Company  

Work Order Number  Petition Date   

Street Extents

Project Description   

Estimated Start Date   Expected Duration 

Days and Hours of Work  

Noise By-Law Waiver (required for work between 7PM-7AM)  yes / no  

Road Closures yes / no  If yes, describe the location, timing, duration, and whether abutters will have access 

during road closures.   

Parking Restrictions yes / no  If yes, describe the location and estimated number of spaces affected and the timing 

and duration of parking restrictions.     

Resident Access Restrictions yes / no  If yes, describe the residents affected, and the timing and duration of access 

restrictions.   

Service Interruptions yes / no  If yes, describe the customers affected and the timing and duration of service 

interruptions.   

Service Replacements yes / no  If yes, describe the customers affected and whether the service replacements are 

underground or overhead.  

3/26/2024

Verizon New England Inc

within 30 days of being approved

7am-3pm weekdays unless otherwise directed by DPW

1A6VR6B

FISHER AVENUNE

 2 days

Place one new four-inch (4”) conduit ±38’ northeasterly from existing pole, P.12, which 
is situated on the westerly side of Fisher Avenue across the street to private property 
at 123 Fisher Avenue.
This petition is necessary in order provide new services to new construction.

ACROSS FROM 123 FISHER AVENUE

3.J.

Page: 94



3.J.

Page: 95



ORDER FOR LOCATION FOR CONDUITS AND MANHOLES 
 

Town of Brookline, Massachusetts, April 23, 2024 
 

WHEREAS, Verizon New England, Inc. has petitioned for permission to lay and maintain underground conduits and manholes for the distribution 
of telecommunications services under the public way or ways of the Town hereinafter specified, and notice has been given and a hearing held on said 
petition as provided by law. 

It is ORDERED that Verizon New England, Inc. be and hereby is granted permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits and 
manholes with the necessary wires and cables therein under the following public way or ways of said Town: 

Fisher Avenue – conduit running northeasterly a distance of 38 feet from existing pole, P.12 on the westerly side of Fisher Avenue across 
the street to 123 Fisher Avenue 

Substantially as shown on a plan made by Verizon dated March 26, 2024 on file with said petition. 

All construction work under this Order shall be in accordance with the following conditions: 

1. The conduits and manholes shall be of such material and construction and all work done in such manner as to be satisfactory to the Select Board 
or to such officers as it may appoint to the supervision of the work, and a plan showing the location of conduits constructed shall be filed with the 
Town when the work is completed. 

2. In every underground main line conduit constructed by said Company hereunder, said Company shall install one separate conduit for the exclusive 
use of the Town in accordance with technical specifications for such separate conduit developed by the Town.  Said Company shall maintain said 
separate Town conduit free of charge. 

3. Said Company shall indemnify and save the Town harmless against all damages, costs and expense whatsoever to which the Town may be 
subjected in consequence of the acts or neglect of said Company, its agents or servants, or in any manner arising from the rights and privileges 
granted it by the Town. 

4. In addition, said Company shall, before a public way is disturbed for the laying of its wire or conduits, execute its bond in a penal sum of Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) (reference being made to the bond already on file with said Town) conditioned for the faithful performance of its duties 
under this permit. 

5. Said Company shall comply with the requirements of existing by-laws, as well as regulations of the Town and requirements of by-laws and 
regulations of the Town as may hereafter be adopted by the Town governing the construction, installation, maintenance and use of conduits and 
wires, so far as the same are not inconsistent with the laws of the Commonwealth. 

6. The grant-of-location hereunder is for the sole use and occupation of said Company hereunder.  No other company or entity may utilize said grant-
of-location at any time.  Any other company or entity must apply to the Select Board, in writing, for a grant-of-location, pursuant to Town regulations 
and by-laws. 

 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
We hereby certify that the foregoing Order was adopted after due notice and a public hearing as prescribed by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the 

General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, to wit: - after written notice of the time and place of the hearing mailed at least 
seven days prior to the date of the hearing by the Select Board to all owners of real estate abutting upon that part of the way or ways upon, along or across 
which the line is to be constructed under said Order, as determined by the last preceding assessment for taxation, and a public hearing held on April 17, 
2024, at the Town Hall in said Town. 
 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
I hereby certify that the foregoing are true copies of the Order of the Select Board of the Town of Brookline Massachusetts, duly adopted on April 

17, 2024, and recorded with the records of location Orders of said Town, Book 2024 , Page  , and of the certificate of 
notice of hearing thereon required by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, as the 
same appear of record. 
 
 

Attest:   
Clerk of the Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 

3.J.

Page: 96



ORDER FOR LOCATION FOR CONDUITS AND MANHOLES 
 

Town of Brookline, Massachusetts, April 23, 2024 
 

WHEREAS, Verizon New England, Inc. has petitioned for permission to lay and maintain underground conduits and manholes for the distribution 
of telecommunications services under the public way or ways of the Town hereinafter specified, and notice has been given and a hearing held on said 
petition as provided by law. 

It is ORDERED that Verizon New England, Inc. be and hereby is granted permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits and 
manholes with the necessary wires and cables therein under the following public way or ways of said Town: 

Fisher Avenue – conduit running northeasterly a distance of 38 feet from existing pole, P.12 on the westerly side of Fisher Avenue across 
the street to 123 Fisher Avenue 

Substantially as shown on a plan made by Verizon dated March 26, 2024 on file with said petition. 

All construction work under this Order shall be in accordance with the following conditions: 

1. The conduits and manholes shall be of such material and construction and all work done in such manner as to be satisfactory to the Select Board 
or to such officers as it may appoint to the supervision of the work, and a plan showing the location of conduits constructed shall be filed with the 
Town when the work is completed. 

2. In every underground main line conduit constructed by said Company hereunder, said Company shall install one separate conduit for the exclusive 
use of the Town in accordance with technical specifications for such separate conduit developed by the Town.  Said Company shall maintain said 
separate Town conduit free of charge. 

3. Said Company shall indemnify and save the Town harmless against all damages, costs and expense whatsoever to which the Town may be 
subjected in consequence of the acts or neglect of said Company, its agents or servants, or in any manner arising from the rights and privileges 
granted it by the Town. 

4. In addition, said Company shall, before a public way is disturbed for the laying of its wire or conduits, execute its bond in a penal sum of Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) (reference being made to the bond already on file with said Town) conditioned for the faithful performance of its duties 
under this permit. 

5. Said Company shall comply with the requirements of existing by-laws, as well as regulations of the Town and requirements of by-laws and 
regulations of the Town as may hereafter be adopted by the Town governing the construction, installation, maintenance and use of conduits and 
wires, so far as the same are not inconsistent with the laws of the Commonwealth. 

6. The grant-of-location hereunder is for the sole use and occupation of said Company hereunder.  No other company or entity may utilize said grant-
of-location at any time.  Any other company or entity must apply to the Select Board, in writing, for a grant-of-location, pursuant to Town regulations 
and by-laws. 

 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
We hereby certify that the foregoing Order was adopted after due notice and a public hearing as prescribed by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the 

General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, to wit: - after written notice of the time and place of the hearing mailed at least 
seven days prior to the date of the hearing by the Select Board to all owners of real estate abutting upon that part of the way or ways upon, along or across 
which the line is to be constructed under said Order, as determined by the last preceding assessment for taxation, and a public hearing held on April 17, 
2024, at the Town Hall in said Town. 
 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
I hereby certify that the foregoing are true copies of the Order of the Select Board of the Town of Brookline Massachusetts, duly adopted on April 

17, 2024, and recorded with the records of location Orders of said Town, Book 2024 , Page  , and of the certificate of 
notice of hearing thereon required by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, as the 
same appear of record. 
 
 

Attest:   
Clerk of the Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 

3.J.

Page: 97



ORDER FOR LOCATION FOR CONDUITS AND MANHOLES 
 

Town of Brookline, Massachusetts, April 23, 2024 
 

WHEREAS, Verizon New England, Inc. has petitioned for permission to lay and maintain underground conduits and manholes for the distribution 
of telecommunications services under the public way or ways of the Town hereinafter specified, and notice has been given and a hearing held on said 
petition as provided by law. 

It is ORDERED that Verizon New England, Inc. be and hereby is granted permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits and 
manholes with the necessary wires and cables therein under the following public way or ways of said Town: 

Fisher Avenue – conduit running northeasterly a distance of 38 feet from existing pole, P.12 on the westerly side of Fisher Avenue across 
the street to 123 Fisher Avenue 

Substantially as shown on a plan made by Verizon dated March 26, 2024 on file with said petition. 

All construction work under this Order shall be in accordance with the following conditions: 

1. The conduits and manholes shall be of such material and construction and all work done in such manner as to be satisfactory to the Select Board 
or to such officers as it may appoint to the supervision of the work, and a plan showing the location of conduits constructed shall be filed with the 
Town when the work is completed. 

2. In every underground main line conduit constructed by said Company hereunder, said Company shall install one separate conduit for the exclusive 
use of the Town in accordance with technical specifications for such separate conduit developed by the Town.  Said Company shall maintain said 
separate Town conduit free of charge. 

3. Said Company shall indemnify and save the Town harmless against all damages, costs and expense whatsoever to which the Town may be 
subjected in consequence of the acts or neglect of said Company, its agents or servants, or in any manner arising from the rights and privileges 
granted it by the Town. 

4. In addition, said Company shall, before a public way is disturbed for the laying of its wire or conduits, execute its bond in a penal sum of Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) (reference being made to the bond already on file with said Town) conditioned for the faithful performance of its duties 
under this permit. 

5. Said Company shall comply with the requirements of existing by-laws, as well as regulations of the Town and requirements of by-laws and 
regulations of the Town as may hereafter be adopted by the Town governing the construction, installation, maintenance and use of conduits and 
wires, so far as the same are not inconsistent with the laws of the Commonwealth. 

6. The grant-of-location hereunder is for the sole use and occupation of said Company hereunder.  No other company or entity may utilize said grant-
of-location at any time.  Any other company or entity must apply to the Select Board, in writing, for a grant-of-location, pursuant to Town regulations 
and by-laws. 

 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
We hereby certify that the foregoing Order was adopted after due notice and a public hearing as prescribed by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the 

General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, to wit: - after written notice of the time and place of the hearing mailed at least 
seven days prior to the date of the hearing by the Select Board to all owners of real estate abutting upon that part of the way or ways upon, along or across 
which the line is to be constructed under said Order, as determined by the last preceding assessment for taxation, and a public hearing held on April 17, 
2024, at the Town Hall in said Town. 
 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
I hereby certify that the foregoing are true copies of the Order of the Select Board of the Town of Brookline Massachusetts, duly adopted on April 

17, 2024, and recorded with the records of location Orders of said Town, Book 2024 , Page  , and of the certificate of 
notice of hearing thereon required by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, as the 
same appear of record. 
 
 

Attest:   
Clerk of the Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 

3.J.

Page: 98



ORDER FOR LOCATION FOR CONDUITS AND MANHOLES 
 

Town of Brookline, Massachusetts, April 23, 2024 
 

WHEREAS, Verizon New England, Inc. has petitioned for permission to lay and maintain underground conduits and manholes for the distribution 
of telecommunications services under the public way or ways of the Town hereinafter specified, and notice has been given and a hearing held on said 
petition as provided by law. 

It is ORDERED that Verizon New England, Inc. be and hereby is granted permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits and 
manholes with the necessary wires and cables therein under the following public way or ways of said Town: 

Fisher Avenue – conduit running northeasterly a distance of 38 feet from existing pole, P.12 on the westerly side of Fisher Avenue across 
the street to 123 Fisher Avenue 

Substantially as shown on a plan made by Verizon dated March 26, 2024 on file with said petition. 

All construction work under this Order shall be in accordance with the following conditions: 

1. The conduits and manholes shall be of such material and construction and all work done in such manner as to be satisfactory to the Select Board 
or to such officers as it may appoint to the supervision of the work, and a plan showing the location of conduits constructed shall be filed with the 
Town when the work is completed. 

2. In every underground main line conduit constructed by said Company hereunder, said Company shall install one separate conduit for the exclusive 
use of the Town in accordance with technical specifications for such separate conduit developed by the Town.  Said Company shall maintain said 
separate Town conduit free of charge. 

3. Said Company shall indemnify and save the Town harmless against all damages, costs and expense whatsoever to which the Town may be 
subjected in consequence of the acts or neglect of said Company, its agents or servants, or in any manner arising from the rights and privileges 
granted it by the Town. 

4. In addition, said Company shall, before a public way is disturbed for the laying of its wire or conduits, execute its bond in a penal sum of Five 
Thousand Dollars ($5,000) (reference being made to the bond already on file with said Town) conditioned for the faithful performance of its duties 
under this permit. 

5. Said Company shall comply with the requirements of existing by-laws, as well as regulations of the Town and requirements of by-laws and 
regulations of the Town as may hereafter be adopted by the Town governing the construction, installation, maintenance and use of conduits and 
wires, so far as the same are not inconsistent with the laws of the Commonwealth. 

6. The grant-of-location hereunder is for the sole use and occupation of said Company hereunder.  No other company or entity may utilize said grant-
of-location at any time.  Any other company or entity must apply to the Select Board, in writing, for a grant-of-location, pursuant to Town regulations 
and by-laws. 

 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
We hereby certify that the foregoing Order was adopted after due notice and a public hearing as prescribed by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the 

General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, to wit: - after written notice of the time and place of the hearing mailed at least 
seven days prior to the date of the hearing by the Select Board to all owners of real estate abutting upon that part of the way or ways upon, along or across 
which the line is to be constructed under said Order, as determined by the last preceding assessment for taxation, and a public hearing held on April 17, 
2024, at the Town Hall in said Town. 
 

1  

2  Select Board 

3  Members of the 

4  Town of Brookline 

5  

CERTIFICATE 
I hereby certify that the foregoing are true copies of the Order of the Select Board of the Town of Brookline Massachusetts, duly adopted on April 

17, 2024, and recorded with the records of location Orders of said Town, Book 2024 , Page  , and of the certificate of 
notice of hearing thereon required by Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws (Ter. Ed.), and any additions thereto or amendments thereof, as the 
same appear of record. 
 
 

Attest:   
Clerk of the Town of Brookline, Massachusetts 

3.J.

Page: 99



333 Washington S t ree t    Brook l ine ,  Massachuse t t s  02445-6863 
Te lephone:  (617)730-2156      Facsimi le :  (617)713-3727 

www.brook l inema.gov  

 
 

T O W N  o f  B R O O K L I N E 
Massachusetts 

 

Department of Public Works 
April 5, 2024 

 
             

Erin Chute 
Commissioner 

 
 
FEUERMAN, JEFFREY 
93 FISHER AVE 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 
 
 
Dear Property Owner: 
 
 
Attached you will find a notice of a public hearing to be held on the petition of Verizon New 
England, Inc. (Verizon) to install underground conduit near your property. 
 
Verizon has requested the relocation to provide new services to new construction.  Verizon is 
proposing to run new conduit in Fisher Avenue northeasterly a distance of 38 feet from existing 
pole, P.12 on the westerly side of Fisher Avenue across the street to 123 Fisher Avenue. 
 
If you have no objection to the granting of this location, it is not necessary for you to attend the 
hearing. 
 
If you have any questions regarding this hearing, you may contact Karen Hersey in the 
Engineering/Transportation Division at 617-264-6464. 
 
 
Sincerely, 

 
Erin Chute 
Commissioner of Public Works 
 
 
Cc: Town Meeting Members Precinct 14 

 

3.J.

Page: 100



 TOWN OF BROOKLINE 
  
 
 PUBLIC HEARING 
 
 
In conformity with the requirements of Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws 
(Ter. Ed.) you are hereby notified that a public hearing will be held in Room 111 of the 
Town Hall, 333 Washington Street, Brookline, with remote participation via Zoom on April 
17, 2024 at approximately 10:00 AM upon the petition of Verizon New England, Inc. 
for permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits and manholes with 
the necessary cables therein under the following public way(s): 
 
Fisher Avenue – conduit running northeasterly a distance of 38 feet from existing 
pole, P.12 on the westerly side of Fisher Avenue across the street to 123 Fisher 
Avenue 
 
Registration information is provided at www.brooklinema.gov/calendar under the April 17, 
2024 Select Board licensing hearing details.  After registering, you will receive a 
confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar. 
 

 
SELECT BOARD 

 
By:  Charles Carey 
Town Administrator 
 
Verizon New England, Inc. 
125 Lundquist Drive 
Braintree, MA 02184 
Attn: Gabriel Albisu     
  

 Department of Public Works:   
 Engineering Division    

 Highway Division 
 

3.J.

Page: 101



��������� ��	
����������
���������

������������� ������������������������������ ��������������� ������ !"#��$"%	
�� &"''��'�%(##%%)'�*"'�*�'%#��''+, ���-�.�/��0��1���
���/.���
��1�	
��
��1���/.��������/��1�������
��2��3�.�1�-��
���/.���
� ����/�42� 5��.�.6.��7�1����	
����������
��/.����
��-�.�/�,�
���������
�.���
�,.
��
��	.��.
����,��8����������/�����,�-�
-��
�
3��1�9.�������4�8����������/�����5,��1������.6�����,�����1��.--:�.-�����1��2� ��.�.�.
��2� ��.�.�����:-����:�
��1���6��1����	
,��
-�:��
3��1���/������9.����������.
��:�������:-1��.�.7�1���.����-.���
�����
��
��������������
-���
��7�����-���������.�-����
���/.���
����.���-�
�.-���1����	
����������
�����������%���-�7

3.J.

Page: 102



FEUERMAN, JEFFREY 
93 FISHER AVE 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  GODHWANI, SANJAY & VALERIE A 
99 FISHER AVE 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  TOWN OF BROOKLINE, 
C/O BOARD OF SELECTMEN, 
333 WASHINGTON ST 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

TOWN OF BROOKLINE, 
C/O TREASURERS OFFICE, 
333 WASHINGTON ST 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  TOWN OF BROOKLINE, 
C/O TREASURERS OFFICE, 
333 WASHINGTON ST 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  WELL BALFOUR BROOKLINE LANDLORD 
LLC, 
4500 DORR ST 
TOLEDO, OH   43615‐ 

YOUKAVET SAMIH 
1799 BEACON ST Unit 1 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  SHAARI MITTEL 
309 BUCKMINSTER RD 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  CARLOS RIDRUEJO 
16 HOLLAND RD 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

PAMELA LODISH 
120 SEAVER ST Unit C202 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  PAULA FRIEDMAN 
170 HYSLOP RD 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  ROGER LIPSON 
622 CHESTNUT HILL AVE 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

RICHARD FREDKIN 
166 HYSLOP RD 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  SAMI ZELKHA 
228 DEAN RD 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  LYNDA ROSEMAN 
49 ACKERS AVE 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

KATHLEEN O'CONNELL 
59 ACKERS AVE Unit 2 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  JESSE HEFTER 
653 CHESTNUT HILL AVE 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

  SHARON SCHOFFMANN 
6 ELIOT CRES Unit 1 
BROOKLINE, MA   02467 

SASSAN ZELKHA 
1799 BEACON ST Unit 1 
BROOKLINE, MA   02445 

       

         

         

         

3.J.

Page: 103



TOWN OF BROOKLINE

PUBLIC HEARING

In conformity with the requirements of Section 22 of Chapter 166 of the General Laws 
(Ter. Ed.) you are hereby notified that a public hearing will be held in Room 111 of the 
Town Hall, 333 Washington Street, Brookline, with remote participation via Zoom on April 
17, 2024 at approximately 10:00 AM upon the petition of Verizon New England, Inc. 
for permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits and manholes with 
the necessary cables therein under the following public way(s):

Fisher Avenue – conduit running northeasterly a distance of 38 feet from existing 
pole, P.12 on the westerly side of Fisher Avenue across the street to 123 Fisher 
Avenue

Registration information is provided at www.brooklinema.gov/calendar under the April 17, 
2024 Select Board licensing hearing details. After registering, you will receive a 
confirmation email containing information about joining the webinar.

SELECT BOARD

By: Charles Carey 
Town Administrator

Verizon New England, Inc. 
125 Lundquist Drive
Braintree, MA 02184 
Attn: Gabriel Albisu

Department of Public Works: 
Engineering Division 
Highway Division

3.J.

Page: 104

http://www.brooklinema.gov/calendar


3.K.

Page: 105



3.K.

Page: 106



3.K.

Page: 107



3.K.

Page: 108



3.K.

Page: 109



3.K.

Page: 110



3.K.

Page: 111



3.K.

Page: 112



3.K.

Page: 113



3.K.

Page: 114



3.K.

Page: 115



3.K.

Page: 116



3.K.

Page: 117



3.K.

Page: 118



3.K.

Page: 119



3.K.

Page: 120



3.K.

Page: 121



3.K.

Page: 122



3.K.

Page: 123



3.K.

Page: 124



3.K.

Page: 125



3.K.

Page: 126



3.K.

Page: 127



3.K.

Page: 128



3.K.

Page: 129



3.K.

Page: 130



3.K.

Page: 131



3.K.

Page: 132



3.K.

Page: 133



3.K.

Page: 134



3.K.

Page: 135



3.K.

Page: 136



3.K.

Page: 137



3.K.

Page: 138



3.K.

Page: 139



3.K.

Page: 140



3.K.

Page: 141



3.K.

Page: 142



3.K.

Page: 143



3.K.

Page: 144



3.K.

Page: 145



3.K.

Page: 146



3.K.

Page: 147



3.K.

Page: 148



3.K.

Page: 149



3.K.

Page: 150



3.K.

Page: 151



3.K.

Page: 152



3.K.

Page: 153



3.K.

Page: 154



3.K.

Page: 155



3.L.

Page: 156



3.L.

Page: 157



3.L.

Page: 158



3.L.

Page: 159



3.L.

Page: 160



3.L.

Page: 161



3.L.

Page: 162



3.L.

Page: 163



3.L.

Page: 164



3.L.

Page: 165



3.L.

Page: 166



3.L.

Page: 167



3.L.

Page: 168



3.L.

Page: 169



3.L.

Page: 170



3.L.

Page: 171



3.L.

Page: 172



3.L.

Page: 173



3.L.

Page: 174



3.L.

Page: 175



3.L.

Page: 176



3.L.

Page: 177



3.L.

Page: 178



3.L.

Page: 179



3.L.

Page: 180



3.L.

Page: 181



3.L.

Page: 182



3.L.

Page: 183



3.L.

Page: 184



3.L.

Page: 185



3.L.

Page: 186



3.L.

Page: 187



3.L.

Page: 188



3.L.

Page: 189



3.L.

Page: 190



3.L.

Page: 191



3.L.

Page: 192



3.L.

Page: 193



3.L.

Page: 194



3.L.

Page: 195



3.L.

Page: 196



3.L.

Page: 197



3.L.

Page: 198



3.L.

Page: 199



3.L.

Page: 200



3.L.

Page: 201



3.L.

Page: 202



3.L.

Page: 203



3.L.

Page: 204



3.L.

Page: 205



3.L.

Page: 206



3.L.

Page: 207



3.L.

Page: 208



3.L.

Page: 209



3.L.

Page: 210



3.L.

Page: 211



3.L.

Page: 212



3.L.

Page: 213



3.L.

Page: 214



3.L.

Page: 215



3.L.

Page: 216



3.L.

Page: 217



3.L.

Page: 218



3.L.

Page: 219



3.L.

Page: 220



3.L.

Page: 221



3.L.

Page: 222



3.L.

Page: 223



3.L.

Page: 224



3.L.

Page: 225



3.L.

Page: 226



3.L.

Page: 227



3.L.

Page: 228



3.L.

Page: 229



3.L.

Page: 230



3.L.

Page: 231



3.L.

Page: 232



3.L.

Page: 233



3.L.

Page: 234



3.L.

Page: 235



3.L.

Page: 236



3.L.

Page: 237



3.L.

Page: 238



3.L.

Page: 239



3.L.

Page: 240



3.L.

Page: 241



3.L.

Page: 242



3.L.

Page: 243



3.L.

Page: 244



3.L.

Page: 245



3.M.

Page: 246



3.M.

Page: 247



3.M.

Page: 248



3.M.

Page: 249



3.M.

Page: 250



3.M.

Page: 251



3.M.

Page: 252



3.M.

Page: 253



3.M.

Page: 254



3.M.

Page: 255



3.M.

Page: 256



3.M.

Page: 257



3.M.

Page: 258



3.M.

Page: 259



3.M.

Page: 260



3.M.

Page: 261



3.M.

Page: 262



3.M.

Page: 263



3.M.

Page: 264



3.M.

Page: 265



3.M.

Page: 266



3.M.

Page: 267



3.M.

Page: 268



3.M.

Page: 269



3.M.

Page: 270



3.M.

Page: 271



3.M.

Page: 272



3.M.

Page: 273



3.M.

Page: 274



3.M.

Page: 275



3.M.

Page: 276



3.M.

Page: 277



3.M.

Page: 278



3.M.

Page: 279



3.M.

Page: 280



3.M.

Page: 281



3.M.

Page: 282



3.M.

Page: 283



3.M.

Page: 284



3.M.

Page: 285



3.M.

Page: 286



3.M.

Page: 287



3.M.

Page: 288



3.M.

Page: 289



3.M.

Page: 290



3.M.

Page: 291



3.M.

Page: 292



3.N.

Page: 293



3.N.

Page: 294



3.N.

Page: 295



3.N.

Page: 296



3.N.

Page: 297



3.N.

Page: 298



3.N.

Page: 299



3.N.

Page: 300



3.N.

Page: 301



3.N.

Page: 302



3.N.

Page: 303



3.N.

Page: 304



3.N.

Page: 305



3.N.

Page: 306



3.N.

Page: 307



3.N.

Page: 308



3.N.

Page: 309



3.N.

Page: 310



3.N.

Page: 311



3.N.

Page: 312



3.N.

Page: 313



3.N.

Page: 314



3.N.

Page: 315



3.N.

Page: 316



3.N.

Page: 317



3.N.

Page: 318



3.N.

Page: 319



3.N.

Page: 320



3.N.

Page: 321



3.N.

Page: 322



3.N.

Page: 323



3.N.

Page: 324



3.N.

Page: 325



3.N.

Page: 326



3.N.

Page: 327



3.N.

Page: 328



3.N.

Page: 329



3.N.

Page: 330



3.N.

Page: 331



3.N.

Page: 332



3.N.

Page: 333



3.N.

Page: 334



3.N.

Page: 335



3.N.

Page: 336



3.N.

Page: 337



3.N.

Page: 338



3.N.

Page: 339



3.N.

Page: 340



3.N.

Page: 341



3.N.

Page: 342



3.N.

Page: 343



3.N.

Page: 344



3.N.

Page: 345



3.N.

Page: 346



3.N.

Page: 347



3.N.

Page: 348



3.N.

Page: 349



3.N.

Page: 350



3.N.

Page: 351



3.N.

Page: 352



3.N.

Page: 353



3.N.

Page: 354



3.N.

Page: 355



3.N.

Page: 356



3.N.

Page: 357



3.N.

Page: 358



3.N.

Page: 359



3.N.

Page: 360



3.N.

Page: 361



3.N.

Page: 362



3.N.

Page: 363



3.N.

Page: 364



3.N.

Page: 365



3.O.

Page: 366



3.O.

Page: 367



3.O.

Page: 368



3.O.

Page: 369



3.O.

Page: 370



3.O.

Page: 371



3.O.

Page: 372



3.O.

Page: 373



3.O.

Page: 374



3.O.

Page: 375



3.O.

Page: 376



3.O.

Page: 377



3.O.

Page: 378



3.O.

Page: 379



3.O.

Page: 380



3.O.

Page: 381



3.O.

Page: 382



3.O.

Page: 383



3.O.

Page: 384



3.O.

Page: 385



3.O.

Page: 386



3.O.

Page: 387



3.O.

Page: 388



3.O.

Page: 389



3.O.

Page: 390



3.O.

Page: 391



3.O.

Page: 392



3.O.

Page: 393



3.O.

Page: 394



3.O.

Page: 395



3.O.

Page: 396



3.O.

Page: 397



3.O.

Page: 398



3.O.

Page: 399



3.O.

Page: 400



3.O.

Page: 401



3.O.

Page: 402



3.O.

Page: 403



3.O.

Page: 404



3.O.

Page: 405



3.O.

Page: 406



3.O.

Page: 407



3.O.

Page: 408



3.O.

Page: 409



3.O.

Page: 410



3.O.

Page: 411



3.O.

Page: 412



3.O.

Page: 413



3.O.

Page: 414



3.O.

Page: 415



3.O.

Page: 416



3.O.

Page: 417



3.O.

Page: 418



3.O.

Page: 419



3.O.

Page: 420



3.O.

Page: 421



3.O.

Page: 422



3.O.

Page: 423



3.O.

Page: 424



3.O.

Page: 425



3.O.

Page: 426



3.O.

Page: 427



3.O.

Page: 428



3.O.

Page: 429



3.O.

Page: 430



3.O.

Page: 431



3.O.

Page: 432



3.O.

Page: 433



3.O.

Page: 434



3.O.

Page: 435



3.O.

Page: 436



3.O.

Page: 437



3.O.

Page: 438



3.O.

Page: 439



3.O.

Page: 440



3.O.

Page: 441



3.O.

Page: 442



3.O.

Page: 443



3.O.

Page: 444



3.O.

Page: 445



3.O.

Page: 446



3.O.

Page: 447



3.O.

Page: 448



3.O.

Page: 449



3.O.

Page: 450



3.O.

Page: 451



3.O.

Page: 452



3.O.

Page: 453



3.O.

Page: 454



3.O.

Page: 455



3.O.

Page: 456



3.O.

Page: 457



3.O.

Page: 458



3.O.

Page: 459



3.O.

Page: 460



3.O.

Page: 461



3.O.

Page: 462



3.O.

Page: 463



3.O.

Page: 464



3.O.

Page: 465



3.O.

Page: 466



3.O.

Page: 467



3.O.

Page: 468



3.O.

Page: 469



3.O.

Page: 470



3.O.

Page: 471



3.O.

Page: 472



3.O.

Page: 473



3.O.

Page: 474



3.O.

Page: 475



3.P.

Page: 476



3.P.

Page: 477



3.P.

Page: 478



3.P.

Page: 479



3.P.

Page: 480



3.P.

Page: 481



3.P.

Page: 482



3.P.

Page: 483



3.P.

Page: 484



3.P.

Page: 485



3.P.

Page: 486



3.P.

Page: 487



3.P.

Page: 488



3.P.

Page: 489



3.P.

Page: 490



3.P.

Page: 491



3.P.

Page: 492



3.P.

Page: 493



3.P.

Page: 494



3.P.

Page: 495



3.P.

Page: 496



3.P.

Page: 497



3.P.

Page: 498



3.P.

Page: 499



3.P.

Page: 500



3.P.

Page: 501



3.P.

Page: 502



3.P.

Page: 503



3.Q.

Page: 504



3.Q.

Page: 505



3.Q.

Page: 506



3.Q.

Page: 507



3.Q.

Page: 508



3.Q.

Page: 509



3.Q.

Page: 510



3.Q.

Page: 511



3.Q.

Page: 512



3.Q.

Page: 513



3.Q.

Page: 514



3.Q.

Page: 515



3.Q.

Page: 516



3.Q.

Page: 517



3.Q.

Page: 518



3.Q.

Page: 519



3.Q.

Page: 520



3.Q.

Page: 521



3.Q.

Page: 522



3.Q.

Page: 523



3.Q.

Page: 524



3.Q.

Page: 525



3.Q.

Page: 526



3.Q.

Page: 527



3.Q.

Page: 528



3.Q.

Page: 529



3.Q.

Page: 530



3.Q.

Page: 531



3.Q.

Page: 532



3.Q.

Page: 533



3.Q.

Page: 534



3.Q.

Page: 535



3.Q.

Page: 536



3.Q.

Page: 537



3.Q.

Page: 538



3.Q.

Page: 539



3.Q.

Page: 540



3.Q.

Page: 541



3.Q.

Page: 542



3.Q.

Page: 543



3.Q.

Page: 544



3.Q.

Page: 545



3.Q.

Page: 546



3.Q.

Page: 547



3.Q.

Page: 548



3.Q.

Page: 549



3.Q.

Page: 550



3.Q.

Page: 551



3.Q.

Page: 552



3.Q.

Page: 553



3.Q.

Page: 554



3.Q.

Page: 555



3.Q.

Page: 556



3.Q.

Page: 557



3.Q.

Page: 558



3.Q.

Page: 559



3.Q.

Page: 560



3.Q.

Page: 561



3.Q.

Page: 562



3.Q.

Page: 563



3.Q.

Page: 564



3.Q.

Page: 565



3.Q.

Page: 566



3.Q.

Page: 567



3.Q.

Page: 568



3.Q.

Page: 569



3.Q.

Page: 570



3.Q.

Page: 571



3.Q.

Page: 572



3.Q.

Page: 573



3.Q.

Page: 574



3.Q.

Page: 575



3.Q.

Page: 576



3.Q.

Page: 577



3.Q.

Page: 578



3.R.

Page: 579



3.R.

Page: 580



3.R.

Page: 581



3.R.

Page: 582



3.R.

Page: 583



3.R.

Page: 584



3.R.

Page: 585



3.R.

Page: 586



3.R.

Page: 587



3.R.

Page: 588



3.R.

Page: 589



3.R.

Page: 590



3.R.

Page: 591



3.R.

Page: 592



3.R.

Page: 593



3.R.

Page: 594



3.R.

Page: 595



3.R.

Page: 596



3.R.

Page: 597



3.R.

Page: 598



3.R.

Page: 599



3.R.

Page: 600



Change of Alternate Manager 

Applicant: 
DBA: 
Location: 

Sasha Machado 
NETA 
160 Washington St., Brookline, MA 02445 

Al!l!lication Details: 

Change in the alternate manager to Sasha Machado as an Assistant 
Operations Manager of NETA located at 160 Washington St. Brookline, 
MA 

Reports (Attached): 

Police Department (Pending) 

3.S.

Page: 601



3.S.

Page: 602



3.S.

Page: 603



3.S.

Page: 604



3.S.

Page: 605



3.S.

Page: 606



3.S.

Page: 607



3.S.

Page: 608



3.S.

Page: 609



Change of Alternate Manager 

Applicant: 
DBA: 
Location: 

Jill Cyr 
NETA 
160 Washington St., Brookline, MA 02445 

Afil!lication Details: 

Change in the alternate manager to Jill Cyr as an Assistant Operations 
Manager ofNETA located at 160 Washington St. Brookline, MA 

Reports (Attached): 

Police Department (Approved) 

3.S.

Page: 610



3.S.

Page: 611



3.S.

Page: 612



3.S.

Page: 613



3.S.

Page: 614



3.S.

Page: 615



3.S.

Page: 616



3.S.

Page: 617



3.S.

Page: 618



3.T.

Page: 619



3.T.

Page: 620



3.T.

Page: 621



3.T.

Page: 622



3.T.

Page: 623



3.T.

Page: 624



3.T.

Page: 625



3.T.

Page: 626



3.T.

Page: 627



3.T.

Page: 628



3.T.

Page: 629



3.T.

Page: 630



3.T.

Page: 631



3.T.

Page: 632



3.T.

Page: 633



3.T.

Page: 634



3.T.

Page: 635



3.T.

Page: 636



3.T.

Page: 637



3.T.

Page: 638



3.T.

Page: 639



3.T.

Page: 640



3.T.

Page: 641



3.T.

Page: 642



3.T.

Page: 643



3.T.

Page: 644



3.T.

Page: 645



3.T.

Page: 646



3.T.

Page: 647



3.T.

Page: 648



3.T.

Page: 649



3.V.

Page: 650



3.V.

Page: 651



3.V.

Page: 652



3.V.

Page: 653



3.V.

Page: 654



3.V.

Page: 655



3.V.

Page: 656



3.V.

Page: 657



3.V.

Page: 658



3.V.

Page: 659



3.V.

Page: 660



3.V.

Page: 661



3.V.

Page: 662



3.V.

Page: 663



3.V.

Page: 664



3.V.

Page: 665



3.V.

Page: 666



3.V.

Page: 667



3.V.

Page: 668



3.V.

Page: 669



3.V.

Page: 670



3.V.

Page: 671



3.V.

Page: 672



FY25 Section 4L DPW

Town of Brookline FY25 Program Budget
Public Facilities l Public Works

Program Description
The Public Works Department provides services and programs that protect the safety and welfare of the 
public, balance community goals for livability, inclusivity, and economic vitality, and ful�ll local, state, and 
federal mandates. Department services are delivered in a manner that is professional, environmentally 
and �scally responsible, and convenient and understandable to the public.

The Department of Public Works is responsible for the planning, design, construction, operation, 
maintenance, and management of streets, sidewalks, bicycle, and multi-modal pathways, parklands, 
open space, public grounds, cemeteries, water distribution systems, sewer collection systems, 
stormwater utility, street lights, and signalization. The Department is also responsible for the collection 
and disposal of solid waste, and recycling, urban forestry, environmental regulatory compliance, 
emergency response, snow and ice management, and �eet maintenance services to Town departments. 

The Public Works Department consists of the following sub-programs:

Central Administration - The primary goal of the Central Administration function is to provide continuous 
coordination and e�ective leadership of all Divisions to ensure that constituent services, operations, 
regulatory compliance, and employee support are carried out professionally and e�ciently. The speci�c 
functions include budget preparation and internal expenditure control; clerical and accounting activities 
for the processing of payrolls, purchases, billings, utility invoices; long-range planning; compliance with all 
federal, state, and local laws and regulations; and interacting with all boards, commissions, and 
departments as well as with municipal, utility, and regional authorities.

Engineering/Transportation - The responsibilities of the Engineering and Transportation Division are 
centered on providing design, engineering, planning, technical, regulatory, and construction support and 
management for the Department, in addition to providing planning, permitting, multi-agency 
coordination, and management of programs related to transportation and mobility on the public way. 
These responsibilities include the preparation of plans, speci�cations, and bidding documents for various 
construction projects involving public ways, utilities, parks, open space, playgrounds, school grounds, 
cemeteries, and public grounds; preparation of estimates and drawings; contract administration and 
construction inspections; review of all street opening requests by public utilities; supervision of the 
maintenance of the Town's tra�c signal and street lighting systems; and the review and approval of plot 
plans for new construction. The Division is the lead for MADOT-funded and supported projects for the 
Town.

Included in these responsibilities is serving as principal sta� for the six-member Transportation Board, 
which has the authority to make rules and regulations relative to pedestrian, vehicle, bicycle, and micro-
mobility movement within the Town. The Division prepares regulations, safety studies, complete streets 
plans, safety improvement plans, and analyzes proposals for Transportation Board approval. 

5.A.

Page: 673



FY25 Section 4L DPW

Additionally, the Division provides sta� support to the Bicycle Advisory Committee, Shared Mobility 
Advisory Committee, Pedestrian Advisory Committee, and the Safe Routes to School Town-wide Task 
Force and technical support to the Select Board, Zoning Board of Appeals, Planning Board, and other 
Town Departments. The Division also oversees curb management for the Town including managing the 
on-street parking meter system, public lots, twenty permit parking programs, and oversees the outdoor 
dining, taxi cab industry, valet licenses, livery licenses, jitney licenses, bike share, car share, and publically 
accessible electric vehicle charging programs. Finally, sta� acts as the liaison and coordinates activities 
with regional and state organizations including MADOT, the MBTA, MBTA Advisory Board, Boston Region 
MPO, Metropolitan Area Planning Council, and the Regional Transportation Advisory Committee of the 
Boston MPO.

Highway - The Division maintains a highly visible service to the community, with the goal being to 
maintain the physical safety, utility and appearance of all public ways.  

Roadway Maintenance - The Road Maintenance Element is responsible for street, sidewalk, and trench 
repairs, asphalt overlays, granite curbing, and the replacement of Town-owned fences and walls. The 
School Department also receives maintenance through this element with work accomplished on 
walkways, school parking areas, and drainage problems.

Street Cleaning - The Street Cleaning Element keeps all public ways machine-swept and free of litter. To 
accomplish this year-round task, 125 solar powered compacting trash receptacles in the commercial 
areas must be emptied daily. Main streets in the commercial areas are swept three times per week. 
Residential streets are swept approximately every nine to fourteen days, and leaves, grass, and common 
litter are removed daily.

Snow and Ice Control - The Winter Snow and Ice Control Element plows and treats approximately 100 
miles of street (250 lane miles), 47 miles of public sidewalks and adjacent curb ramps, dedicated bike 
lanes, 9.5 miles of private ways, 20 walking paths/stairs (1.2 miles), 11 elementary schools, one high 
school campus, 3 libraries, 11 town buildings, 15 public parking lots, 33 public parks, and hand clears, and 
sands handicap-accessible ramps in business and commuter areas. Public ways near churches, temples, 
bus stops, elderly housing, schools, and residences of paraplegics are given precedence to ensure public 
safety. The sidewalks are plowed to provide access to the elderly and children along school routes. The 
sidewalks were selected by a 1978 Snow Committee and were con�rmed by a 1983 Moderator's Snow 
Committee.

Tra�c Control/Street Lighting - The Tra�c Control and Lighting Element places, repairs, and 
manufactures street and tra�c signs, inspects street lights and tra�c signals, maintains parking meters, 
and letters and paints pavement, crosswalks, and center lines. The street lighting portion of this element 
funds the operation, maintenance, and energy costs of all street lights and tra�c signals in the Town. 
This Unit is also responsible for the maintenance of the Town's Emergency Noti�cation System (public 
safety call boxes/alarms).

Motor Equipment Maintenance - Utilizing a centralized approach to maintain productivity and e�ciency, 
the Motor Equipment Maintenance Element maintains and repairs the Town's entire �eet, except for Fire 
Department Vehicles. Repair and maintenance records are kept to establish and monitor accurate 
operating costs and budget �gures. Service contracts are used for major repair items that cannot be 
serviced at the Municipal Service Center. The supply budget is used for the purchase of all maintenance 
repair parts to service more than 370 pieces of equipment for 10 departments.

Sanitation - This Division provides for solid waste collection and disposal/recycling of all household 
rubbish. The collection and disposal/recycling of this material impacts the health and welfare of the 
entire community. The e�ectiveness of this operation depends greatly on the cooperation of residents in 
complying with established rules and regulations. Hazardous Materials drop-o�, CRTs, metals, bulk 

5.A.

Page: 674



FY25 Section 4L DPW

materials, and collection and disposal of leaves and sweeper debris from public ways for disposal are 
also incorporated into this sub-program.

Parks and Open Space - The Division maintains over 120 properties and 500 acres of Town-owned park 
and recreation facilities. The goal is to provide a network of well-maintained parks and open spaces that 
ful�ll the passive and active recreational needs of the community, preserve the historic, and cultural 
integrity of the landscape, enhance the environmental resilience within the Town, and provide access to 
all. The Division coordinates implementation of the Climate Action Plan across the Department of Public 
Works; supports ecological initiatives in collaboration with other Divisions and Departments; develops 
partnerships, education and outreach to support the Town’s natural resources, parks and open spaces 
and the residents’ ability to enjoy and connect to them. This objective is accomplished through the goals 
of the following six elements:

Conservation - The seven-member Conservation Commission and sta� serve all citizens by protecting 
and preserving the environment. Functions and goals include the following statutory responsibilities: 
enforcing local, state, and federal environmental regulations; administering the Wetlands Protection Act 
and the United States Flood Insurance Program; and administering conservation areas and easements.

Public Grounds - The Division manages and maintains over 485 acres of public land, comprised of 38 
parks and playgrounds, land around 15 public buildings, �ve parking areas, and over 41 tra�c islands, for 
passive and active recreation purposes; provide maintenance and repair of equipment and �xtures; 
manage and maintain playing �elds; and remove snow and ice during the winter months. The Element 
also maintains 24 playing �elds, 25 tot lots for older and younger children, 25.5 basketball courts, and 32 
tennis court areas.

School Grounds - The Division provides for the maintenance of and improvements to 32 acres of 
landscaped areas around ten public schools. This element is responsible for pruning trees and shrubs, 
raking leaves, removing litter, cutting grass, fertilizing, and seeding. In the winter months, functions 
include snow removal from walks, steps, ramps, and parking areas on school grounds.

Skating Rink - The Skating Rink function supports the maintenance and operation of the Larz Anderson 
outdoor skating rink in coordination with the Recreation Department. The goal is to provide quality 
maintenance of the outdoor skating facility given the operational challenges due to the age of the facility 
and varying weather conditions. While DPW employees provide services to manage and maintain the ice, 
the costs are accounted for in the Recreation Revolving Fund via a charge-o� to cover the cost of the 
employees’ time and service contracts.

Forestry - The Forestry Element preserves and maintains over 60,000 shade trees along public ways, 
parks, school grounds, cemeteries, and all other public grounds. The Element provides for the safety of 
all public ways and grounds by removing dead and dangerous limbs and trees and is responsible for 
replacing trees in areas where they have been removed.

Cemetery - The goals of the Cemetery Element are to maintain and improve the Walnut Hills Cemetery 
and the Old Burying Ground, which total 48.5 acres, and to provide properly coordinated and digni�ed 
burials. Functions include selling lots, recording deeds, constructing foundations, mowing grass areas, 
pruning shrubs and small trees, laying out and preparing lots, and coordinating burials.

Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund - The DPW is responsible for the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund. For 
a description of the Enterprise Fund and all functions and services of this Division, please see the section 
for the Water and Sewer Division.

5.A.

Page: 675



FY25 Section 4L DPW

FY 25 Objectives 
Administration:

Complete the review and update of DPW job descriptions and compensation plans to ensure that
they are appropriate for the market and can attract and retain quali�ed and competent employees
for the Town of Brookline. (Strategic Plan Obj. 3.2D)

1.

DPW Leadership Team and IT Systems Manager will evaluate and enhance the PeopleGIS Work
Order System software to be an increasingly e�cient, e�ective, and valuable tool for DPW and the
Town, including improved asset and supply management and data updates with the Town's GIS
database. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1)

2.

Leverage the new knowledge and adaptations made during the pandemic to continue a digital
transformation strategy for department tools, technology, services, and deliverables to maximize
employee e�ciency and customer service including the implementation of hybrid meetings and
DPW permits. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2, 3.1)

3.

Identify and actively seek federal, state, and local grant opportunities to leverage Town funds to
improve Brookline's natural resources, accessibility, green infrastructure, complete streets, and
assets in the public way (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.3)

4.

Identify new opportunities for recruitment and hiring. (Strategic Plan Obj. 3.2)5.
Establish a mentorship program that aids in learning, growth, and advancement for new or entry-
level DPW sta� (Strategic Plan Obj. 3.2)

6.

Continue education opportunities for all DPW sta� that focus on technical training, supervisory
skills, town policies and procedures, and DEI goals. (Strategic Plan Obj. 4.3)

7.

Evaluate the e�ciency, cost and sustainability of the Town of Brookline Sanitation Program and
compare various models for improved service and reliability supported by contractual and in-house
programs. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2, 3.1)

8.

Engineering & Transportation:
Manage and advance the design and public process associated with the Washington Street corridor
project, which is part of the MassDOT Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) – a critical project
for the Town. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

1.

Manage and advance the design and public process associated with the Bridle Path project, which is
part of the MassDOT Transportation Improvement Program (TIP) – a transformative project for the
Town. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

2.

Continue updating Department standard details and speci�cations as they relate to Town
requirements. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 2.2)

3.

Improve coordination with the Building and Planning Departments for all site plan reviews. Focus
on improving overall customer support and satisfaction. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2, 3.1)

4.

Update the Transportation and Mobility Plan to include additional prioritization criteria, including
proximity to school zones, business districts, public transportation routes, major bike routes, etc.
(Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.3, 4.5)

5.

Update the Town's Stormwater Master Plan and develop a hydrologic and hydraulic model of the
Town's drainage system to determine existing capacity, identify constraints and impediments, and
plan for future improvements to increase our resilience and prepare for future �ooding associated
with climate change. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2)

6.

Identify a plan for pedestrian, bike, and micro-mobility safety improvements on Davis Avenue and
Tappan Street in the vicinity of Brookline High School and Cypress Playground as part of the Town's
Complete Streets and Safe Routes to School program (Community conversations during FY24 with a
goal of construction in FY25). (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

7.

Complete design and construction associated with improvements on the roads identi�ed as part of
the Transportation and Mobility Plan. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 2.1)

8.

Advance the design for a new Davis Path footbridge. With continued support from various Town
� f f

9.

5.A.

Page: 676



FY25 Section 4L DPW

Highway, Sanitation & Fleet Services:

Parks & Open Space:

Boards and Commissions, the team has identi�ed federal grant funding that may support the
construction of this critical connection for our community. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2,
2.3, 4.4, 4.5)
Pending permitting, complete the Willow Pond Environmental Restoration Design and Construction
Bid Documents and begin construction on this improvement. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1,
2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

10.

Continue to oversee installation of Accessible Pedestrian Signal and count-down timer upgrades at
tra�c signal locations throughout the Town to improve pedestrian access and safety. (Strategic
Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

11.

Apply for grant funding to support a Complete Streets design for Pleasant Street, and St. Paul
Street. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

12.

Through collaboration with the Vision Zero Committee and the community, oversee the creation of
a Vision Zero Policy for the Town of Brookline. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

13.

Continue to plan for and oversee the expansion of the BlueBikes Bike Share, Car Share, and the
Publicly Accessible Electric Vehicle Charging programs. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3,
4.4, 4.5)

14.

Continue the implementation of the Zero Waste Framework: Implement, support, and/or expand
composting programs in at least �ve public schools in accordance with the School Compost Guide.
(Strategic Plan Obj. 5.1)

1.

Continue the implementation of the Zero Waste Framework: Provide compost and recycling waste
receptacles at ten or more Town-organized events to build visibility for, and knowledge around,
waste diversion in Brookline. (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.1)

2.

Implement a preventive Maintenance program for townwide tra�c signals and school zone
�ashers. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

3.

Improve the clarity and e�ectiveness of responses to the Town's BrookOnLine citizen request and
work order system. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2E)

4.

Create an onboarding Standard Operating Procedure with the Environmental Health and Safety
O�cer for all DPW new hires (Strategic Plan Obj. 3.4A)

5.

Continue to work with Town departments on the acquisition and procurement of electric vehicles,
including funding and installation of charging infrastructure while ensuring continuity of service for
Brookline residents. Research and select electric vehicles that best �t the town's needs. Consider
operational and �nancial factors such as range, task, charging infrastructure, and cost. (Strategic
Plan Obj. 1.1F)

6.

Continue to increase Education and Training on Work Zone Safety to better protect Brookline
employees and the public (Strategic Plan Obj. 3.2B)

7.

Improve the Vehicle Preventive Maintenance Schedule Performance. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)8.

Complete the construction of Monmouth Playground (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3B)1.
Commence construction of Skyline Park trails, landscape improvements, comfort station, and
pavilion (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3B)

2.

Completed construction bid documents for Schick Park (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3B)3.
Commence construction of Amory tennis courts, comfort station, parking lot, and Hall's Pond
Boardwalk (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3B)

4.

Complete the updated seven-year Open Space and Recreation Plan (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3)5.
Plan and implement a second Brookline mini-forest in support of the implementation of our Urban
Forest Climate Resilience Master Plan (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.1A)

6.

Complete a Pollinator Garden Plan that outlines the location, care, and maintenance of pollinator
gardens in the public way (Strategic Plan Obj 1.3 and Obj 1.5)

7.

Establish at least one new community garden, possibly in partnership with Brookline Schools, that
utilizes compost generated by Brookline residents through our Black Earth partnership (Strategic
Plan Obj. 5.5)

8.

D l l i id li d b i f l i i i l (S i Pl9

5.A.

Page: 677



FY25 Section 4L DPW

Develop tree planting guidelines and best practices for planting in commercial areas (Strategic Plan
Obj. 1.1, Obj. 1.3, and Obj. 5.1A)

9.

Complete the trail enhancement and rehabilitation at D Blakely Hoar Sanctuary (Strategic Plan Obj
1.3)

10.

Organize a minimum of four new public events in Brookline's parks and open spaces that
encourage stewardship, maintenance, and increased beauti�cation with public support (Strategic
Plan Obj 1.3)

11.

Complete engineering and construction bid documents for the restoration and preservation of
historic structures at Larz Anderson Park (Strategic Plan Obj 1.3)

12.

Design and install at least four accessible public parklets in commercial areas in partnership with
nearby businesses that help with ongoing maintenance and litter removal (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.2)

13.

Conduct a tree inventory of public trees located in at least two Brookline parks and add this dataset
to the existing GIS-based database of trees as outlined in the Urban Forest Climate Resiliency
Master Plan (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.1A)

14.

Continue to inventory, repair, and, as needed, adjust locations of Big Belly trash receptacles on
town and school grounds to support the Town's Rodent Control Action Plan (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1)

15.

Review the current Brookline Wetlands Bylaw and Regulations to more e�ectively incorporate
climate resiliency and adaptation best practices when protecting wetland resource areas (Strategic
Plan Obj 5.1 and Obj 5.5)

16.

FY24 Accomplishments
Administration:

Engineering & Transportation:

Completed the quadrennial Brookline DPW Reaccreditation process with the American Public Works
Association and received full APWA Accreditation Status. (Strategic Plan Guiding Principals 1-5)

1.

Completed the Environmental, Health, and Safety Plan Update with associated department-wide
training for continued compliance with the latest revisions to OSHA regulations (Strategic Plan Obj.
3.4)

2.

Increased Education and Training on Work Zone Safety to better protect Brookline employees and
the public (Strategic Plan Obj. 3.2B)

3.

Continue to update the Department of Public Works website to provide clear, consistent, and
reliable information for residents, businesses, contractors, and utilities (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2)

4.

Commence the negotiation process for assigned employee contracts. (Strategic Plan Obj. 3.2)5.
Provided annual Winter Storm Operations Training to new and existing DPW employees who
respond during snow emergencies. (Strategic Plan Obj. 3.4)

6.

Solid Waste Regulations were updated, presented at a public hearing and adopted by the Select
Board in furtherance of the Rodent Control Action Plan. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1C)

7.

New Tree Protection Regulations were written, presented at a public hearing, and adopted by the
Select Board in accordance with the Tree Preservation Bylaw.

8.

Participated in a multijurisdictional ribbon-cutting celebrating the completion of the Muddy River
Flood Control Project in Brookline and Boston. (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.3C)

9.

Constructed pedestrian, bike, and micro-mobility safety improvements on Beverly Road as part of
the Town's Tra�c Calming and Safe Routes to School programs. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,
2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

1.

Provided continued oversight for and reached �nal completion of the restoration and
reconstruction of the historic Carlton Street Footbridge. The bridge was opened to the public.
(Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

2.

Bid and complete the roadway improvements for the access road through Larz Anderson Park
(Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3, 2.1)

3.

Reconstructed Woodland Road with a focus on "complete streets" and pavement improvement.
S i l Obj

4.

5.A.

Page: 678



FY25 Section 4L DPW

Highway, Sanitation & Fleet Services:

(Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1)
Managed and supported various phases of the engineering, construction bid documents and/or
construction oversight of Murphy Playground, Robinson Playground, and Baker School Tennis
Courts Projects. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

5.

Commenced the Complete Streets Design process of Washington Street with a Design Review
Committee to oversee the creation of a pre-25% concept plan with a strong focus on Complete
Street, including improved safety and access for pedestrians, bicycles, micro-mobility, public transit,
and emergency response vehicles. The project will be funded through the Boston Metropolitan
Planning Organization (MPO). (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.3, 2.3)

6.

Obtained an MVP grant that will help the Town realize a stormwater hydraulic model. This will help
identify vulnerabilities in the Town's system and prioritize solutions to address those vulnerabilities.
(Strategic Plan Obj. 5.2, 5.3)

7.

Completed design and construction associated with improvements on the following Town
controlled roadways (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 2.1): Walnut Street from Dudley Street to Warren
Street (approx. 750 LF), Chestnut Street from Walnut Street to Kendall Street (approx. 1,100 LF),
Short Street from Summit Avenue to Beacon Street (approx. 380 LF), Kenwood Street from
Columbia Street to Harvard Street (approx. 1,100 LF), Russell Street from Columbia Street to
Harvard Street (approx. 900 LF).

8.

Pending permitting, complete the Willow Pond Environmental Restoration Design and Construction
Bid Documents and commence construction on this improvement. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3,
2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 4.5)

9.

Oversaw the retro�t installation of APS pedestrian push buttons and count down timers at various
intersections to improve safety and access for vision-impaired pedestrians. (Strategic Plan Obj.
1.1C)

10.

Completed the Bonded Wearing Course pavement preservation treatment project on Allendale,
Jordan and Summit that used pavement markings to achieve 'complete streets' improvements for
pedestrian, bicycle, and micro-mobility safety and access. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3A, 2.1)

11.

Completed the installation of (14) Level 2 charging ports at the Kent/Webster parking lot.
Completed the installation (20) Level 2 charging ports at the Fuller parking lot. Completed the
installation of (2) Level 3 charging ports on Webster St. Completed the installation of (6) Level 2
charging ports at Town Hall parking lot. Completed the installation of (2) Level 2 ports at Elliot St.
This totals 44 new publicly accessible charging locations in the Town of Brookline completed in
FY24. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1, 1.2, 1.3, 2.1, 2.2, 2.3, 5.1, 5.5)

12.

Commenced a pilot for 3-5 compost drop-o� collection bins within Environmental Justice
neighborhoods and/or near public transit to expand access to composting services to all residents
in Brookline. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.2)

1.

Successfully implemented 311(BrookOnLine) e�ciency project to automate the creation of a work
order from customer service requests. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

2.

Successfully established a working group with multiple town departments to initiate a policy/master
plan regarding the acquisition and procurement of electric vehicles and funding and installation of
charging infrastructure while ensuring continuity of service for Brookline residents. (Strategic Plan
Obj. 1.1F)

3.

Continued adjustments in the pilot program for the use of low-carbon concrete on Town sidewalks
for in-house sidewalk maintenance and repair. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1)

4.

Implemented and grew composting programs in at least four public schools in accordance with the
School Compost Guide. (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.1)

5.

Continued to explore technician training opportunities pertaining to new electric vehicle
technology. (Objective 2.1A)

6.

Implemented an in-house commercial driver's license program, allowing DPW sta� to train and
obtain commercial driver licenses. (Strategic Plan Obj. 3.2B)

7.

Update the annual Snow and Ice Winter Guide with information from Article 7.7 "Removal of Snow
and Ice from Sidewalks that was amended at the Fall 2022 Town Meeting.

8.

D l d � t i l i ith E t t li ibl9

5.A.

Page: 679



FY25 Section 4L DPW

Parks & Open Space:

Developed �eet conversion analysis with Eversource program to convert eligible
vehicles/equipment and support that timeline with the build out infrastructure for EV charging at
the Municipal Service Center, Transfer Station, and Water and Sewer Garage. (Strategic Plan Obj.
1.1F)

9.

Prepared a report for DPW's "Smart Controls" pilot program with the Town's LED Street Lights.
(Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1)

10.

Partnered with the Health and Human Services Department to develop a multi-phase, multi-
department rodent control plan. Phase I included the implementation of new educational materials,
modern smart pest control technologies, a food services consultant, updated Solid Waste
Regulations, updated Outdoor Dining Policy, and the inclusion of Rodent Control on the Town's
BrookOnLine 311 system. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.2, 2.2)

11.

Updated the Snow and Ice Winter Maintenance Plan (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2D)12.
Implemented a pre-season winter snow & ice safety training for all DPW operations employees.
(Strategic Plan Obj. 3.4)

13.

Inspected all APS on Beacon Street and identi�ed the need for system and service upgrades and
maintenance. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1)

14.

Implemented the mattress ban, as mandated by the Department of Environmental Protection, on
November 1, 2022 providing seamless pickup and service to Town residents. (Strategic Plan Obj. 5)

15.

Sta�ed the Solid Waste Advisory Committee Composting Task Force and helped author the Report
on Warrant Article 17 for Townwide Composting (Strategic Plan Obj. 5)

16.

Began the development of an updated Open Space Plan through a robust community engagement
process. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3)

1.

Completed construction of Murphy Playground (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3B)2.
Completed construction of the replacement of the synthetic turf �eld at Skyline Park (Strategic Plan
Obj. 1.3B)

3.

Completed construction on the Baker School Tennis Courts replacement. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3B)4.
Completed construction of Robinson Playground (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3B)5.
Planned and implemented Brookline's �rst Miyawaki Forest in support of the implementation of our
Urban Forest Climate Resilience Master Plan (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.1A)

6.

Designed and installed three accessible public parklets in commercial areas in partnership with
nearby businesses that help with ongoing maintenance and litter removal (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.2)

7.

Implemented interpretive signage to support passive education opportunities in Fisher Hill
Reservoir Park (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3)

8.

Established and implemented sustainable event guidelines for all parks and open space community
events in coordination with the Highway and Sanitation Division (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.1)

9.

Developed Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) for Community Events Marketing, our Public Tree-
Planting Program, and our Green Dog Program Administration and Management (Strategic Plan
Obj. 2.2E)

10.

Finalized and began implementation of the Tree Management Plan for Walnut Hills Cemetery
(Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2)

11.

Conducted a tree inventory of public trees located at Skyline Park and Amory Playground and
added this dataset to the existing GIS-based database of trees as outlined in the Urban Forest
Climate Resiliency Master Plan (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.1A)

12.

Completed a comprehensive audit and digitization of historical burial records for Walnut Hills
Cemetery (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2)

13.

Completed the Design Review process for Monmouth Playground (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3B)14.
Completed the Design Review process for Skyline Park trails, comfort station, and pavilion (Strategic
Plan Obj. 1.3B)

15.

Supported the Economic Development Division and the public art program to beautify and enhance
public spaces (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.3E)

16.

Began a public input process to determine appropriate locations for EV Charging Stations in
Brookline Parks and Open Spaces (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1F)

17.

S t d th T ' R d t C t l A ti Pl b ddi dditi l 22 Bi B ll t h d18

5.A.

Page: 680



FY25 Section 4L DPW

Supported the Town's Rodent Control Action Plan by adding an additional 22 Big Belly trash and
recycling receptacles in the parks and public grounds. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1)

18.

Developed additional space within the Walnut Hills Cemetery for upright markers and full-body
burials. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2 and Obj. 5.1A)

19.

Public Works Detailed

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN

SALARIES

PERMANENT FULL TIME $827,498 $971,588 $1,121,539 $149,951 15%

OVERTIME PAY $2,606 – – $0 –

PART TIME TEMPORARY SAL $11,400 – – $0 –

LONGEVITY PAY $3,750 $5,000 $3,750 -$1,250 -25%

EXTRA COMPENSATION – $1,650 $1,650 $0 0%

SICK PAY BUYOUT $2,265 – – $0 –

VACATION BUYOUT $1,902 – – $0 –

A DAY BUYOUT $13,514 – – $0 –

CLOTHING-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $550 – – $0 –

OFFSET – -$113,127 -$104,963 $8,164 -7%

SALARIES TOTAL $863,484 $865,111 $1,021,976 $156,865 18%

SERVICES

OFFICE EQUIP R & M – $500 $500 $0 0%

D P EQUIP R & M – $1,700 $1,700 $0 0%

COMPUTER SOFTWARE R & M $22,285 $39,200 $29,200 -$10,000 -26%

COPY EQUIP RENTAL/LEASES – $4,270 $4,270 $0 0%

PHOTOCOPY SERVICE CONTRAC $184 $184 $184 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICE $1,890 $10,000 $17,000 $7,000 70%

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS $17,000 $17,000 $27,000 $10,000 59%

DATA COMMUNICATIONS LINES $2,725 – – $0 –

POSTAGE $130 $8,000 $8,000 $0 0%

PRINTING SERVICES $1,100 $16,400 $9,400 -$7,000 -43%

DEED & ATB TRANSFER FEES – $150 $150 $0 0%

SUBSCRIPTIONS – $500 $500 $0 0%

SERVICES TOTAL $45,314 $97,904 $97,904 $0 0%

SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES $3,257 $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

MEALS & RECEPTIONS $8,841 $1,500 $1,500 $0 0%

SUPPLIES TOTAL $12,099 $4,500 $4,500 $0 0%

OTHER

IN STATE TRAVEL -OTHER $2,086 – – $0 –

OUT-OF-STATE BUSINESS MEALS $468 – – $0 –

EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONFERENCES $9,030 $19,000 $19,000 $0 0%

AIRFARE $835 – – $0 –

HOTEL $3,916 – – $0 –

OTHER TRAVEL $517 $900 $900 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL DUES/MEMBERS $3,503 $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

OTHER TOTAL $20,354 $22,900 $22,900 $0 0%

BUDGETED CAPITAL

TRUCKS- BUD – – $255,626 $255,626 –

LEASED COMPUTER EQUIPMENT $9,522 $11,955 $23,995 $12,040 101%

LEASED ROLLING STOCK – – $672,383 $672,383 –

BUD-MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT – – $30,892 $30,892 –

BUDGETED CAPITAL TOTAL $9,522 $11,955 $982,896 $970,941 8,122%

5.A.

Page: 681



FY25 Section 4L DPW

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN TOTAL $950,773 $1,002,370 $2,130,176 $1,127,806 113%

ENGINEERING/TRANSPORTATION

SALARIES

PERMANENT FULL TIME $968,647 $1,440,101 $1,446,593 $6,492 0%

OVERTIME PAY $29,439 $8,710 $8,456 -$254 -3%

LONGEVITY PAY $7,063 $8,450 $5,575 -$2,875 -34%

EXTRA COMPENSATION – $1,600 $1,600 $0 0%

SICK PAY BUYOUT $14,805 – – $0 –

VACATION BUYOUT $29,310 – – $0 –

A DAY BUYOUT $12,055 – – $0 –

CLOTHING-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $2,270 – – $0 –

OFFSET – -$298,560 -$312,268 -$13,708 5%

SALARIES TOTAL $1,063,588 $1,160,301 $1,149,956 -$10,345 -1%

SERVICES

OFFICE EQUIP R & M $1,969 – – $0 –

D P EQUIP R & M $1,080 $4,660 $4,660 $0 0%

OTHER EQUIP R & M – $1,000 $1,000 $0 0%

COPY EQUIP RENTAL/LEASES $2,700 $2,660 $2,660 $0 0%

PHOTOCOPY SERVICE CONTRAC $95 $184 $184 $0 0%

STORAGE RENTALS $187,866 $201,600 $201,600 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICE $37,825 $95,700 $95,700 $0 0%

DATA COMMUNICATIONS LINES $1,894 – – $0 –

PRINTING SERVICES $8,395 $12,000 $12,000 $0 0%

ADVERTISING SERVICES – $200 $200 $0 0%

LICENSES $6,751 $7,000 $7,000 $0 0%

SERVICES TOTAL $248,576 $325,004 $325,004 $0 0%

SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES $6,568 $12,000 $12,000 $0 0%

MEALS & RECEPTIONS $589 – – $0 –

UNIFORMS & PROTECTIVE CLO $121 $2,000 $2,000 $0 0%

SUPPLIES TOTAL $7,278 $14,000 $14,000 $0 0%

OTHER

EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONFERENCES $7,448 $5,000 $5,000 $0 0%

OTHER TOTAL $7,448 $5,000 $5,000 $0 0%

BUDGETED CAPITAL

AUTOMOBILES $52,714 – – $0 –

BUDGETED CAPITAL TOTAL $52,714 – – $0 –

ENGINEERING/TRANSPORTATION TOTAL $1,379,604 $1,504,305 $1,493,960 -$10,345 -1%

HIGHWAY

SALARIES

PERMANENT FULL TIME $2,472,551 $3,411,288 $3,408,815 -$2,472 0%

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL $19,321 $21,716 $21,716 $0 0%

WORKING OUT OF CLASS $8,769 $15,641 $15,641 $0 0%

OVERTIME PAY $20,007 $109,135 $107,835 -$1,300 -1%

OT-SNOW-ROADWAYS $122,326 – – $0 –

OT SNOW FACILITIES $113,257 – – $0 –

OT EMERGENCY $5,093 $25,540 $24,240 -$1,300 -5%

OT SCHEDULED $258,298 $45,982 $45,982 $0 0%

OT SPECIAL EVENTS $33,391 $8,826 $8,826 $0 0%

OT TAXI CAB INSPECTIONS – $2,230 $2,230 $0 0%

LONGEVITY PAY $18,475 $25,250 $19,350 -$5,900 -23%

EXTRA COMPENSATION $9,310 $550 $550 $0 0%

SICK PAY BUYOUT $8,721 – – $0 –

VACATION BUYOUT $17,324 – – $0 –

A DAY BUYOUT $17,176 – – $0 –

CLOTHING-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $19,900 $28,000 $28,000 $0 0%

TOOL ALLOWANCE $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $0 0%

OFFSET – -$86,086 -$86,086 $0 0%

SALARIES TOTAL $3,145,921 $3,610,072 $3,599,099 -$10,972 0%

5.A.

Page: 682



FY25 Section 4L DPW

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

SERVICES

BOTTLED WATER SERVICE $2,120 $1,500 $1,500 $0 0%

OFFICE EQUIP R & M – $500 $500 $0 0%

D P EQUIP R & M – $794 $794 $0 0%

COMPUTER SOFTWARE R & M $6,000 $4,800 $4,800 $0 0%

COMMUNICATIONS EQUIP R & M $2,858 $10,000 $10,000 $0 0%

STREET LIGHTING R & M $18,272 $20,000 $20,000 $0 0%

TRAFFIC SIGNAL R & M $29,426 $40,000 $40,000 $0 0%

MOTOR VEHICLE/EQUIP R & M $257,604 $147,000 $147,000 $0 0%

OTHER EQUIP R & M $38,524 $2,200 $2,200 $0 0%

BUILDING MAINTENANCE $5,225 $4,000 $4,000 $0 0%

COPY EQUIP RENTAL/LEASES $2,202 $3,443 $3,443 $0 0%

PHOTOCOPY SERVICE CONTRAC $38 $75 $75 $0 0%

SOFTWARE LICENSES $2,833 – – $0 –

MOTOR VEHICLE/EQUIP RNTL $157,272 $80,000 $80,000 $0 0%

OTHER RENTALS/LEASES – $1,850 $1,850 $0 0%

BUILDING CLEANING SERVICE $36,540 $45,600 $45,600 $0 0%

TRAFFIC CONTROL PAINTING $93,713 $102,673 $138,673 $36,000 35%

PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICE $7,500 $1,850 $1,850 $0 0%

CONTRACT LABORERS $39,768 $25,600 $25,600 $0 0%

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS $24,063 $23,800 $23,800 $0 0%

POSTAGE $5,745 – – $0 –

PRINTING SERVICES $4,155 – – $0 –

LICENSES $1,008 $1,000 $1,000 $0 0%

UNIFORM CLEANING SERVICES $9,530 $10,000 $10,000 $0 0%

SERVICES TOTAL $744,395 $526,685 $562,685 $36,000 7%

SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES $3,564 $4,000 $4,000 $0 0%

EQUIPMENT MAINT SUPPLIES – $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

PARKING METER PARTS/SUPPLIES $6,635 $31,175 $31,175 $0 0%

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES $11,242 $8,000 $8,000 $0 0%

SNOW & ICE CONTROL SUPP $217,061 $125,000 $125,000 $0 0%

CONSTRUCTION SUPPLIES $108,600 $209,463 $209,463 $0 0%

OILS & LUBRICANTS $26,543 $25,000 $25,000 $0 0%

TIRES $71,222 $43,850 $43,850 $0 0%

MOTOR VEHICLE SUPPLIES $537,660 $273,779 $273,779 $0 0%

BOOKS & PERIODICALS $383 – – $0 –

UNIFORMS & PROTECTIVE CLO $12,880 $10,520 $10,520 $0 0%

SUPPLIES TOTAL $995,791 $733,787 $733,787 $0 0%

OTHER

EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONFERENCES $6,599 $4,000 $4,000 $0 0%

PROPERTY DAMAGE – $2,000 $2,000 $0 0%

OTHER TOTAL $6,599 $6,000 $6,000 $0 0%

UTILITIES

ELECTRICITY $498,185 $508,500 $519,558 $11,058 2%

NATURAL GAS $49,367 $47,794 $50,318 $2,524 5%

GASOLINE $102,295 $68,455 $73,442 $4,987 7%

DIESEL $146,288 $149,992 $161,709 $11,717 8%

WATER $12,613 $12,875 $12,981 $106 1%

UTILITIES TOTAL $808,747 $787,616 $818,008 $30,392 4%

BUDGETED CAPITAL

TRUCKS- BUD $62,520 – – $0 –

LEASED ROLLING STOCK $296,652 $371,922 – -$371,922 -100%

BUD-MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT $15,288 $10,000 – -$10,000 -100%

BUDGETED CAPITAL TOTAL $374,460 $381,922 – -$381,922 -100%

HIGHWAY TOTAL $6,075,913 $6,046,081 $5,719,579 -$326,502 -5%

SANITATION

SALARIES

PERMANENT FULL TIME $907,657 $1,081,330 $1,032,356 -$48,974 -5%

5.A.

Page: 683



FY25 Section 4L DPW

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

WORKING OUT OF CLASS $9,952 $7,587 $7,587 $0 0%

OVERTIME PAY $4,624 $139,318 $139,318 $0 0%

OT EMERGENCY $474 – – $0 –

OT SCHEDULED $142,991 – – $0 –

OT SPECIAL EVENTS $1,284 – – $0 –

PART TIME TEMPORARY SAL $12,132 $66,203 $64,275 -$1,928 -3%

LONGEVITY PAY $4,700 $7,100 $6,850 -$250 -4%

EXTRA COMPENSATION – $550 $550 $0 0%

SICK PAY BUYOUT $1,922 – – $0 –

VACATION BUYOUT $4,793 – – $0 –

A DAY BUYOUT $2,870 – – $0 –

CLOTHING-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $5,400 $6,800 $6,800 $0 0%

SALARIES TOTAL $1,098,797 $1,308,888 $1,257,736 -$51,152 -4%

SERVICES

D P EQUIP R & M – $2,700 $2,700 $0 0%

COMPUTER SOFTWARE R & M $6,140 $11,800 $11,800 $0 0%

OTHER EQUIP R & M $20,456 $5,250 $5,250 $0 0%

OTHER RENTALS/LEASES $8,412 – – $0 –

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL CT $2,753,554 $3,476,775 $3,614,433 $137,658 4%

OFFICE/CLERICAL SERVICES $14,739 $24,000 $24,000 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICE $6,724 $6,540 $6,540 $0 0%

POSTAGE $6,965 – – $0 –

SERVICES TOTAL $2,816,990 $3,527,065 $3,664,723 $137,658 4%

SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES $2,304 $1,000 $1,000 $0 0%

RECYCLING SUPPLIES $66,268 $79,000 $79,000 $0 0%

MEALS & RECEPTIONS $1,065 – – $0 –

CONSTRUCTION SUPPLIES $3,063 $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

UNIFORMS & PROTECTIVE CLO $6,358 $4,640 $4,640 $0 0%

SUPPLIES TOTAL $79,059 $87,640 $87,640 $0 0%

OTHER

EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONFERENCES $4,143 $10,000 $10,000 $0 0%

OTHER TOTAL $4,143 $10,000 $10,000 $0 0%

UTILITIES

ELECTRICITY $11,872 $21,845 $21,110 -$735 -3%

UTILITIES TOTAL $11,872 $21,845 $21,110 -$735 -3%

BUDGETED CAPITAL

LEASED ROLLING STOCK $41,419 $84,336 – -$84,336 -100%

BUDGETED CAPITAL TOTAL $41,419 $84,336 – -$84,336 -100%

SANITATION TOTAL $4,052,281 $5,039,774 $5,041,209 $1,435 0%

PARKS & OPEN SPACES

SALARIES

PERMANENT FULL TIME $2,090,749 $2,392,106 $2,538,718 $146,612 6%

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL $255 $1,957 $1,957 $0 0%

WORKING OUT OF CLASS $1,963 $4,633 $4,633 $0 0%

OVERTIME PAY $22,041 $119,495 $119,295 -$200 0%

OT EMERGENCY $8,136 $26,788 $26,788 $0 0%

OT SCHEDULED $175,992 – – $0 –

OT SPECIAL EVENTS $10,500 $8,418 $8,418 $0 0%

PART TIME TEMPORARY SAL $152,552 $206,961 $206,960 -$1 0%

LONGEVITY PAY $12,683 $19,750 $13,950 -$5,800 -29%

EXTRA COMPENSATION – $9,250 $9,250 $0 0%

SICK PAY BUYOUT $14,963 – – $0 –

VACATION BUYOUT $50,213 – – $0 –

A DAY BUYOUT $5,202 – – $0 –

CLOTHING-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $14,744 $12,000 $12,000 $0 0%

OFFSET – -$150,501 -$150,501 $0 0%

SALARIES TOTAL $2,559,993 $2,650,857 $2,791,468 $140,611 5%

SERVICES

5.A.

Page: 684



FY25 Section 4L DPW

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

BOTTLED WATER SERVICE $947 – – $0 –

OFFICE EQUIP R & M – $200 $200 $0 0%

D P EQUIP R & M – $2,536 $2,536 $0 0%

COMPUTER SOFTWARE R & M – $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

OTHER EQUIP R & M – $50 $50 $0 0%

R & M LARZ PAVILION/RINK $124,863 $122,600 $124,600 $2,000 2%

COPY EQUIP RENTAL/LEASES $810 $1,293 $1,293 $0 0%

PHOTOCOPY SERVICE CONTRAC – $76 $76 $0 0%

EQUIP CLEANING/REPAIR/MAINT $1,565 $3,500 $3,500 $0 0%

LANDSCAPING SERVICES $664,012 $780,860 $800,127 $19,267 2%

EDUCATION/TRAINING SERVIC $90 – – $0 –

GENERAL CONSULT SERVICES $2,196 $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICE $9,720 $5,000 $54,998 $49,998 1,000%

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS $8,896 $9,250 $9,250 $0 0%

PRINTING SERVICES $5,033 $8,000 $8,000 $0 0%

ADVERTISING SERVICES $4,776 $200 $200 $0 0%

LICENSES $790 $1,000 $1,000 $0 0%

PEST CONTROL SERVICES $73 $1,500 $1,500 $0 0%

SUBSCRIPTIONS $720 – – $0 –

SERVICES TOTAL $824,489 $942,065 $1,013,330 $71,265 8%

SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES $6,762 $4,000 $4,000 $0 0%

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES $34,630 $27,000 $27,000 $0 0%

AGRICULTURAL SUPPLIES $90,804 $109,000 $109,000 $0 0%

MEALS & RECEPTIONS $1,589 $50 $50 $0 0%

CONSTRUCTION SUPPLIES $17,060 $43,378 $43,378 $0 0%

BOOKS & PERIODICALS $60 – – $0 –

SAFETY SUPPLIES – $900 $900 $0 0%

UNIFORMS & PROTECTIVE CLO $9,037 $10,630 $10,630 $0 0%

SUPPLIES TOTAL $159,943 $194,958 $194,958 $0 0%

OTHER

EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONFERENCES $8,859 $8,500 $8,500 $0 0%

OTHER TRAVEL $132 $100 $100 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL DUES/MEMBERS $1,793 $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

OTHER TOTAL $10,785 $11,600 $11,600 $0 0%

UTILITIES

ELECTRICITY $40,559 $40,825 $33,331 -$7,494 -18%

NATURAL GAS $16,197 $9,195 $12,118 $2,923 32%

HEATING OIL $1,888 $1,250 $1,250 $0 0%

GASOLINE $55,301 $61,730 $64,036 $2,306 4%

DIESEL $14,513 $25,437 $24,189 -$1,248 -5%

WATER $288,246 $233,862 $295,450 $61,589 26%

UTILITIES TOTAL $416,704 $372,299 $430,374 $58,076 16%

BUDGETED CAPITAL

TRUCKS- BUD $21,627 $58,000 – -$58,000 -100%

LEASED ROLLING STOCK $174,297 $360,017 – -$360,017 -100%

BUD-MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT $14,517 $173,000 – -$173,000 -100%

BUDGETED CAPITAL TOTAL $210,440 $591,017 – -$591,017 -100%

PARKS & OPEN SPACES TOTAL $4,182,354 $4,762,796 $4,441,730 -$321,066 -7%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $16,640,924 $18,355,326 $18,826,654 $471,327 3%

EXPENSES TOTAL $16,640,924 $18,355,326 $18,826,654 $471,327 3%

Public Works Revenue

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Change % Change

Revenues $4,833,312 $4,811,414 $5,088,085 $5,138,085 $50,000 1%

5.A.

Page: 685



FY25 Section 4L DPW

DPW Admin Detailed

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN

SALARIES

PERMANENT FULL TIME $827,498 $971,588 $1,121,539 $149,951 15%

OVERTIME PAY $2,606 – – $0 –

PART TIME TEMPORARY SAL $11,400 – – $0 –

LONGEVITY PAY $3,750 $5,000 $3,750 -$1,250 -25%

EXTRA COMPENSATION – $1,650 $1,650 $0 0%

SICK PAY BUYOUT $2,265 – – $0 –

VACATION BUYOUT $1,902 – – $0 –

A DAY BUYOUT $13,514 – – $0 –

CLOTHING-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $550 – – $0 –

OFFSET – -$113,127 -$104,963 $8,164 -7%

SALARIES TOTAL $863,484 $865,111 $1,021,976 $156,865 18%

SERVICES

OFFICE EQUIP R & M – $500 $500 $0 0%

D P EQUIP R & M – $1,700 $1,700 $0 0%

COMPUTER SOFTWARE R & M $22,285 $39,200 $29,200 -$10,000 -26%

COPY EQUIP RENTAL/LEASES – $4,270 $4,270 $0 0%

PHOTOCOPY SERVICE CONTRAC $184 $184 $184 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICE $1,890 $10,000 $17,000 $7,000 70%

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS $17,000 $17,000 $27,000 $10,000 59%

DATA COMMUNICATIONS LINES $2,725 – – $0 –

POSTAGE $130 $8,000 $8,000 $0 0%

PRINTING SERVICES $1,100 $16,400 $9,400 -$7,000 -43%

DEED & ATB TRANSFER FEES – $150 $150 $0 0%

SUBSCRIPTIONS – $500 $500 $0 0%

SERVICES TOTAL $45,314 $97,904 $97,904 $0 0%

SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES $3,257 $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

MEALS & RECEPTIONS $8,841 $1,500 $1,500 $0 0%

SUPPLIES TOTAL $12,099 $4,500 $4,500 $0 0%

OTHER

IN STATE TRAVEL -OTHER $2,086 – – $0 –

OUT-OF-STATE BUSINESS MEALS $468 – – $0 –

EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONFERENCES $9,030 $19,000 $19,000 $0 0%

AIRFARE $835 – – $0 –

HOTEL $3,916 – – $0 –

OTHER TRAVEL $517 $900 $900 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL DUES/MEMBERS $3,503 $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

OTHER TOTAL $20,354 $22,900 $22,900 $0 0%

BUDGETED CAPITAL

TRUCKS- BUD – – $255,626 $255,626 –

LEASED COMPUTER EQUIPMENT $9,522 $11,955 $23,995 $12,040 101%

LEASED ROLLING STOCK – – $672,383 $672,383 –

BUD-MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT – – $30,892 $30,892 –

BUDGETED CAPITAL TOTAL $9,522 $11,955 $982,896 $970,941 8,122%

PUBLIC WORKS ADMIN TOTAL $950,773 $1,002,370 $2,130,176 $1,127,806 113%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $950,773 $1,002,370 $2,130,176 $1,127,806 113%

EXPENSES TOTAL $950,773 $1,002,370 $2,130,176 $1,127,806 113%

5.A.

Page: 686



FY25 Section 4L DPW

FY25 FTE Salary

10
FTE in 2025

SR OFFICE ASSISTANT ...

ACCT. SYSTEM ASST

ADMIN MANAGER - DPW

COMMISSIONER

Other

DIR HIGHWAY/SANO

DPW Admin

FTE Salary FTE Count

COMMISSIONER 171,632.83 1.00

DIR OF ENG/TRANSPORT 157,636.60 1.00

DIR HIGHWAY/SANO 157,149.20 1.00

DIR SUSTAINABILITY 131,513.70 1.00

DIR PARKS OPEN SPACE 131,513.70 1.00

SR OFFICE ASSISTANT DPW ADMIN 105,798.96 2.00

HEALTH & SAFETY OFFICER 104,963.17 1.00

ADMIN MANAGER - DPW 96,148.47 1.00

ACCT. SYSTEM ASST 65,182.67 1.00

TOTAL 1,121,539.30 10.00

DPW Engineering Detailed

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

ENGINEERING/TRANSPORTATION

SALARIES

PERMANENT FULL TIME $968,647 $1,440,101 $1,446,593 $6,492 0%

OVERTIME PAY $29,439 $8,710 $8,456 -$254 -3%

LONGEVITY PAY $7,063 $8,450 $5,575 -$2,875 -34%

EXTRA COMPENSATION – $1,600 $1,600 $0 0%

SICK PAY BUYOUT $14,805 – – $0 –

VACATION BUYOUT $29,310 – – $0 –

A DAY BUYOUT $12,055 – – $0 –

CLOTHING-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $2,270 – – $0 –

OFFSET – -$298,560 -$312,268 -$13,708 5%

SALARIES TOTAL $1,063,588 $1,160,301 $1,149,956 -$10,345 -1%

SERVICES

OFFICE EQUIP R & M $1,969 – – $0 –

D P EQUIP R & M $1,080 $4,660 $4,660 $0 0%

OTHER EQUIP R & M – $1,000 $1,000 $0 0%

COPY EQUIP RENTAL/LEASES $2,700 $2,660 $2,660 $0 0%

PHOTOCOPY SERVICE CONTRAC $95 $184 $184 $0 0%

DPW Admin

Data Updated Feb 15, 2024,
10:20 PM

5.A.

Page: 687



FY25 Section 4L DPW

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

STORAGE RENTALS $187,866 $201,600 $201,600 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICE $37,825 $95,700 $95,700 $0 0%

DATA COMMUNICATIONS LINES $1,894 – – $0 –

PRINTING SERVICES $8,395 $12,000 $12,000 $0 0%

ADVERTISING SERVICES – $200 $200 $0 0%

LICENSES $6,751 $7,000 $7,000 $0 0%

SERVICES TOTAL $248,576 $325,004 $325,004 $0 0%

SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES $6,568 $12,000 $12,000 $0 0%

MEALS & RECEPTIONS $589 – – $0 –

UNIFORMS & PROTECTIVE CLO $121 $2,000 $2,000 $0 0%

SUPPLIES TOTAL $7,278 $14,000 $14,000 $0 0%

OTHER

EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONFERENCES $7,448 $5,000 $5,000 $0 0%

OTHER TOTAL $7,448 $5,000 $5,000 $0 0%

BUDGETED CAPITAL

AUTOMOBILES $52,714 – – $0 –

BUDGETED CAPITAL TOTAL $52,714 – – $0 –

ENGINEERING/TRANSPORTATION TOTAL $1,379,604 $1,504,305 $1,493,960 -$10,345 -1%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $1,379,604 $1,504,305 $1,493,960 -$10,345 -1%

EXPENSES TOTAL $1,379,604 $1,504,305 $1,493,960 -$10,345 -1%

DPW Transportation Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

ENGINEERING/TRANSPORTATION

SALARIES $321,884 $400,439 $401,924 $1,485 0%

SERVICES $228,437 $263,460 $263,460 $0 0%

SUPPLIES $5,612 $6,000 $6,000 $0 0%

ENGINEERING/TRANSPORTATION TOTAL $555,933 $669,899 $671,384 $1,485 0%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $555,933 $669,899 $671,384 $1,485 0%

EXPENSES TOTAL $555,933 $669,899 $671,384 $1,485 0%

FY25 FTE Salary

15
FTE in 2025

CIVIL ENGINEER IV

CIVIL ENGINEER III

CIVIL ENGINEER V

Other

PERMIT INSPECTOR

ADMIN ASSISTANT - DP...

DPW Engineering

Data Updated Feb 15, 2024,
10:20 PM

5.A.

Page: 688



FY25 Section 4L DPW

DPW Engineering

FTE Salary FTE Count

ASST DIR OF ENGINEERING 122,827.00 1.00

TRANSPORTATION ADMIN 103,127.49 1.00

SUSTAINABLE TRANS ENGINEER 111,784.21 1.00

CIVIL ENGINEER V 232,600.37 2.00

PROJECT COORDINATOR 116,300.19 1.00

TRANSPORT ENGINEER 95,193.49 1.00

CIVIL ENGINEER IV 292,008.88 3.00

CIVIL ENGINEER III 172,692.74 2.00

PERMIT INSPECTOR 93,299.42 1.00

ADMIN ASSISTANT - DPW ENG 117,802.35 2.00

TOTAL 1,457,636.13 15.00

DPW Highway Detailed

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

HIGHWAY

SALARIES

PERMANENT FULL TIME $2,472,551 $3,411,288 $3,408,815 -$2,472 0%

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL $19,321 $21,716 $21,716 $0 0%

WORKING OUT OF CLASS $8,769 $15,641 $15,641 $0 0%

OVERTIME PAY $20,007 $109,135 $107,835 -$1,300 -1%

OT-SNOW-ROADWAYS $122,326 – – $0 –

OT SNOW FACILITIES $113,257 – – $0 –

OT EMERGENCY $5,093 $25,540 $24,240 -$1,300 -5%

OT SCHEDULED $258,298 $45,982 $45,982 $0 0%

OT SPECIAL EVENTS $33,391 $8,826 $8,826 $0 0%

OT TAXI CAB INSPECTIONS – $2,230 $2,230 $0 0%

LONGEVITY PAY $18,475 $25,250 $19,350 -$5,900 -23%

EXTRA COMPENSATION $9,310 $550 $550 $0 0%

SICK PAY BUYOUT $8,721 – – $0 –

VACATION BUYOUT $17,324 – – $0 –

A DAY BUYOUT $17,176 – – $0 –

CLOTHING-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $19,900 $28,000 $28,000 $0 0%

TOOL ALLOWANCE $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $0 0%

OFFSET – -$86,086 -$86,086 $0 0%

SALARIES TOTAL $3,145,921 $3,610,072 $3,599,099 -$10,972 0%

SERVICES

BOTTLED WATER SERVICE $2,120 $1,500 $1,500 $0 0%

OFFICE EQUIP R & M – $500 $500 $0 0%

D P EQUIP R & M – $794 $794 $0 0%

COMPUTER SOFTWARE R & M $6,000 $4,800 $4,800 $0 0%

COMMUNICATIONS EQUIP R & M $2,858 $10,000 $10,000 $0 0%

STREET LIGHTING R & M $18,272 $20,000 $20,000 $0 0%

TRAFFIC SIGNAL R & M $29,426 $40,000 $40,000 $0 0%

MOTOR VEHICLE/EQUIP R & M $257,604 $147,000 $147,000 $0 0%

OTHER EQUIP R & M $38,524 $2,200 $2,200 $0 0%

BUILDING MAINTENANCE $5,225 $4,000 $4,000 $0 0%

COPY EQUIP RENTAL/LEASES $2,202 $3,443 $3,443 $0 0%

PHOTOCOPY SERVICE CONTRAC $38 $75 $75 $0 0%

SOFTWARE LICENSES $2,833 – – $0 –

MOTOR VEHICLE/EQUIP RNTL $157,272 $80,000 $80,000 $0 0%

OTHER RENTALS/LEASES – $1,850 $1,850 $0 0%

BUILDING CLEANING SERVICE $36,540 $45,600 $45,600 $0 0%

5.A.

Page: 689



FY25 Section 4L DPW

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

TRAFFIC CONTROL PAINTING $93,713 $102,673 $138,673 $36,000 35%

PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICE $7,500 $1,850 $1,850 $0 0%

CONTRACT LABORERS $39,768 $25,600 $25,600 $0 0%

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS $24,063 $23,800 $23,800 $0 0%

POSTAGE $5,745 – – $0 –

PRINTING SERVICES $4,155 – – $0 –

LICENSES $1,008 $1,000 $1,000 $0 0%

UNIFORM CLEANING SERVICES $9,530 $10,000 $10,000 $0 0%

SERVICES TOTAL $744,395 $526,685 $562,685 $36,000 7%

SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES $3,564 $4,000 $4,000 $0 0%

EQUIPMENT MAINT SUPPLIES – $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

PARKING METER PARTS/SUPPLIES $6,635 $31,175 $31,175 $0 0%

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES $11,242 $8,000 $8,000 $0 0%

SNOW & ICE CONTROL SUPP $217,061 $125,000 $125,000 $0 0%

CONSTRUCTION SUPPLIES $108,600 $209,463 $209,463 $0 0%

OILS & LUBRICANTS $26,543 $25,000 $25,000 $0 0%

TIRES $71,222 $43,850 $43,850 $0 0%

MOTOR VEHICLE SUPPLIES $537,660 $273,779 $273,779 $0 0%

BOOKS & PERIODICALS $383 – – $0 –

UNIFORMS & PROTECTIVE CLO $12,880 $10,520 $10,520 $0 0%

SUPPLIES TOTAL $995,791 $733,787 $733,787 $0 0%

OTHER

EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONFERENCES $6,599 $4,000 $4,000 $0 0%

PROPERTY DAMAGE – $2,000 $2,000 $0 0%

OTHER TOTAL $6,599 $6,000 $6,000 $0 0%

UTILITIES

ELECTRICITY $498,185 $508,500 $519,558 $11,058 2%

NATURAL GAS $49,367 $47,794 $50,318 $2,524 5%

GASOLINE $102,295 $68,455 $73,442 $4,987 7%

DIESEL $146,288 $149,992 $161,709 $11,717 8%

WATER $12,613 $12,875 $12,981 $106 1%

UTILITIES TOTAL $808,747 $787,616 $818,008 $30,392 4%

BUDGETED CAPITAL

TRUCKS- BUD $62,520 – – $0 –

LEASED ROLLING STOCK $296,652 $371,922 – -$371,922 -100%

BUD-MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT $15,288 $10,000 – -$10,000 -100%

BUDGETED CAPITAL TOTAL $374,460 $381,922 – -$381,922 -100%

HIGHWAY TOTAL $6,075,913 $6,046,081 $5,719,579 -$326,502 -5%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $6,075,913 $6,046,081 $5,719,579 -$326,502 -5%

EXPENSES TOTAL $6,075,913 $6,046,081 $5,719,579 -$326,502 -5%

DPW Road Maintenance Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

HIGHWAY

SALARIES $695,920 $1,080,130 $1,079,192 -$938 0%

SERVICES $5,455 $6,203 $6,203 $0 0%

SUPPLIES $64,978 $136,776 $136,776 $0 0%

OTHER $4,599 $2,000 $2,000 $0 0%

BUDGETED CAPITAL $253,089 $241,222 – -$241,222 -100%

HIGHWAY TOTAL $1,024,041 $1,466,331 $1,224,171 -$242,160 -17%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $1,024,041 $1,466,331 $1,224,171 -$242,160 -17%

EXPENSES TOTAL $1,024,041 $1,466,331 $1,224,171 -$242,160 -17%

5.A.

Page: 690



FY25 Section 4L DPW

DPW Cleaning Subdivison

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

HIGHWAY

SALARIES $722,087 $904,189 $900,902 -$3,286 0%

SERVICES $440 $776 $776 $0 0%

SUPPLIES $4,056 $6,900 $6,900 $0 0%

BUDGETED CAPITAL $90,149 $90,149 – -$90,149 -100%

HIGHWAY TOTAL $816,732 $1,002,014 $908,578 -$93,435 -9%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $816,732 $1,002,014 $908,578 -$93,435 -9%

EXPENSES TOTAL $816,732 $1,002,014 $908,578 -$93,435 -9%

DPW Snow Removal Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

HIGHWAY

SALARIES $255,210 $112,052 $110,752 -$1,300 -1%

SERVICES $245,983 $134,185 $134,185 $0 0%

SUPPLIES $413,490 $163,268 $163,268 $0 0%

OTHER $2,000 $2,000 $2,000 $0 0%

BUDGETED CAPITAL – $50,551 – -$50,551 -100%

HIGHWAY TOTAL $916,682 $462,056 $410,205 -$51,851 -11%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $916,682 $462,056 $410,205 -$51,851 -11%

EXPENSES TOTAL $916,682 $462,056 $410,205 -$51,851 -11%

DPW Traffic Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

HIGHWAY

SALARIES $578,067 $614,310 $614,573 $263 0%

SERVICES $142,086 $169,449 $205,449 $36,000 21%

SUPPLIES $55,376 $96,665 $96,665 $0 0%

UTILITIES $397,753 $398,500 $417,922 $19,422 5%

BUDGETED CAPITAL $31,222 – – $0 –

HIGHWAY TOTAL $1,204,504 $1,278,924 $1,334,609 $55,685 4%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $1,204,504 $1,278,924 $1,334,609 $55,685 4%

EXPENSES TOTAL $1,204,504 $1,278,924 $1,334,609 $55,685 4%

DPW M.E. Maintenance Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

HIGHWAY

SALARIES $894,636 $899,391 $893,680 -$5,711 -1%

SERVICES $350,431 $216,072 $216,072 $0 0%

SUPPLIES $457,891 $330,178 $330,178 $0 0%

5.A.

Page: 691



FY25 Section 4L DPW

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

OTHER – $2,000 $2,000 $0 0%

UTILITIES $410,994 $389,116 $400,086 $10,970 3%

HIGHWAY TOTAL $2,113,952 $1,836,757 $1,842,016 $5,259 0%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $2,113,952 $1,836,757 $1,842,016 $5,259 0%

EXPENSES TOTAL $2,113,952 $1,836,757 $1,842,016 $5,259 0%

FY25 FTE Salary

51
FTE in 2025

MEO 2 HWY

WORKING FOREMAN HWY

MTR EQUIP REPAIRPERS...

Other

HIGHWAY CRAFTSPERSON
MEO 3 HWY

DPW Highway

FTE Salary FTE Count

FLEET SUPERVISOR 99,994.47 1.00

OPERATIONS MANAGER HWY 99,994.47 1.00

GEN FOREMAN HWY - DPW HWY 89,533.44 1.00

TRAF/FR ALARMSYSSUPV 92,395.57 1.00

MER FOREMAN HWY - DPW HWY 84,651.17 1.00

SUPT OF FIRE ALARM 85,940.11 1.00

CONSTR SUPV HWY 73,787.83 1.00

SIGNAL MAINTAINER 72,120.10 1.00

TRAF SYS TECHNICIAN 69,498.71 1.00

ADMIN ASSISTANT HWY 64,153.39 1.00

WORKING FOREMAN MER HWY - DPW HWY 138,998.29 2.00

WELDER/METAL FAB 69,498.71 1.00

SUPV CONSTR TRADES HWY 69,498.71 1.00

WORKING FOREMAN HWY 402,561.65 6.00

MTR EQUIP REPAIRPERS HWY 335,468.04 5.00

STOREKEEPER HWY 67,092.54 1.00

MEO 3 HWY 263,055.46 4.00

MASON 59,086.82 1.00

HIGHWAY CRAFTSPERSON 118,174.58 2.00

CARP LAB CRAFTSPER - DPW HWY 59,083.61 1.00

MEO 2 HWY 768,134.33 13.00

PAINTER AND LABORER 113,046.34 2.00

MEO 1 HWY 113,046.34 2.00

TOTAL 3,408,814.66 51.00

DPW Highway

Data Updated Feb 15, 2024,
10:20 PM

5.A.

Page: 692



FY25 Section 4L DPW

DPW Sanitation Detailed

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

SANITATION

SALARIES

PERMANENT FULL TIME $907,657 $1,081,330 $1,032,356 -$48,974 -5%

WORKING OUT OF CLASS $9,952 $7,587 $7,587 $0 0%

OVERTIME PAY $4,624 $139,318 $139,318 $0 0%

OT EMERGENCY $474 – – $0 –

OT SCHEDULED $142,991 – – $0 –

OT SPECIAL EVENTS $1,284 – – $0 –

PART TIME TEMPORARY SAL $12,132 $66,203 $64,275 -$1,928 -3%

LONGEVITY PAY $4,700 $7,100 $6,850 -$250 -4%

EXTRA COMPENSATION – $550 $550 $0 0%

SICK PAY BUYOUT $1,922 – – $0 –

VACATION BUYOUT $4,793 – – $0 –

A DAY BUYOUT $2,870 – – $0 –

CLOTHING-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $5,400 $6,800 $6,800 $0 0%

SALARIES TOTAL $1,098,797 $1,308,888 $1,257,736 -$51,152 -4%

SERVICES

D P EQUIP R & M – $2,700 $2,700 $0 0%

COMPUTER SOFTWARE R & M $6,140 $11,800 $11,800 $0 0%

OTHER EQUIP R & M $20,456 $5,250 $5,250 $0 0%

OTHER RENTALS/LEASES $8,412 – – $0 –

SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL CT $2,753,554 $3,476,775 $3,614,433 $137,658 4%

OFFICE/CLERICAL SERVICES $14,739 $24,000 $24,000 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICE $6,724 $6,540 $6,540 $0 0%

POSTAGE $6,965 – – $0 –

SERVICES TOTAL $2,816,990 $3,527,065 $3,664,723 $137,658 4%

SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES $2,304 $1,000 $1,000 $0 0%

RECYCLING SUPPLIES $66,268 $79,000 $79,000 $0 0%

MEALS & RECEPTIONS $1,065 – – $0 –

CONSTRUCTION SUPPLIES $3,063 $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

UNIFORMS & PROTECTIVE CLO $6,358 $4,640 $4,640 $0 0%

SUPPLIES TOTAL $79,059 $87,640 $87,640 $0 0%

OTHER

EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONFERENCES $4,143 $10,000 $10,000 $0 0%

OTHER TOTAL $4,143 $10,000 $10,000 $0 0%

UTILITIES

ELECTRICITY $11,872 $21,845 $21,110 -$735 -3%

UTILITIES TOTAL $11,872 $21,845 $21,110 -$735 -3%

BUDGETED CAPITAL

LEASED ROLLING STOCK $41,419 $84,336 – -$84,336 -100%

BUDGETED CAPITAL TOTAL $41,419 $84,336 – -$84,336 -100%

SANITATION TOTAL $4,052,281 $5,039,774 $5,041,209 $1,435 0%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $4,052,281 $5,039,774 $5,041,209 $1,435 0%

EXPENSES TOTAL $4,052,281 $5,039,774 $5,041,209 $1,435 0%

5.A.

Page: 693



FY25 Section 4L DPW

FY25 FTE Salary

17.07
FTE in 2025

MEO 2 - SANITATION

SANO TRUCK SUPERV

Other

ENVIRO HEALTH SPEC

ASSIST RECYL COOR

LABORER - DPW SANITA...

DPW Sanitation

FTE Salary FTE Count

CODE ENFORCE INSPECT SVCS MGR 83,163.69 1.00

ENVIRO HEALTH SUPV 88,030.24 1.00

ZERO WASTE PROGRAM MGR 84,644.25 1.00

SANITATION FOREMAN 75,004.73 1.00

ENVIRO HEALTH SPEC 70,949.20 1.00

ASSIST RECYL COOR 60,436.12 1.00

SANO TRUCK SUPERV 263,055.46 4.00

MEO 2 - SANITATION 236,347.00 4.00

TRSFR STA SCALE OPER 70,724.82 1.00

LABORER - DPW SANITATION 64,274.94 2.07

TOTAL 1,096,630.45 17.07

DPW Sanitation

Data Updated Feb 15, 2024,
10:20 PM

5.A.

Page: 694



FY25 Section 4L DPW

5.A.

Page: 695



FY25 Section 4L DPW

Powered by OpenGov

5.A.

Page: 696

https://opengov.com/


FY25 Section 4LA DPW Parks

DPW Parks Detailed

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PARKS & OPEN SPACES

SALARIES

PERMANENT FULL TIME $2,090,749 $2,392,106 $2,538,718 $146,612 6%

SHIFT DIFFERENTIAL $255 $1,957 $1,957 $0 0%

WORKING OUT OF CLASS $1,963 $4,633 $4,633 $0 0%

OVERTIME PAY $22,041 $119,495 $119,295 -$200 0%

OT EMERGENCY $8,136 $26,788 $26,788 $0 0%

OT SCHEDULED $175,992 – – $0 –

OT SPECIAL EVENTS $10,500 $8,418 $8,418 $0 0%

PART TIME TEMPORARY SAL $152,552 $206,961 $206,960 -$1 0%

LONGEVITY PAY $12,683 $19,750 $13,950 -$5,800 -29%

EXTRA COMPENSATION – $9,250 $9,250 $0 0%

SICK PAY BUYOUT $14,963 – – $0 –

VACATION BUYOUT $50,213 – – $0 –

A DAY BUYOUT $5,202 – – $0 –

CLOTHING-UNIFORM ALLOWANCE $14,744 $12,000 $12,000 $0 0%

OFFSET – -$150,501 -$150,501 $0 0%

SALARIES TOTAL $2,559,993 $2,650,857 $2,791,468 $140,611 5%

SERVICES

BOTTLED WATER SERVICE $947 – – $0 –

OFFICE EQUIP R & M – $200 $200 $0 0%

D P EQUIP R & M – $2,536 $2,536 $0 0%

COMPUTER SOFTWARE R & M – $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

OTHER EQUIP R & M – $50 $50 $0 0%

R & M LARZ PAVILION/RINK $124,863 $122,600 $124,600 $2,000 2%

COPY EQUIP RENTAL/LEASES $810 $1,293 $1,293 $0 0%

PHOTOCOPY SERVICE CONTRAC – $76 $76 $0 0%

EQUIP CLEANING/REPAIR/MAINT $1,565 $3,500 $3,500 $0 0%

LANDSCAPING SERVICES $664,012 $780,860 $800,127 $19,267 2%

EDUCATION/TRAINING SERVIC $90 – – $0 –

GENERAL CONSULT SERVICES $2,196 $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL/TECH SERVICE $9,720 $5,000 $54,998 $49,998 1,000%

WIRELESS COMMUNICATIONS $8,896 $9,250 $9,250 $0 0%

PRINTING SERVICES $5,033 $8,000 $8,000 $0 0%

ADVERTISING SERVICES $4,776 $200 $200 $0 0%

LICENSES $790 $1,000 $1,000 $0 0%

PEST CONTROL SERVICES $73 $1,500 $1,500 $0 0%

SUBSCRIPTIONS $720 – – $0 –

SERVICES TOTAL $824,489 $942,065 $1,013,330 $71,265 8%

SUPPLIES

OFFICE SUPPLIES $6,762 $4,000 $4,000 $0 0%

MAINTENANCE SUPPLIES $34,630 $27,000 $27,000 $0 0%

AGRICULTURAL SUPPLIES $90,804 $109,000 $109,000 $0 0%

MEALS & RECEPTIONS $1,589 $50 $50 $0 0%

CONSTRUCTION SUPPLIES $17,060 $43,378 $43,378 $0 0%

BOOKS & PERIODICALS $60 – – $0 –

SAFETY SUPPLIES – $900 $900 $0 0%

UNIFORMS & PROTECTIVE CLO $9,037 $10,630 $10,630 $0 0%

SUPPLIES TOTAL $159,943 $194,958 $194,958 $0 0%

OTHER

EDUCATION/TRAINING/CONFERENCES $8,859 $8,500 $8,500 $0 0%

OTHER TRAVEL $132 $100 $100 $0 0%

PROFESSIONAL DUES/MEMBERS $1,793 $3,000 $3,000 $0 0%

5.A.

Page: 697



FY25 Section 4LA DPW Parks

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

OTHER TOTAL $10,785 $11,600 $11,600 $0 0%

UTILITIES

ELECTRICITY $40,559 $40,825 $33,331 -$7,494 -18%

NATURAL GAS $16,197 $9,195 $12,118 $2,923 32%

HEATING OIL $1,888 $1,250 $1,250 $0 0%

GASOLINE $55,301 $61,730 $64,036 $2,306 4%

DIESEL $14,513 $25,437 $24,189 -$1,248 -5%

WATER $288,246 $233,862 $295,450 $61,589 26%

UTILITIES TOTAL $416,704 $372,299 $430,374 $58,076 16%

BUDGETED CAPITAL

TRUCKS- BUD $21,627 $58,000 – -$58,000 -100%

LEASED ROLLING STOCK $174,297 $360,017 – -$360,017 -100%

BUD-MAINTENANCE EQUIPMENT $14,517 $173,000 – -$173,000 -100%

BUDGETED CAPITAL TOTAL $210,440 $591,017 – -$591,017 -100%

PARKS & OPEN SPACES TOTAL $4,182,354 $4,762,796 $4,441,730 -$321,066 -7%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $4,182,354 $4,762,796 $4,441,730 -$321,066 -7%

EXPENSES TOTAL $4,182,354 $4,762,796 $4,441,730 -$321,066 -7%

DPW Parks Conservation Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PARKS & OPEN SPACES

SALARIES $111,487 $135,635 $215,362 $79,727 59%

SERVICES $2,196 $5,300 $5,300 $0 0%

SUPPLIES $1,941 $1,500 $1,500 $0 0%

OTHER $2,978 $2,100 $2,100 $0 0%

PARKS & OPEN SPACES TOTAL $118,602 $144,535 $224,262 $79,727 55%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $118,602 $144,535 $224,262 $79,727 55%

EXPENSES TOTAL $118,602 $144,535 $224,262 $79,727 55%

DPW Parks Public Grounds Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PARKS & OPEN SPACES

SALARIES $1,038,167 $1,098,258 $1,190,853 $92,595 8%

SERVICES $610,152 $633,537 $647,714 $14,177 2%

SUPPLIES $98,660 $139,780 $139,780 $0 0%

OTHER $7,807 $9,000 $9,000 $0 0%

UTILITIES $371,430 $336,469 $383,829 $47,361 14%

BUDGETED CAPITAL $183,954 $125,871 – -$125,871 -100%

PARKS & OPEN SPACES TOTAL $2,310,169 $2,342,915 $2,371,176 $28,261 1%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $2,310,169 $2,342,915 $2,371,176 $28,261 1%

EXPENSES TOTAL $2,310,169 $2,342,915 $2,371,176 $28,261 1%

5.A.

Page: 698



FY25 Section 4LA DPW Parks

DPW Parks School Grounds Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PARKS & OPEN SPACES

SALARIES $828,482 $789,121 $716,399 -$72,722 -9%

SERVICES $50,818 $118,177 $121,027 $2,850 2%

SUPPLIES $46,762 $43,698 $43,698 $0 0%

UTILITIES $41,898 $32,445 $42,945 $10,500 32%

BUDGETED CAPITAL – $54,933 – -$54,933 -100%

PARKS & OPEN SPACES TOTAL $967,961 $1,038,374 $924,069 -$114,305 -11%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $967,961 $1,038,374 $924,069 -$114,305 -11%

EXPENSES TOTAL $967,961 $1,038,374 $924,069 -$114,305 -11%

DPW Parks Forestry Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PARKS & OPEN SPACES

SALARIES $234,036 $318,717 $451,912 $133,195 42%

SERVICES $160,973 $171,015 $175,253 $4,238 2%

SUPPLIES $10,392 $6,600 $6,600 $0 0%

BUDGETED CAPITAL $26,486 $410,213 – -$410,213 -100%

PARKS & OPEN SPACES TOTAL $431,888 $906,545 $633,765 -$272,780 -30%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $431,888 $906,545 $633,765 -$272,780 -30%

EXPENSES TOTAL $431,888 $906,545 $633,765 -$272,780 -30%

DPW Parks Cemetery Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PARKS & OPEN SPACES

SALARIES $238,238 $237,715 $216,942 -$20,773 -9%

SERVICES $350 $14,036 $14,036 $0 0%

SUPPLIES $2,187 $3,380 $3,380 $0 0%

OTHER – $500 $500 $0 0%

UTILITIES $3,375 $3,385 $3,600 $215 6%

PARKS & OPEN SPACES TOTAL $244,150 $259,016 $238,458 -$20,558 -8%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $244,150 $259,016 $238,458 -$20,558 -8%

EXPENSES TOTAL $244,150 $259,016 $238,458 -$20,558 -8%

5.A.

Page: 699



FY25 Section 4LA DPW Parks

DPW Parks Sustainability

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

PARKS & OPEN SPACES

SERVICES – – $50,000 $50,000 –

PARKS & OPEN SPACES TOTAL – – $50,000 $50,000 –

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL – – $50,000 $50,000 –

EXPENSES TOTAL – – $50,000 $50,000 –

5.A.

Page: 700



FY25 Section 4LA DPW Parks

FY25 FTE Salary

45.84
FTE in 2025

GARDENER LABORER - D...

PARK MAINTENANCE CRA...

TEMP LABORER - PARKS

Other

MEO III - DPW PARKS
ZONE MANAGER

DPW Parks

FTE Salary FTE Count

SENIOR LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT 108,733.10 1.00

TREE WARDEN 103,127.49 1.00

OPERATIONS MANAGER - PARKS 99,994.00 1.00

CONSERVATION ADMINISTRATOR 99,994.47 1.00

GENERAL FOREMAN - DPW PARKS 91,010.24 1.00

GENERAL FOREMAN - FORESTRY 88,079.67 1.00

LANDSCAPE PLANNER/ARCHITECT 91,551.27 1.00

CODE ENFORCEMENT SUPERVISOR 85,602.61 1.00

CEMETERY SUPERVISOR 72,589.84 1.00

FORESTRY SUPERVISOR 75,004.73 1.00

MEO III - FORESTRY 65,764.07 1.00

ADMINISTRATIVE ASSISTANT - DPW PARKS 64,153.20 1.00

CONSERVATION ASSISTANT 59,073.70 1.00

PARK RANGER 70,949.20 1.00

ZONE MANAGER 268,374.42 4.00

FORESTRY ZONE MANAGER 67,093.60 1.00

MEO III - DPW PARKS 131,528.14 2.00

GARDENER LABORER - DPW PARKS 621,754.88 11.00

TEMP LABORER - PARKS 150,006.11 4.79

PARK RANGER - PT 56,454.30 1.75

STUDENT INTERN PARKS 500.00 0.30

PARK MAINTENANCE CRAFTSMAN 354,522.34 6.00

ATHLETIC FIELDS SUPV 72,590.00 1.00

TOTAL 2,898,451.39 45.84

DPW Parks

Data Updated Feb 15, 2024,
10:20 PM

5.A.

Page: 701



FY25 Section 4LA DPW Parks

Powered by OpenGov

5.A.

Page: 702

https://opengov.com/


FY25 Section 4M DPW (Water & Sewer)

Town of Brookline FY25 Program Budget
Public Facilities l Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund

Program Description
The Water and Sewer Division is responsible for operating and maintaining the 
municipal water distribution system, the sanitary sewer system, and the stormwater 
collection system in accordance with industry standards and all applicable federal, 
state, and local regulations, including those promulgated by the Massachusetts 
Water Resources Authority (MWRA). The Division is also responsible for monitoring 
and making recommendations for improvements in water conservation and usage 
at Town-owned facilities. The goals of the Division are to provide adequate and 
reliable water for domestic use and �re protection and to safely collect and convey 
wastewater from homes, businesses, institutions, and roadways. The speci�c 
functions are outlined under the Water and Sewer Sub-programs below.

The �nances are handled via an Enterprise Fund, which was established by Town 
Meeting in 2001 when the provisions of Chapter 44, Section 53F1/2 were accepted.  
Prior to that vote, the Water and Sewer operations were accounted for in the 
General Fund.  Treating the Water and Sewer operation as an enterprise fund allows 
for the use of the full accrual basis of accounting, a requirement of the Government 
Accounting Standards Board's (GASB) statement #34.  The Enterprise Fund fully 
reimburses the General Fund for expenses incurred on behalf of the water and 
sewer operation, including fringe bene�ts.

The Water Sub-program is responsible for maintaining and operating the municipal 
water distribution system in accordance with industry standards promulgated by 
the American Water Works Association and all applicable state and federal 
regulations.  The goals of the Division are to provide adequate and reliable water for 
domestic use and �re protection while promoting the health, safety, and welfare of 
the community.  The speci�c functions of the Sub-program are:

1.  Maintenance and repair of 136 miles of water mains, 11,060 service connections, 
1,506 hydrants, and 2,032 valves;
2.  Maintenance of 11,060 water meters;

5.A.

Page: 703



FY25 Section 4M DPW (Water & Sewer)

3.  Investigation of customer complaints for high bills, poor pressure, and leaks;
4.  Maintenance of public water supply services, reservoirs, and grounds;
5.  Snow removal from �re hydrants;
6.  Processing of water and sewer utility invoices;
7.  Inspection of public and private plumbing systems in compliance with state 
regulations for cross-connection control; and,
8.  Administration of programs to promote water conservation.

The Sewer Sub-program is responsible for maintaining and operating the municipal 
sewer and surface water drain systems in accordance with all applicable state, 
federal, and MWRA regulations for the collection and discharge of wastewater.  The 
speci�c functions of the Sub-program are:

1. Operate, maintain, and repair 111 miles of sewer mains and 117 miles of surface 
water drains;
2. Clean, maintain, and repair 3,296 catch basins and 1,675 manhole structures;
3. Remove snow from catch basins to provide for roadway drainage during storms; 
4. Investigate customer complaints for sewer backups and drainage problems;
5. Perform investigations and analyses to determine system capacity and structural 
de�ciencies.

FY25 Objectives 
Following the Department of Public Works Strategic Plan, the Water and Sewer 
Division continues to focus on promoting the health, safety, welfare, and economic 
vitality of the community by providing adequate and reliable water for domestic use 
and �re protection and safely collecting and conveying wastewater and stormwater 
from homes, businesses, institutions, and roadways. The following is a list of goals 
and objectives for the new �scal year:

Complete the Meter Transmission Unit (MTU) swap to improve the reliability
and accuracy of water usage readings. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

1.

Continue the multi-year water meter replacement program to increase the
accuracy of the readings and avoid losses in revenue from under-registration.
(Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

2.

Utilize the results of the Lead Service Line Inventory to develop and implement a
plan to remove the lead lines from the system in accordance with DEP rules and
regulations. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

3.

Continue CCTV pipeline inspection of the sewer and drain systems by
identifying and recording areas for further rehabilitation and locating problem
areas for immediate repair. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1I, 5.2)

4.

Continue annual water main and service pipe leak detection with Water and
Sewer Division personnel for better e�ciency and cost reduction, while working
toward the reduction of unaccounted-for-water in the distribution system and
the reduction of average daily water use (Strategic Plan Obj 5 4)

5.

5.A.

Page: 704



FY25 Section 4M DPW (Water & Sewer)

FY24 Accomplishments
The Water and Sewer Division is pleased to report on the following 
accomplishments for FY24:

the reduction of average daily water use. (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.4)
Clean and maintain stormwater catch basins with a frequency and
thoroughness that meets or exceeds DEP & EPA regulations. (Strategic Plan Obj.
5.3)

6.

Continue rehabilitation of the sanitary sewer distribution system to remove
extraneous �ows caused by in�ow and in�ltration. (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.2)

7.

Continue the annual uni-directional �ushing program to protect water quality as
mandated by the Department of Environmental Protection (DEP). (Strategic Plan
Obj. 2.1A)

8.

Continue the investigation and planning for the U.S. EPA Region 1
Massachusetts Small MS4 General Permit covering stormwater Phase II
regulated discharges as mandated by EPA including the commencement of a
Stormwater/Green Infrastructure Strategic Plan. (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.3)

9.

Continue the Fire Hydrant Replacement Program by replacing old hydrants with
new compression-type hydrants. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

10.

Continue to expand the "paperless" Water System Asset Management and Work
Order Programs. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2A)

11.

Continue to optimize the water meter software program and synergize with the
Town's billing system. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1, 2.2, 5.4)

12.

Identify and obtain grant opportunities to fund capital utility upgrades to water,
wastewater, and stormwater systems. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.3)

13.

Improve the tracking of water usage on private and public accounts to identify
potential leaks/losses, bolster water conservation e�orts, and increase
customer participation in water management through public education and
awareness. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A and 2.2F)

14.

Continuation of the "in-house" water main and service pipe leak detection
program in conjunction with MWRA. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A).

1.

Continuation of the Fire Hydrant Replacement Program by replacing old
hydrants with new compression-type hydrants. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

2.

Continued the CCTV pipeline inspection of the sewer and drain systems by
identifying and recording areas for further rehabilitation and locating problem
areas for immediate repair. (Strategic Plan Obj. 1.1I)

3.

Completed the thirteenth year of the annual uni-directional �ushing program to
protect water quality as mandated by the Department of Environmental
Protection (DEP). (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

4.

Ongoing design and construction of Phase 6 improvements to the sanitary
sewer distribution system to remove extraneous �ows caused by in�ow and
in�ltration. (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.2)

5.

Continued working toward the reduction of unaccounted-for-water in the6.

5.A.

Page: 705



FY25 Section 4M DPW (Water & Sewer)

distribution system and the reduction of average daily water use to 65 gallons
per capita per day (GPCPD) as mandated by DEP regulations. (Strategic Plan Obj.
5.4)
Continued investigation and planning for the U.S. EPA Region 1 Massachusetts
Small MS4 General Permit covering stormwater Phase II regulated discharges as
mandated by EPA. (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.3)

7.

Ongoing Implementation of a Water System Asset Management Program that
will improve the Division’s e�ciency in operating and maintaining the
distribution system and provide valuable information for future capital
improvement planning. (Strategic Plan Obj. 5.4)

8.

Continued the transition for “in the �eld” paperless inspections, work order
system tracking, and record keeping. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.2A)

9.

Updated the 10-year Financial Plan for the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund to
create sustainable and predictable rates while ensuring there are adequate
reserves. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1B)

10.

Continued MTU installation to improve the accuracy and reliability of meter
readings. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

11.

Continued Water Meter Replacement Program including coordination with a
consultant to develop contracts for bidding documents for the meter
acquisition and installations.(Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

12.

Obtained grants and loans from the MWRA for the In�ow and In�ltration
program to fund sewer system rehabilitation work. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.3)

13.

Developed and Implemented the Water Main Valve Exercising Program.
(Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A)

14.

Complete a Rate Model Equity Review and A�ordability Program Analysis for
the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund that supports sustainable and predictable
rates while ensuring there are adequate reserves. (Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1B, 4.5)

15.

Complete the lead service line inventory in accordance with DEP regulations.
(Strategic Plan Obj. 2.1A, 2.3)

16.

Commence upgrade to AClara One Software for water meter reading.(Strategic
Plan Obj. 2.2A)

17.

DPW Water & Sewer Detailed

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

SEWER

SALARIES $362,369 $622,907 $638,552 $15,645 3%

SERVICES $144,794 $150,000 $227,500 $77,500 52%

SUPPLIES $26,248 $27,000 $27,000 $0 0%

OTHER $9,204 $187,405 $193,338 $5,933 3%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL $14,277,393 $14,169,817 $14,169,817 $0 0%

5.A.

Page: 706



FY25 Section 4M DPW (Water & Sewer)

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

BUDGETED CAPITAL $98,848 $65,000 $80,000 $15,000 23%

DEBT SERVICE $1,225,815 $1,261,540 $1,380,040 $118,500 9%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT $500,417 $532,974 $596,472 $63,498 12%

SEWER TOTAL $16,645,088 $17,016,643 $17,312,719 $296,076 2%

WATER

SALARIES $2,316,901 $2,658,407 $2,846,821 $188,414 7%

SERVICES $205,902 $163,617 $256,880 $93,263 57%

SUPPLIES $138,594 $149,805 $152,200 $2,395 2%

OTHER $9,898 $153,085 $162,261 $9,176 6%

UTILITIES $124,574 $141,379 $138,746 -$2,633 -2%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL $8,035,819 $8,551,815 $8,850,429 $298,614 3%

BUDGETED CAPITAL $298,872 $543,349 $575,245 $31,896 6%

DEBT SERVICE $508,500 $925,750 $1,109,000 $183,250 20%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT $2,004,619 $2,218,878 $2,016,007 -$202,871 -9%

WATER TOTAL $13,643,679 $15,506,085 $16,107,589 $601,504 4%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $30,288,767 $32,522,728 $33,420,308 $897,580 3%

EXPENSES TOTAL $30,288,767 $32,522,728 $33,420,308 $897,580 3%

DPW Water & Sewer Revenue

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2022 FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Change % Change

Revenues

REVENUES $402,715 $397 – – $0 –

DEPARTMENTAL & OTHER – $10,891 – – $0 –

GENERAL GOVERNMENT $10,773 $9,375 – – $0 –

FIRE SERVICE FEES $379,340 $361,383 $340,500 $340,500 $0 0%

LATE PAYMENT FEES $108,600 $94,439 $80,000 $80,000 $0 0%

MISCELLANEOUS $164,283 $150,511 $58,250 $58,250 $0 0%

WATER AND SEWER CHARGES $30,473,978 $31,392,975 $32,043,978 $32,941,557 $897,579 3%

REVENUES TOTAL $31,539,688 $32,019,970 $32,522,728 $33,420,307 $897,579 3%

DPW Water Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

WATER

SALARIES $2,316,901 $2,658,407 $2,846,821 $188,414 7%

SERVICES $205,902 $163,617 $256,880 $93,263 57%

SUPPLIES $138,594 $149,805 $152,200 $2,395 2%

OTHER $9,898 $153,085 $162,261 $9,176 6%

UTILITIES $124,574 $141,379 $138,746 -$2,633 -2%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL $8,035,819 $8,551,815 $8,850,429 $298,614 3%

BUDGETED CAPITAL $298,872 $543,349 $575,245 $31,896 6%

DEBT SERVICE $508,500 $925,750 $1,109,000 $183,250 20%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT $2,004,619 $2,218,878 $2,016,007 -$202,871 -9%

WATER TOTAL $13,643,679 $15,506,085 $16,107,589 $601,504 4%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $13,643,679 $15,506,085 $16,107,589 $601,504 4%

EXPENSES TOTAL $13,643,679 $15,506,085 $16,107,589 $601,504 4%

5.A.

Page: 707



FY25 Section 4M DPW (Water & Sewer)

FY25 FTE Salary

35.5
FTE in 2025

UTILITY CRAFTSPERSON

WKG FRMN UTILITIES -...

PIPE LAYER LABORER

WATER MTR SERVICEPER

MEO 2 - WATER

Other

DPW Water

FTE Salary FTE Count

DIR WATER AND SEWER - WATER 66,743.20 0.50

OPERATIONS MANAGER - W&S 103,994.38 1.00

IT SERV AND GIS TECH MANAGER - WATER 46,774.07 0.50

WATER WORKS DIV FRMN 91,010.76 1.00

BUSINESS MANAGER - W&S 78,942.58 1.00

WATER CONSUMP/IRRIGATION MGR 83,276.54 1.00

UTILITIES FOREMAN 75,004.56 1.00

WATER SERVICE INSP 75,004.61 1.00

BACKFLOW PREVENTECH 70,949.20 1.00

WATER METER FOREMAN 70,949.20 1.00

SENIOR CLERK TYPIST - W&S 61,965.05 1.00

MOTOR EQUIP REP FRMN 69,492.72 1.00

WKG FRMN UTILITIES - WATER 268,374.43 4.00

MTR EQUIP REPAIRPER 67,093.61 1.00

MEO 3 - WATER 131,527.73 2.00

MEO 2 - WATER 118,174.58 2.00

WATER MTR SERVICEPER 177,261.88 3.00

WATER WK SERVICEPER 118,173.36 2.00

CARPEN LAB CRAFTSPER 59,087.29 1.00

UTILITY CRAFTSPERSON 354,523.75 6.00

PIPE LAYER LABORER 169,569.51 3.00

CO-OP STUDENT 15,000.00 0.50

TOTAL 2,372,893.01 35.50

DPW Sewer Subdivision

ACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

DPW Water

Data Updated Feb 15, 2024,
10:20 PM

5.A.

Page: 708



FY25 Section 4M DPW (Water & Sewer)

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % ChngACTUAL BUDGET RECOMMENDED

FY2023 FY2024 FY2025 $ Chng % Chng

Expenses

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS

SEWER

SALARIES $362,369 $622,907 $638,552 $15,645 3%

SERVICES $144,794 $150,000 $227,500 $77,500 52%

SUPPLIES $26,248 $27,000 $27,000 $0 0%

OTHER $9,204 $187,405 $193,338 $5,933 3%

INTERGOVERNMENTAL $14,277,393 $14,169,817 $14,169,817 $0 0%

BUDGETED CAPITAL $98,848 $65,000 $80,000 $15,000 23%

DEBT SERVICE $1,225,815 $1,261,540 $1,380,040 $118,500 9%

INTERFUND TRANSFERS OUT $500,417 $532,974 $596,472 $63,498 12%

SEWER TOTAL $16,645,088 $17,016,643 $17,312,719 $296,076 2%

DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC WORKS TOTAL $16,645,088 $17,016,643 $17,312,719 $296,076 2%

EXPENSES TOTAL $16,645,088 $17,016,643 $17,312,719 $296,076 2%

FY25 FTE Salary

6.5
FTE in 2024

MEO 2 - SEWER

MEO 3 - SEWER

DIR WATER AND SEWER

WKG FRMN UTILITIES

DPW Sewer

FTE Salary FTE Count

DIR WATER AND SEWER 66,743.20 0.50

IT SERV AND GIS TECH MANAGER 46,774.07 0.50

W&S ASSET MANAGER 46,774.07 0.50

WKG FRMN UTILITIES 134,187.22 2.00

MEO 3 - SEWER 131,527.73 2.00

MEO 2 - SEWER 118,174.58 2.00

TOTAL 544,180.86 7.50

DPW Sewer

Data Updated Feb 15, 2024,
10:20 PM

5.A.

Page: 709



FY25 Section 4M DPW (Water & Sewer)

Powered by OpenGov

5.A.

Page: 710

https://opengov.com/


1 
 

LIMITED GRANT OF EASEMENT TO TOWN OF BROOKLINE 

 AND AGREEMENT FOR TREE PROTECTION AND MAINTENANCE  

 

 THIS LIMITED GRANT OF EASEMENT (hereinafter, the “Agreement”) is made and 

entered into this _____ day of _________, 2024, by and between 123 Fisher Avenue Owner 

LLC, a Delaware Limited Liability Company with a business address of 4500 Dorr Street, 

Toledo, Ohio 43615 (hereinafter, “Grantor”) and the Town of Brookline, a municipal 

corporation acting by and through its Select Board with offices at 333 Washington Street, 

Brookline, Massachusetts 02445 (the “Grantee” or “Town”)(together referred to as the 

“Parties”); and  

 

 WHEREAS, Grantor is the owner of the real property known as and numbered 123-133 

Fisher Avenue, Brookline, Norfolk County, Massachusetts, as evidenced by the deed recorded on 

December 23, 2020 with the Norfolk County Registry of Deeds in Book 38782, Page 537, 

hereinafter, the (“Welltower Property”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Grantee is a municipal corporation acting by and through its Select Board 

with a business address of Town Hall, 333 Washington Street, Brookline, Massachusetts 02445; 

and 

 

 WHEREAS, Grantor is building a senior living facility at the Welltower Property (the 

“Project” or the “Senior Living Facility”) all as further set forth in Board of Appeals Decision 

No. 2020-0049 and related conditions (the “Special Permit”) which Special Permit was recorded 

on January 12, 2021, in the Norfolk County Registry of Deeds in Book 3886, Page 52; and 

 

 WHEREAS, condition number 12 of the Special Permit requires Grantor to provide an 

easement for the protection and maintenance of six trees (the “Six Trees”) owned by Grantor and 

located on a portion of the Welltower Property abutting Fisher Avenue for the purpose of 

protecting and maintaining the Six Trees all as further set forth in Article 12 of the May 2020 

Annual Town Meeting, a certified copy of which is attached hereto as Exhibit A, which Article 

was passed by two-thirds vote on June 23, 2020 and authorizes the Select Board to execute this 

Agreement (the “Tree Protection Easement”); and 

 

 WHEREAS, the area subject to this Agreement is shown as “Tree Protection Easement 

Area” and consists of 6,920 s.f. +/- and the Six Trees to be preserved under this Agreement 

located in such area are shown on a Plan prepared by Mark J. Guerard, Jr., PLS, Feldman 

Geospatial, dated January 22, 2024, said Plan is recorded herewith as Exhibit B; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Special Permit requires that the Six Trees within the Tree Protection 

Easement Area be maintained by the Grantor with a maintenance plan approved by the Town 

Tree Warden as further set forth below (the “Tree Maintenance Plan”); 

 

6.A.

Page: 711



2 
 

 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the sum of ONE DOLLAR AND ZERO 

CENTS ($1.00) and the mutual covenants contained herein, the receipt and sufficiency of which 

are hereby mutually acknowledged, the Parties agree as follows: 

 

1. LIMITED GRANT OF EASEMENT. The Grantor hereby grants and conveys unto the 

Grantee a non-exclusive permanent easement in that portion of the Welltower Property 

situated on the easterly side of Fisher Avenue in the location depicted as “Tree Protection 

Easement Area” on the Plan attached and recorded herewith as Exhibit B in common 

with others entitled to use such area, for the limited purpose of access to the Easement 

Area and to protect and maintain the Six Trees owned by the Grantor and identified on 

said Plan.  The Grantee’s rights shall be limited to the purposes set forth in this 

Agreement.  No public access is granted to the Tree Protection Easement Area, it being 

the intent of the Parties that Grantor protect and maintain the Six Trees subject to the 

terms and conditions hereof. All maintenance and tree protection shall be conducted by 

the Grantor as approved by the Town Tree Warden. All right, title and interest in and to 

the Tree Protection Easement Area are reserved to the Grantor except as provided herein 

and Grantor shall be permitted to use the Tree Protection Easement Area for all legal 

purposes provided that such use does not preclude the protection and maintenance of the 

Six Trees as set forth in this Agreement.  

 

2. THIRD-PARTY INDEMNIFICATION. The Grantor and its successors and assigns shall 

indemnify, defend and hold harmless Grantee from and against any actually incurred loss, 

damage, or expense caused by or resulting from any third-party claim related to the grant 

of the easement set forth in Section 1 above, but excluding anything caused by the 

Grantee’s own negligent acts or omissions and, in all cases, excluding any indirect, 

special, punitive or consequential damages.  

 

3. COVENANTS RUNNING WITH THE LAND. The easement created hereby shall be 

binding upon the successors, heirs, executors, administrators, personal representatives, 

and/or assigns of the Grantor, and upon all persons acquiring an interest thereunder, and 

shall be a covenant running with the title to the Welltower Property in perpetuity.  

 

4. TREE MAINTENANCE PLAN.  Grantor agrees to protect and maintain the Six Trees in 

accordance with following requirements, as well as any plan mutually agreed upon in 

writing by the Town, by and through its Tree Warden, and the Grantor: 

 

a. The Six Trees shall be pruned every three years during the spring season commencing 

in 2024. 

b. The Trees shall have deep root fertilization applied annually commencing in the Fall 

2024. 

c. All maintenance shall be performed by a certified arborist with 48 hours prior notice 

to the Town Tree Warden (by electronic mail is acceptable) so he/she may be present 

if desired. 

6.A.

Page: 712



3 
 

d. In the event one of the Six Trees dies, becomes diseased or is otherwise damaged, the 

Grantor may request permission in writing in advance from the Town Tree Warden to 

remove the tree(s) in question.  Upon approval of such removal, the Grantor shall 

replace the tree(s) with a species and size reasonably approved by the Town Tree 

Warden or, in the Grantor’s sole discretion, may instead make a payment to the Town 

of Brookline Tree Fund for the then current value of the tree(s) taking into 

consideration its age and health.  The value of such tree(s) shall be determined by 

taking the average of two independent arborists’ written opinion of value provided in 

writing to the Grantor and Grantee.   
 

5. DISPUTE RESOLUTION.  The Parties agree to attempt to resolve any disputes arising 

from this Agreement through nonbinding mediation through The Mediation Group in 

Brookline, Massachusetts or other mutually agreed upon mediator before filing any action 

in court.  If the parties are unable to resolve their differences through mediation then the 

Parties agree to enter into binding arbitration in the Commonwealth of Massachusetts with 

a mutually agreeable arbitrator selected through the American Arbitration Association.   

 

6. GRANTEE’S LIMITED RIGHT OF ACCESS.    Grantor’s failure to maintain or protect 

the Six Trees identified in the Tree Protection Easement Area in accordance with the 

requirements set forth in Section 4 above shall be considered a breach of this Agreement.  

The Grantee may notify Grantor in writing of its failure to adhere to this Agreement and 

Grantor shall have forty-five (45) business days to cure such breach.  If Grantor fails to 

cure such breach within the forty-five business days, then the Grantee may, with at least 

five (5) business days’ prior written notice to Grantor, enter the Tree Protection Easement 

Area for the sole purpose of conducting activities required by this Agreement.  In such 

case where Grantee has completed the activities required by this Agreement, the Grantee 

may charge the Grantor for all such out of pocket costs related to activities required 

solely to maintain the Six Trees as set forth above.  Such charges shall be considered a 

municipal fee for the purposes of collection. 

 

7. NOTICES.  Except as otherwise provided herein, any notices, consents, demands, request, 

approvals, or other communications required or permitted under this Agreement shall be 

in writing and delivered by hand or mailed postage prepaid, return receipt requested, by 

registered or certified mail or e-mail or by other reputable delivery service, and will be 

effective upon receipt in hand or said delivery and three days after mailing or receipt of 

such e-mail, to the other Party at the following addresses: 

To the Grantee/Town:  

   Charles Carey 

   ccarey@brooklinema.gov 

Town Administrator, Town of Brookline 

   333 Washington Street, 6th Floor 

   Brookline, MA 02445 

 

6.A.

Page: 713

mailto:ccarey@brooklinema.gov


4 
 

 With a copy to: 

   Tom Brady 

   tbrady@brooklinema.gov 

Town Tree Warden 

   Department of Public Works 

   333 Washington Street 

   Brookline, MA 02445 

 

To Grantor: General Counsel 

   legalnotice@welltower.com 

c/o Welltower Inc. 

4500 Dorr Street 

Toledo, Ohio 43615 

 

 

With a copy to:    

Jennifer Dopazo Gilbert, Esq. 

jdopazogilbert@boballenlaw.com 

RLAW, P.C. 

300 Washington Street 

Brookline, MA 02445 

 

8. RETENTION OF REGULATORY AUTHORITY.  By entering in this Agreement, the 

Town does not waive any enforcement rights or regulatory authority it currently holds over 

any business in Town. 

 

9. THIRD PARTIES.  Nothing contained in this Agreement shall create a contractual 

relationship with or a cause of action in favor of a third party against either Grantor or 

Grantee, including, without limitation, any member of the public. 

 

 

 IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties have executed this Limited Grant of Easement and 

Agreement for Tree Protection and Maintenance as an instrument under seal as of the day and 

year first written above. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

(Signature pages to follow) 

 

 

 

6.A.

Page: 714

mailto:tbrady@brooklinema.gov
mailto:smakowsky@welltower.com
mailto:jdopazogilbert@boballenlaw.com


5 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

      GRANTOR: 

      123 Fisher Avenue Owner LLC  

 

 

Date: _______     _____________________________ 

      By:   

      Title: 

 

 

STATE OF New York 

 

COUNTY OF NEW YORK       

 

On this____ day of ___________, 2024, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared _____________, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of 

identification, which was ____________________, to be the person whose name is signed on the 

preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that he signed it voluntarily for its 

stated purpose as ____________ for 123 Fisher Avenue Owner LLC.  

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Notary Public,  

      My Commission Expires: 

  

6.A.

Page: 715



6 
 

  

 

GRANTEE: 

TOWN OF BROOKLINE by and through its 

      SELECT BOARD: 

 

      _____________________________ 

       

 

      _____________________________ 

        

 

      _____________________________ 

        

 

      _____________________________ 

        

 

      _____________________________ 

       

     

As authorized by vote at a duly noticed public 

meeting held on _________________, 2024. 

 
 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

Norfolk County:       

 

On this____ day of ___________, 2024, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared _____________, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of 

identification, which was ____________________, to be the person whose name is signed on the 

preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that he/she signed it voluntarily for its 

stated purpose as Select Board member for the Town of Brookline.  

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Notary Public,  

      My Commission Expires: 

 

 

 

 

 

6.A.

Page: 716



7 
 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

Norfolk County:       

 

On this____ day of ___________, 2024, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared _____________, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of 

identification, which was ____________________, to be the person whose name is signed on the 

preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that he/she signed it voluntarily for its 

stated purpose as Select Board member for the Town of Brookline.  

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Notary Public,  

      My Commission Expires: 

 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

Norfolk County:       

 

On this____ day of ___________, 2024, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared _____________, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of 

identification, which was ____________________, to be the person whose name is signed on the 

preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that he/she signed it voluntarily for its 

stated purpose as Select Board member for the Town of Brookline.  

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Notary Public,  

      My Commission Expires: 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

Norfolk County:       

 

On this____ day of ___________, 2024, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared _____________, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of 

identification, which was ____________________, to be the person whose name is signed on the 

preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that he/she signed it voluntarily for its 

stated purpose as Select Board member for the Town of Brookline.  

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Notary Public,  

6.A.

Page: 717



8 
 

      My Commission Expires: 

 

COMMONWEALTH OF MASSACHUSETTS 

 

Norfolk County:       

 

On this____ day of ___________, 2024, before me, the undersigned notary public, 

personally appeared _____________, as aforesaid, proved to me through satisfactory evidence of 

identification, which was ____________________, to be the person whose name is signed on the 

preceding or attached document, and acknowledged to me that he/she signed it voluntarily for its 

stated purpose as Select Board member for the Town of Brookline.  

 

 

      _______________________________ 

      Notary Public,  

      My Commission Expires: 

 

6.A.

Page: 718



1

Language Access Policy
Town of Brookline, Massachusetts

Revised by ODEICR 

A. Purpose

As a recipient of federal financial assistance, the Town of Brookline, Massachusetts is bound by 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964 (Title VI), 42 U.S.C. §§ 2000d-2000d-7, and its 
implementing regulation, 45 C.F.R. Part 80, which prohibits discrimination based on race, color, 
or national origin (which includes Limited English Proficiency). Additionally, the Town of 
Brookline Select Board passed Warrant Article 15 which mirrors federal standards and requires 
the Town to “develop a formal language access plan and infrastructure, provide interpretation 
and translation services and other assistance that would make it easier for individuals with 
limited English proficiency or persons who are deaf or hard of hearing to interact with Town 
departments.” 
 
This Language Access Policy is designed to ensure effective communication with individuals 
with limited English proficiency (LEP) who receive, or are eligible to receive, services or 
participate, or are eligible to participate, in programs or activities provided by covered entities 
within the Town of Brookline. This policy aims to provide guidance and establish a framework 
for covered entities to ensure that individuals with LEP have meaningful access to services, 
programs, and activities. The policy seeks to bring the Town of Brookline into compliance with 
Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, Executive Order 13166, Warrant Article 15, and other 
applicable federal, state, and local laws, regulations, and guidelines. 

B. Effective Date 

Every covered entity will be provided a copy of this policy within 30 days of its adoption. 

C. Definitions

1. “Vital documents” are public-facing written materials in any format created, issued, or 
made available on any platform by a covered entity to inform and communicate with the 
public, allow the public to apply for benefits, services, program participation, notify or 
correspond with an individual about their eligibility, participation, benefits, or outcomes 
of an application, advertise and inform the public about programs, services, resources, 
rules, requirements, and events, provide instructions and guidance, and provide the public 
a complaint submission process. To determine whether a document is vital, the following 
test can be completed:

a. Could a member of the public access or participate in this program, service, or 
activity if they are unable to complete and/or understand the information in this 
document?

i. No? It is a vital document. 
ii. Yes? Move to the next question. 

7.A.

Page: 719



2

b. Could a member of the public be terminated from this program, service, or 
activity if they are unable to complete and/or understand the information in this 
document?

i. Yes? It is a vital document. 
ii. No? Move to the next question. 

c. Could a member of the public suffer significant financial, physical, or other harm 
if they are unable to complete and/or understand the information in this 
document? 

i. Yes? It is a vital document. 
ii. No? The document is likely not vital. 

2. “Individuals with LEP” are individuals who do not speak English as their primary 
language and have a limited ability to read, speak, write, or understand English. 

3. “Language Access” (LA) is the process of ensuring that individuals with LEP have 
access to vital documents and services in a language they can understand, either through 
interpretation or translation services. 

4. “Language Access Plan” (LAP) is a management document and roadmap that outlines the 
tasks and priorities to be implemented to ensure the covered entity will meet compliance 
standards set forth in the policy. 

5. “Language Access Coordinator” (LAC) is the staff of the coordinating entity overseeing 
all covered entities’ language access implementation activities.

6. “Language Access Liaison” (LAL) is the staff of the covered entity with major public 
contact (Tier I and Tier II) coordinating and overseeing all of the covered entity’s 
language access implementation activities.

7. “Translation” is the replacement of written text from one language (source language) into 
an equivalent written text in another language (target language).

8. “Interpretation” is the act of listening to a communication in one language (source 
language) and orally converting it to another language (target language) while retaining 
the same meaning.

D. Administrative Coordination

I. Covered Entities

1. The Town of Brookline Language Access Policy (Policy) applies to the Town itself, all 
departments located within, administrative offices, and grantees that receive federal 
funding, provide services, programs, or activities directly to the public.

a. Tier I: Covered Entities with Major Public Contact

7.A.

Page: 720



3

Tier I are covered entities with major public contact whose primary responsibility 
consists of meeting, communicating, and dealing with the public. “Dealing” with 
the public refers to providing direct services to and interacting with the public. 
Town of Brookline’s Tier I entities with major public contact include, but are not 
limited to, the following divisions:

i. Town Commissions, Committees, and Boards
ii. Select Board’s Office

iii. Human Resources
iv. Information Technology
v. Planning and Community Development

vi. Health
vii. Veterans Services

viii. Council on Aging
ix. Office of Diversity, Inclusion and Community Relations (ODICR)
x. Recreation Department 

xi. Public Library
xii. Public Safety

xiii. Public Works
xiv. Retirement
xv. Schools

xvi. Town Administrator
xvii. Town Select Board

xviii. Town Clerk’s Office
xix. Town Meeting

b. Tier II: Covered Entities with Limited Public Contact

Tier II are covered entities with limited public contact. Their primary 
responsibility does not consist of meeting, contracting, and dealing with the 
public directly. Tier II entities with limited public contact include, but are not 
limited to:

i. Legal Services
ii. Comptroller’s Office

iii. Purchasing
iv. Assessor’s Office
v. Treasurer/Collector

2. The Town of Brookline requires departments to ensure compliance of grantees and 
subgrantees, and recipients and subrecipients.

Every department listed above in 1 and 2 must require every grantee and subgrantees, and 
recipients and subrecipients to certify that it has an effective plan to communicate and 
serve individuals with LEP that complies with this policy. 

7.A.

Page: 721



4

a. Covered entities must provide a copy of this policy, within 30 days of adoption, to 
every grantee and must provide at least one annual training on the requirements of 
this policy. 

i. Grantees and recipients shall include the following clause in their 
contracts with subgrantees, subrecipients, and contractors:

ASSURANCE OF NONDISCRIMINATION

[Contractor/Subrecipient] agrees to comply with Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 
the Town of Brookline Language Access Policy, and all requirements imposed by the 
regulations issued pursuant to the Act and the Policy to the effect that, no person shall, 
on the grounds of race, color, or national origin (which includes Limited English 
Proficiency), be excluded from participation in, be denied the benefits of, or be otherwise 
subject to discrimination in any services performed pursuant to this contract. 

II. Responsibilities of Covered Entities

1. Department and Program Responsibilities for Tier I Entities with Major Public Contact:

a. Appoint a Language Access Liaison (LAL).
b. Allocate a language access budget to ensure effective communication with 

individuals with LEP. 
c. Designate and fill bilingual positions
d. Meet biannual planning requirements, which include developing and reviewing 

department plans and assessing and setting biannual goals in consultation with 
department heads, LAL and coordinating entity’s LA Coordinator. 

i. All covered entities must come to compliance with this policy no later 
than 12 months from the date of adoption

ii. This includes developing a LAP for compliance and implementation and 
providing it to the LA Coordinator for approval

iii. Once approved by the Coordinator, Tier I covered entities shall provide a 
copy of their LAP to every entity they oversee, and to every office, and 
site within 60 days of approval

e. Ensure staff receive the most current language access policy and plan and conduct 
language access training annually for frontline staff and biennially for all staff. 
The language access training must include, at the minimum, the following 
information:

i. Town’s legal obligation to provide language access, and standards 
ii. Demographic information on the Town’s diverse language communities

iii. Procedures for communicating effectively with individuals with LEP
iv. Procedures for obtaining and working with interpreters (in-person and 

over-the-phone)
v. Procedures for requesting, storing, and disseminating translated vital 

documents 

7.A.

Page: 722



5

vi. Procedures for tracking encounters with individuals with LEP, and for 
documenting language service requests and usage 

f. Report department-wide LEP encounters and language usage data and submit plan 
implementation updates annually to the coordinating entity’s LA Coordinator. 
This shall include:

i. Status update on all activities carried out within the reporting period to 
implement action steps outlined in the department’s LAP

ii. Reporting of all steps taken by the department to engage and/or improve 
language access services for individuals with LEP

iii. Assessment of the languages and number of individuals with LEP 
encountered or served

iv. Language service requests received during the past year: how many were 
met and with which strategies, how many were not met and why

v. Assessments of waivers signed by individuals with LEP waiving their 
right to receive language access services

vi. Assessment of formal or informal complaints filed by individuals with 
LEP and status of the resolution of the complaints 

vii. Assessment of the number and roles of staff members who received 
language access training in the past year 

2. Department and Program Responsibilities for Tier II Entities with Limited Public Contact

a. Appoint a Language Access Liaison (LAL)
b. Allocate a language access budget to ensure effective communication with 

individuals with LEP
c. Meet biannual planning requirements, which include developing and reviewing 

department plans and assessing and setting biannual goals in consultation with 
department heads, LAL and coordinating entity’s LA Coordinator. 

i. All covered entities must come to compliance with this policy no later 
than 24 months from the date of adoption

ii. This includes developing a LAP for compliance and implementation and 
providing it to the LA Coordinator for approval

d. Ensure staff receive the most current language access policy and plan and conduct 
language access training annually for frontline staff and biannually for all staff. 
The language access training must include, at the minimum, the following 
information:

i. Town’s legal obligation to provide language access, and standards 
ii. Demographic information on the Town’s diverse language communities

iii. Procedures for communicating effectively with individuals with LEP
iv. Procedures for obtaining and working with interpreters (in-person and 

over-the-phone)
v. Procedures for requesting, storing, and disseminating translated vital 

documents 
vi. Procedures for tracking encounters with individuals with LEP, and for 

documenting language service requests and usage 

7.A.

Page: 723



6

e. Conduct an annual evaluation of its LAP to determine its overall effectiveness, 
review the progress of stated goals and identify new goals or strategies for serving 
individuals with LEP. 

f. Report department-wide LEP encounters and language usage data and submit plan 
implementation updates annually to the coordinating entity’s LA Coordinator. 
This shall include:

i. Status update on all activities carried out within the reporting period to 
implement action steps outlined in the department’s LAP

ii. Reporting of all steps taken by the department to engage and/or improve 
language access services for individuals with LEP

iii. Reporting of spending on language access-related costs
iv. Assessment of the languages and number of individuals with LEP 

encountered or served
v. Language service requests received during the past year: how many were 

met and with which strategies, how many were not met and why
vi. Assessments of waivers signed by individuals with LEP waiving their 

right to receive language access services
vii. Assessment of formal or informal complaints filed by individuals with 

LEP and status of the resolution of the complaints 
viii. Assessment of the number and roles of staff members who received 

language access training in the past year 

III. Coordinating Entity

1. Coordinating Entity Structure

a. Town of Brookline Language Access Program shall be housed in the Office of 
Diversity, Equity, Inclusion, and Community Relations or where the program and 
Coordinator will have the highest level of town-wide oversight authority

b. The Language Access Coordinator shall report directly to the Chief Diversity 
Officer

2. Coordinating Entity Responsibilities

To oversee implementation over departments, programs, and grantees and ensure
continued effective service to individuals with LEP, the Town of Brookline will:

a. Monitor changing population levels and the language needs of individuals with 
LEP in the Town and share findings with covered entities 

b. Review and affirm or revise the town wide policy every two years. After any 
revision, the coordinating entity must distribute the revised policy to all covered 
entities within 30 days

c. Implement a town-wide LAP 
d. Support development of departmental LAPs, and lead review and update of 

departmental LAPs on a biannual basis

7.A.

Page: 724



7

e. Monitor departmental compliance through review of annual reports and publish 
an annual compliance assessment of town-wide and departmental implementation 
using an evaluation scorecard, surveys and focus groups, and review of reports 
submitted by covered entities 

f. Provide technical assistance to LAL’s, host periodic convenings, and develop 
shared resources and tools including language access training modules and 
materials to be used for staff training 

g. Negotiate and oversee a town wide language services provider contract/s 
h. Investigate complaints and issue corrective actions
i. Develop and oversee the Bilingual Staff program with HR

IV. Staffing

1. Covered Entity Staffing

Town of Brookline shall ensure adequate staffing for the Language Access Program at 
the department level as follows:

a. Tier I Covered Entities: One designated LAL per department with major public 
contact

b. Tier II Covered Entities: One designated LAL per department with limited public 
contact

c. Programs/Grantees: One designated LAL per program, grantee, and site
d. All LALs are housed in, and report directly to the department head. Designated 

staff need to be trained, and they must be properly identified to all coworkers. 
Their LA duties need to be formally written into their job descriptions, work 
plans. 

2. Coordinating Entity Staffing

Town of Brookline shall ensure adequate staffing for the Language Access Program at 
the coordinating entity level as follows:

a. Establish a centralized, town-wide Language Access Program with sufficient 
capacity to support and monitor implementation

b. Program team shall consist of one full-time equivalent: Language Access 
Coordinator 

V. Budget

The Town of Brookline shall allocate funding for language access implementation and services. 
The budget for language access services shall be determined based on the covered entity’s level 
of public contact.

7.A.

Page: 725



8

VI. Enforcement and Accountability

a. Accountability Mechanisms

i. The following accountability mechanisms will be implemented to ensure 
that the language access plan is adhered to and that all covered entities 
comply with the policy.

1. A linguistically accessible grievance procedure will be developed 
and promoted to encourage individuals to report any issues or 
concerns related to language access

a. The grievance procedure must include that all complaints 
on language access be reported to the department head, the 
designated LAC or LAL for the department, and the 
Language Access Coordinator. The Coordinator must 
investigate the complaint within 14 days and must write a 
report and submit it to the department head and the Town 
Administrator within 30 days.

2. Language access audits and tests will be conducted annually, 
prioritizing departments based on level of compliance and/or 
public contact. These audits and tests will evaluate covered 
entities’ compliance with the language access policy and plan 
implementation.

3. The coordinating entity will be required to report the following 
annually to the Town Administrator:

a. The number and types of language access complaints filed, 
as well as their resolution

b. The results and findings of the annual audit and tests
c. Scorecards assessing covered entities’ compliance with the 

policy and plan implementation progress

b. Enforcement Mechanisms

i. The Town Administrator, in conjunction with the coordinating entity, may 
issue warnings, penalties, or other appropriate measures to address any 
violations of the policy

ii. Additionally, the coordinating entity may provide guidance and technical 
assistance to covered entities to ensure their compliance with the policy

E. Service Delivery

I. Translation Services

a. Town of Brookline requires all covered entities to translate all vital documents 
into each of the Top 5 languages spoken. Vital documents must be translated 
accurately and completely, and in a timely manner

7.A.

Page: 726



9

b. All covered entities must include multilingual inserts in Top 15 languages on 
English-only or English/Spanish vital documents to notify individuals with LEP 
of their right to language assistance and provide them with a number they can call 
to receive the information in the document orally in the language

c. Covered entities must prioritize the translation of the following type of vital 
documents:

i. Signage informing individuals with LEP of their rights to LA and steps to 
take to request language assistance

ii. Notices, forms, and documents individuals with LEP need to access 
emergency, health, and safety services

iii. Summary of services, benefits, programs offered by the covered entity and 
key contact information

d. Translation Reporting Requirements for Tier I and Tier II Covered Entities
i. All Tier I covered entities must report annually on the following:

1. Translated description of entity’s function and information
2. Display of signage on availability of language services
3. Translation completed for vital documents, prioritized by 

importance of service/program and frequency of public use
4. Languages in which vital documents have been translated to date
5. Vital documents to be translated in the upcoming fiscal year and 

languages into which the vital document will be translated
6. Documents containing multilingual instructions/contact 

information and documents which will be updated in the upcoming 
fiscal year

7. Assessment of any changes in languages spoken by individuals 
with LEP in their service area (based on comprehensive data 
collection including over-the-phone interpretation usage, tracking 
of customers with LEP, etc.

ii. All Tier II covered entities must report annually on the following:
1. Translated description of entity’s function and information
2. Display of signage on availability of language services
3. Any public-facing documents created and what languages they are 

in

II. Interpretation Services

Overall, these policies will help to ensure that individuals with LEP have equal access to vital 
documents and services, as well as quality interpretation services when interacting with covered 
entities. Regular reporting requirements will help to ensure accountability and ongoing 
improvement of language access services. 

7.A.

Page: 727



10

a. On-Demand Over-the-Phone Interpretation Service

All covered entities must set up an account with an on-demand over-the-phone interpretation 
service provider (e.g. Language Line) to ensure frontline and outreach staff can access an 
interpreter at any time. Covered entities should ensure that staff have access to appropriate tools 
such as dual handset phones, instructions, and language identification instructions. Furthermore, 
covered entities should provide training on the use of over-the-phone interpretation services and 
effective use of interpreters, and establish a mechanism to track and report quality of 
interpreters/service.

b. In-Person Interpretation Services

All covered entities must use qualified and trained in-person interpreters via vetted language 
service providers for specific types of encounters with individuals with LEP. Covered entities 
should clearly define when staff need to use in-person interpreters or video remote interpretation 
(VRI) services. Furthermore, divisions should distinguish and prioritize encounters needing in-
person or VRI interpretation during planning. 

c. Prohibition of Family and Friends as Interpreters

The use of family and friends as interpreters is generally prohibited. However, if an individual 
with LEP requests to use their family or friends, after being offered a trained interpreter by the 
service provider, staff shall allow the request but must obtain a signed waiver from the individual 
with LEP who requested to use their own interpreter. Covered entities should ensure that 
frontline staff have access to waivers available in the Top 15 languages in the Town of 
Brookline. Staff should be trained on the use of waivers and procedures for obtaining and 
reporting signed waivers. Covered entities should clearly state that it is the responsibility of 
frontline staff to identify the language spoken by individuals with LEP and offer interpretation 
services, even when not requested. 

d. Role of Bilingual Staff

i. All covered entities must formalize the role of bilingual staff in the 
delivery of language services, evaluate the language proficiency, 
translation and interpretation skills of bilingual staff, and ensure that 
bilingual staff receive translation and/or interpretation training

ii. Covered entities should provide compensation such as a stipend, pay 
differential, or signing bonuses for bilingual staff

iii. Language service duties of bilingual staff need to be formally stated in job 
descriptions and work plans of bilingual staff

7.A.

Page: 728



11

III. Quality Assurance

a. Covered entities must follow plain language standards in content creation to 
improve quality and accessibility of translated documents

i. Covered entities must conduct plain language training for communications 
staff and content creators at least once a year and upon hire of new staff

ii. When contracting out, covered entities must select language service 
providers that also offer plain language services

b. Covered entities must maintain proper records and oversight procedures. That 
includes:

i. Documenting and track the quality of interpretation and translation 
services provided by vendors, and equip staff with skills and tools to 
monitor quality of interpretation services

ii. Offering a public complaint process, made available online and in at least 
5 of the top languages spoken by individuals with LEP in the Town of 
Brookline

iii. Ensuring that vendors’ contracts contain stringent quality assurance 
requirements, and include development of department/program-specific 
glossaries, and translation memory

iv. Establishing a community-based quality assurance monitoring group
v. Conducting periodic testing of translated documents, and interpretation 

services across languages

IV. Public Notices

a. All covered entities must prominently display signs in Top 15 languages notifying 
individuals with LEP of their right to request interpretation and translation 
services. Notices should be placed in visible areas and clearly indicate that 
language services are available free of charge

b. Notices should be clear, legible, and include clear steps individuals with LEP 
need to take to request and receive language services. This includes how to 
request an interpreter or translated materials, as well as the entity’s contact 
information and hours of operation

c. All covered entities are required to periodically review and update their public 
notices to ensure they are accurate, up-to-date, and meet the needs of their 
populations with LEP

V. Outreach

a. In collaboration with the LA Coordinator, Community Engagement Coordinator, 
and ADA Coordinator, covered entities are required to conduct direct outreach 

7.A.

Page: 729



12

and develop culturally and linguistically targeted communications strategies to 
reach community members with LEP

VI. Modification and Public Comment

a. Biannual Review

This policy shall be subject to biannual review and modifications by the LA Coordinator and 
other ODEICR Staff, with approval by the Select Board, except that any review and 
modifications that are intended to or can have the effect of reducing services or excluding groups 
from services shall be subjected to the Public Comments process.

b. Public Comments

Because it is important for individuals in the Town of Brookline to have an opportunity to 
comment and provide feedback on this policy and its implementation, this policy shall be 
biannually posted on the Town website for 30 days with an opportunity for comment along with 
a link for comments. And sufficient notice shall be provided on the Towns’ website and in the 
local papers, with translated ads in the Top 15 languages in the Town of Brookline, inviting the 
public to provide comments. Within 30 days of the closing of the comment period, the Town of 
Brookline shall review all comments and take them into account in updating this policy. 

 

7.A.

Page: 730



1

Town of Brookline
Massachusetts

TO: Brookline Select Board

FROM: CDBG Advisory Committee,
Community Planning Staff

DATE: April 23, 2024

SUBJECT: CDBG Advisory Committee Recommendations 
FY 2025 (FFY 24) CDBG Annual Action Plan

Summary
In keeping with the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban Development’s (HUD) 
Consolidated Planning requirements, the Town must submit its FY 2025 Community 
Development Block Grant (CDBG) Annual Action Plan (AAP) to HUD on or before May 
15, 2024.  Prior to submitting the AAP to HUD, planning staff will present the CDBG 
Advisory Committee’s funding recommendations to the Select Board on April 23, 
2024.  The Board will then hold a public hearing on May 14, 2024 to be followed by a 
vote to authorize the submission of the AAP to HUD.

The AAP serves as the Town’s application to HUD for CDBG funds for a given program 
year.  Accordingly, the FY 25 (FFY 24) AAP identifies the projects and programs to be 
funded in the upcoming fiscal year to meet the broad goals of the Town’s FYs 21 – 25 
Consolidated Plan. The draft AAP can be seen at the Planning Department’s web page:

Department of Planning and
Community Development

Town Hall, 3rd Floor
333 Washington Street

Brookline, MA 02445-6899
(617) 730-2130  Fax (617) 730-2442

kbrewton@brooklinema.gov

Kara Brewton
Director

8.A.

Page: 731



2

https://www.brooklinema.gov/2365/Community-Development-
Documents#:~:text=CDBG%20Annual%20Action%20Plan&text=The%20Action%20Plan%
20provides%20information,Block%20Grant%20(CDBG)%20program.

In anticipation of being notified by HUD of our CDBG FY2025 (FFY2024) allocation, we 
are assuming level funding in the amount of $ 1,305,960.  This amount was used to 
complete our initial recommendations for using the CDBG funds.  These tentative 
amounts may change according to our actual allocation.  As the process  of making a 
draft  AAP available  for a 30 day public comment period,  we work at  starting the 
process with the assumption that we will be funded so that  as we may send our 
application in on time, May 15, 2024.  While programs to be funded will not change 
the funded amounts are tentative at this time.  As always, CDBG funds may be used to 
support a wide range projects and programs that address community needs, such as 
the provision of decent housing, a suitable living environment and the expansion of 
economic opportunities -- so long as the funding principally benefits low- and 
moderate-income persons.  

Public Process
To inform the creation of the Town’s FY25 AAP, the CDBG Advisory Committee held 
two public meetings via Zoom on March 11th and 13th, 2024.  At this public meeting, 
the Committee reviewed Request for Proposal (RFP) responses solicited as part of the 
Town’s competitive process for CDBG funds. All prospective recipients were provided a 
time slot on the Committee’s agenda to give an overview of their program or project, 
during which Committee members asked questions related to each proposer’s activity. 
 

After hearing presentations, the Committee used the latter part of the March 13, 2024 
meeting to deliberate on a funding recommendation to be considered by the Select 
Board as part of your approval of the FY 25 CDBG Annual Action Plan (AAP) and 
budget.  As it happens every year, requests from potential sub-recipients were 
significantly greater than available funding. This year, applicants stated a need of over 
$2 million in funds for their activities.  After subtracting staffing and administration 
costs, $770,087 of the $1,305,960 FY 25 (FFY 24) funding was available to be 
programmed.

Budget Recommendation
The Committee considered how projects and programs met overall community needs 
and how CDBG funding would be used to benefit low- and moderate-income persons.  
To guide the Committee’s recommendations, staff used the figure of $770,087 as the 
available program budget – including $581, 193 in funding for category B and 
$195,894 for category C, public services.  At the conclusion of budget deliberations, 
the Committee recommended the following allocations for items B through C below 
(see attached budget):  

A. Staffing Costs
The staffing cost items included in the overall amount are: 

A1. CD Grant Administration, Comprehensive Planning, Housing Division - $ 
525,338.00

B. Housing
The Committee sought to balance the needs of new affordable housing development 
and preservation with the significant capital needs of the Brookline Housing Authority.  
The Committee recommended the following allocations: 

8.A.

Page: 732

https://www.brooklinema.gov/2365/Community-Development-Documents#:~:text=CDBG%20Annual%20Action%20Plan&text=The%20Action%20Plan%20provides%20information,Block%20Grant%20(CDBG)%20program
https://www.brooklinema.gov/2365/Community-Development-Documents#:~:text=CDBG%20Annual%20Action%20Plan&text=The%20Action%20Plan%20provides%20information,Block%20Grant%20(CDBG)%20program
https://www.brooklinema.gov/2365/Community-Development-Documents#:~:text=CDBG%20Annual%20Action%20Plan&text=The%20Action%20Plan%20provides%20information,Block%20Grant%20(CDBG)%20program


3

B1.  Brookline Housing Authority - Resident Health and Safety Projects - 
$518,193.00: 
The Committee acknowledged the BHA’s significant need for funding to 
undertake capital improvements that would help to provide safe, decent and 
affordable housing to its residents. In support of the BHA’s request and in 
recognition of the leveraging power CDBG funds will provide, the Committee 
recommended a significant allocation to the BHA to fund accessibility-
focused site improvements at the High Street Veterans development.      

B2. Brookline Community Development Corp. (Formerly BIC) - $ 63,000.00:
The Committee wished to fund BCDC’s capital project to modernize to three 
bathrooms at its154-156 Boylston Street property.  BCDC’s Capital Needs 
Assessment identified this project as a need.    

 

C. Public Services: 
HUD’s CDBG program requirements limit the total amount of funds obligated to public 
services activities to 15 % of the annual grant.  Therefore, no more than $195,894.00 – 
or 15% of the grant – could be programmed to public services in FY 25 (FFY 24).    

The Committee’s Public Service recommendations are:  

C1. Brookline Housing Authority – Resident Services: $45,00.00
C2. COA - TRIPPS program (formerly BETS): $40,000.00
C3. Steps to Success - Work Connections for Youth: $45,000.00
C4. Brookline Food Pantry: $45,000.00
C5.             Brookline Center for Community Mental Health: $20, 894

Public Hearing and Select Board Votes:
As a final step before submitting the FY 25 (FFY24) Annual Action Plan to HUD, staff 
will present the CDBG Advisory Committee’s recommendations to the Select Board at 
your April 23,  2024 meeting.  The Board is then scheduled to hold a Public Hearing on 
May 14, 2024 to accept public comment on the use of FY 25 (FFY 24) CDBG funding, as 
recommended by the CDBG Advisory Committee, or for comments stemming from the 
30-day public comment period during which the AAP document was made available 
for review.  Any and all comments received will be noted and addressed as part of the 
final submission of the AAP to HUD.   

Following public comment at the Board’s May 14, 2024 meeting, staff will request that 
the Board take the following votes:

A. Approve the submission of the FY 2025 CDBG Annual 
Action Plan to the U.S. Department of Housing and Urban 
Development
 
B. Authorize the Chair to execute the Application for 
Federal Assistance (SF-424) and other certifications required 
for submission of the Annual Action Plan

C. Authorize the Director of Planning and Community 
Development to execute Environmental Review or other 
programmatic documents required for federally funded 
projects on behalf of the Town

8.A.

Page: 733



4

FY 2024 CDBG Advisory Committee

Paul Warren, Chair
Jennie Segel

Suzanne Federspiel
Rita McNally
Alex Krieger

FY 2025 - CDBG Advisory Committee Meetings
March 11th & 13th, 2024 

CDBG Advisory Committee - Meeting 1

CDBG Advisory Committee - Meeting 2

8.A.

Page: 734

https://brooklinema.zoomgov.com/rec/share/MRvxCOhiaLd_30lLaMd3R-sNjcCCdRdF31vvgE_KJk22e8I6dYtBauh-n5cZRMH8.hK4tLc6rKJg7JtpR
https://brooklinema.zoomgov.com/rec/share/MRvxCOhiaLd_30lLaMd3R-sNjcCCdRdF31vvgE_KJk22e8I6dYtBauh-n5cZRMH8.hK4tLc6rKJg7JtpR
https://brooklinema.zoomgov.com/rec/share/MRvxCOhiaLd_30lLaMd3R-sNjcCCdRdF31vvgE_KJk22e8I6dYtBauh-n5cZRMH8.hK4tLc6rKJg7JtpR
https://brooklinema.zoomgov.com/rec/share/p7taNPV4EtPTdiZ4cSy2LMTpTUqIYTb5xIz9nf3S-Gm7roLYs8q1EeJAlnoY_2O8.XUweiV1zqlr1W4nV
https://brooklinema.zoomgov.com/rec/share/p7taNPV4EtPTdiZ4cSy2LMTpTUqIYTb5xIz9nf3S-Gm7roLYs8q1EeJAlnoY_2O8.XUweiV1zqlr1W4nV


Page: 735



Page: 736



Christopher Sean Mutty

.com/in/christophermutty/

Education
Middlebury College Middlebury, VT
Bachelor of Arts, Economics, January 2010

Experience
Beantown Rugby Football Club (March 2022-Present) Watertown, MA
Head Coach - WPL side

● Manage a roster of 40 players and 5 coaches
● Devise practice plans and match strategies
● Finished second in the Women’s Premier League Championship series

Harvard University Men’s Rugby (August 2019-Present) Cambridge, MA
Assistant Coach - Analyst

● Assist with practices and analyze/code match film

Green Line Growers, LLC (November 2015-August 2019) Brookline, MA
Cofounder

● Operated a hydroponic Freight Farm and local food store in Coolidge Corner
● Hired, trained, and managed a staff of 10
● Sold lettuce and other vegetables to restaurants and managed relationships with clients
● Managed all social media accounts and developed engagement strategy
● Principal buyer and account manager for 50 vendors

Zipcar (January 2012- March 2013) Cambridge, MA
Inside Sales

● Sold new business accounts from inbound sales leads and managed account success
● Identified and sold outbound accounts with cold calls, emails, and social media
● Trained and managed local marketing teams to increase quality lead generation

Encore Redevelopment (June 2009 -February 2011) Burlington, VT
Project Analyst

● Devised corporate business model for developing alternative energy projects
● Constructed proposals, presentations, and pitches for potential clients and investors
● Conducted GIS analysis and created a database of potential sites for solar facilities
● Utilized industry software to evaluate energy resources and maximization strategies
● Built financial models for residential and commercial real estate development projects

Additional Information
Activities: Pine Street Inn Volunteer, Middlebury Rugby Club (Captain, Finance Officer, and
Friends of Middlebury Rugby Board Member), Certified USA Rugby Referee and Coach

Computer Skills: Proficient in Microsoft Office Suite, Google Apps, and Zoom

Page: 737



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
x-1

__________
ARTICLE x

_________________
x ARTICLE
Submitted by:  Human Resources

To see if the Town will raise and appropriate, or appropriate from available funds, a sum 
or sums of money to fund the cost items in collective bargaining agreements between the 
Town and various employee unions; fund wage and salary increases for employees not 
included in the collective bargaining agreements; and amend the Classification and Pay 
Plans of the Town; or act on anything relative thereto.

_________________

PETITIONER’S ARTICLE DESCRIPTION

This article is inserted in the Warrant for any Town Meeting when there are unsettled labor 
contracts. Town Meeting must approve the funding for any collective bargaining 
agreements.  

_________________

_________________________________
SELECT BOARD’S RECOMMENDATION

--------------
____________________________________________
ADVISORY COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION

  

XXX

10.A.

Page: 738



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
x-1

__________
ARTICLE x

______________
x ARTICLE
Submitted by:  Select Board

To see if the Town will, in accordance with General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 64, 
authorize the payment of one or more of the bills of the previous years, which may be 
legally unenforceable due to the insufficiency of the appropriations therefore, and 
appropriate from available funds, a sum or sums of money therefore, or act on anything 
relative thereto.

PETITIONER’S ARTICLE DESCRIPTION

This article is inserted in the Warrant for every Town Meeting in case there are any unpaid 
bills from a prior fiscal year that are deemed to be legal obligations of the Town. Per 
Massachusetts General Law, unpaid bills from a prior fiscal year can only be paid from 
current year appropriations with the specific approval of Town Meeting.

____________

_________________________________
SELECT BOARD’S RECOMMENDATION

--------------
____________________________________________
ADVISORY COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION

XXX

10.A.

Page: 739



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
17-1

__________
ARTICLE 17

_______________________
SEVENTEENTH ARTICLE
Submitted by:  Chief of Police Jennifer Paster
 
To see if the Town will authorize and empower the Select Board to file a petition, in 
substantially the following form, with the General Court for a special act providing for 
the creation of special police officers to perform police details, and authorize the General 
Court to make any revisions that are necessary or appropriate to the form of such bill:

AN ACT AUTHORIZING THE APPOINTMENT OF RETIRED POLICE OFFICERS 
AS SPECIAL POLICE OFFICERS IN THE TOWN OF BROOKLINE.

Be it enacted by the Senate and House of Representatives in General Court assembled, 
and by the authority of the same as follows:

SECTION 1. Subject to the approval of the town administrator of the Town of Brookline, 
the Chief of Police of the town of Brookline may appoint retired Brookline police officers 
as special police officers for the purpose of performing police details or any police duties 
arising from police details or during the course of police detail work, whether or not 
related to the detail work. The retired police officers shall have been regular Brookline 
police officers and have been retired based on superannuation. A retired police officer 
shall not be appointed under this act as a special police officer if the officer has been 
retired for more than 5 years. A special police officer appointed under this act shall not be 
subject to the same maximum age restrictions applied to regular Brookline police officers 
under chapter 32 of the General Laws; provided, however, that a special police officer 
shall not be able to serve if the special police officer has reached the age of 70. Prior to 
performing police details, a special police officer appointed under this act shall pass a 
medical examination by a physician or other certified professional chosen or agreed to by 
the department to determine that the retired police officer is capable of performing the 
essential duties of a special police officer, the cost of which shall be borne by the special 
police officer. 

SECTION 2. A special police officer appointed under this act shall not be subject to 
chapter 31 of the General Laws, section 99A of chapter 41 of the General Laws, chapter 
150E of the General Laws or chapter 151A of the General Laws. 

SECTION 3. A special police officer appointed under this act shall, when performing the 
duties under section 1, have the same power to make arrests and perform other police 
functions as regular police officers in the town of Brookline. 

SECTION 4. A special police officer appointed under this act shall be appointed for an 
indefinite term, subject to suspension or removal by the chief of police with approval by 

10.A.

Page: 740



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
17-2

the town administrator at any time. A special police officer shall be provided 14 calendar 
days written notice prior to a permanent removal. 

SECTION 5. A special police officer appointed under this act shall be subject to the 
rules, regulations, policies, procedures and requirements of the chief of police including, 
but not limited to: 

(i) restrictions on the type of detail assignments; (ii) requirements regarding medical 
examinations to determine continuing capability to perform the duties of a special police 
officer; (iii) requirements for training; (iv) requirements for firearms licensing and 
qualifications; (v) requirements for maintaining a medical insurance policy; (vi) and 
requirements regarding uniforms and equipment. A special police officers shall not be 
subject to section 96B of chapter 41 of the General Laws. The cost of all training, 
uniforms, and equipment shall be borne by the special police officer. 

SECTION 6. Special police officers appointed under this act shall be sworn before the 
town clerk of the town of Brookline who shall keep a record of all such appointments. 

SECTION 7. Sections 100 and 111F of chapter 41 of the General Laws shall not apply to 
a special police officer appointed under this act. A special police officer appointed under 
this act shall not be subject to section 85h or 85h ½ of chapter 32 of the General Laws nor 
eligible for any benefits pursuant thereto. 

SECTION 8. Appointment as a special police officer under this act shall not entitle the 
appointee to any assignment to any detail. 
SECTION 9. A retired Brookline police officer serving as a special police officer under 
this act shall be subject to the limitations on hours worked and on payments to retired 
town employees under paragraph (b) of section 91 of chapter 32 of the General Laws. 
SECTION 10. This act shall take effect upon its passage, 

or act on anything relative thereto.

PETITIONER’S ARTICLE DESCRIPTION

The above article petition intends to have the Town authorize the Chief of Police to appoint 
retired Brookline Police Officers as special police officers, subject to the approval of the 
Town Administrator, for the purpose of performing police details and any police duties 
arising from police details or during police detail work, whether or not related to the detail 
work. The retired police officers shall have been regular Brookline police officers and have 
been retired based on superannuation. A retired police officer shall not be appointed under 
this act as a special police officer if the officer has been retired for more than 5 years. A 
special police officer appointed under this act shall not be subject to the same maximum 
age restrictions applied to regular Brookline police officers under chapter 32 of the General 
Laws; provided, however, that a special police officer shall not be able to serve if the 

10.A.

Page: 741



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
17-3

special police officer has reached the age of 70. Prior to performing police details, a special 
police officer appointed under this act shall pass a medical examination by a physician or 
other certified professional chosen or agreed to by the department to determine that the 
retired police officer is capable of performing the essential duties of a special police officer, 
the cost of which shall be borne by the special police officer. 

The purpose of this article is to enhance and supplement the public safety duties of the 
Brookline Police Department while maintaining standards of training and supervision. This 
article will also bring the Town in line with many other cities and towns in Norfolk County, 
who currently have retired officers performing these duties to supplement current officers. 

____________

_________________________________
SELECT BOARD’S RECOMMENDATION

--------------
____________________________________________
ADVISORY COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION

XXX

10.A.

Page: 742



1

WARRANT ARTICLE EXPLANATIONS 
FILED BY PETITIONERS FOR THE 

MAY 28, 2024 SECOND SPECIAL TOWN MEETING

ARTICLE 1
Submitted by:  Select Board

This article seeks to remove all positions in the police department of the Town of Brookline from 
the provisions of the Commonwealth’s civil service laws. If approved, the hiring, promotion, and 
discipline of employees in the police department would no longer be governed by the civil 
service system, giving the Town more discretion in these personnel matters. The Town and 
Union have bargained over the impacts of removing the police department from civil service and 
have agreed that the police department will leave civil service, if this warrant article is approved. 

The civil service system was created in the 1880s to combat patronage and nepotism in public 
hiring. The Town adopted the civil service law via a vote of Town Meeting on May 29, 1894.

10.A.

Page: 743



2

          . . . 

189th Annual Report of the Town Officers of Brookline, Massachusetts, and the 
Town Records for the Year Ending January 31, 1895, pgs. 34-35

Since this vote of Town Meeting more than one hundred years ago, the Town has removed 
certain positions from civil service. Most recently, in 2009, Town Meeting approved action to 
remove all remaining municipal and school employees from civil service, except for those in 
Police and Fire. 
The civil service system imposes a reliance on written test scores and legal preferences 
(residency, etc.) in hiring. Today, fewer and fewer candidates are taking the civil service exam, 
and in 2022, a court found that the exam had a discriminatory impact. Though a special 
legislative commission is working to propose civil service reform to the legislature, the proposed 
legislation will not solve these problems. It was developed without consultation by the Town, 
and even if it passes this session will not prevent us, in the version as of April 16, 2024, from 
leaving civil service altogether.

Removing the police department from the limitations imposed by civil service will benefit the 
police department and the Town. If the police department is no longer forced to rely on the 
limited lists from the civil service exam for hiring, the candidate pool is likely to be wider and 
more diverse—no longer limited solely to good test-takers. The police department will be able to 
promote based on skills assessments, not just a written exam. Removing the police department 
from the civil service system will mean fewer barriers to entry and greater opportunities to 
advance, making the police department more attractive to new officers and to lateral hires. It will 
also make the Town more competitive with other communities. More than 35 communities have 
left civil service recently, including Lexington, Needham, Wellesley, Framingham, and Franklin. 

The Town and the Union are establishing new policies and procedures regarding promotion and 
hiring that will replace the provisions of civil service. The proposed model which the Town and 
Union have agreed to for hiring and promotions still takes into account veterans’ statuses as a 
factor, a major point of contention when the question of leaving civil service was last raised in 
2021. The current civil service status of any person employed by the police department on the 
effective date of this article will not be affected. Employees will continue to be protected by the 

10.A.

Page: 744

https://books.google.com/books?id=zGxLAAAAMAAJ&printsec=frontcover&source=gbs_ge_summary_r&cad=0#v=onepage&q&f=false


3

ethics laws, collective bargaining, and anti-discrimination statutes that have rendered the civil 
service system obsolete.

Further Resources:
 G.L. c. 4, § 4B (providing that a statute may be revoked in the same manner as it was 

accepted by a city, town, or municipality)
 May 26, 2009 Annual Town Meeting Combined Reports with Supplements (see Article 

21)
 Select Board Committee on Policing Reforms Summary of Recommendations for the 

Select Board Public Hearing
 November 16, 2021 Special Town Meeting Combined Reports with Supplements (see 

Article 3, filed but not moved)
 Tatum et al. v. Commonwealth of Massachusetts Human Resources Division, Suffolk 

Superior Court c.a. no. 0984CV00576 (Oct. 27, 2022) (Findings of fact and conclusions 
of law regarding inherent bias and disparate impact of exam-based promotions in the civil 
service context)

 Special Legislative Commission to Study and Examine the Civil Service Law

10.A.

Page: 745

https://malegislature.gov/Laws/GeneralLaws/PartI/TitleI/Chapter4/Section4B
https://www.brooklinema.gov/DocumentCenter/View/4521/May-26-2009-Annual-Town-Meeting-Combined-Reports-with-Supplements-PDF
https://www.brooklinema.gov/DocumentCenter/View/24344/Committee-on-Policing-Reforms-Summary-of-Recommendations-to-the-Select-Board
https://www.brooklinema.gov/DocumentCenter/View/27207/Combined-Reports-November-16-2021-STM-with-Supplements-112921
https://www.mass.gov/doc/tatum-et-al-v-human-resources-division-related-superior-court-decision-102722/download
https://malegislature.gov/Commissions/Detail/544/Hearings


OFFICE OF THE SELECT BOARD

MEMORANDUM

TO: Select Board
Advisory Committee

FROM: Melissa Goff, Deputy Town Administrator

RE: Summary of budget adjustments since Financial Plan

DATE: 4/23/24
________________________________________________________________________

The following adjustments are recommended prior to a final vote on the FY25 budget:

Police MOA – Article 2:
The Town has been in active collective bargaining discussions with the Police union 
during the development of the FY25 budget.  The current MOA approved by the Select 
Board is $224,810 higher than what was included in the collective bargaining reserve for 
FY25, which has necessitated additional reductions to those proposed in the Financial 
Plan.  Both the Board and the Police Chief reviewed these reductions prior to the 
approval of the MOA.  Since the agreement is above the parameters established for 
collective bargaining, the recommendation is to utilize anticipated salary savings from the 
vacancies in the Department as the primary source of funding.  Reduced funding will 
compel the department to operate with less flexibility than in years past, but the move 
away from civil service is beneficial enough to warrant implementing these reductions.  
The positions will be held open with the goal of restoring to full funding for them in 
future years as staffing levels improve.  Other reductions are recommended to lessen the 
immediate impact on the Police budget.  The following adjustments are recommended 
prior to a final vote on the FY25 budget:

FY25 Financial 
Plan

FY25 
Adjusted

Variance

9 Planning & CD                  
1,611,850 

        
1,608,850 

           
(3,000)

10 Police                
19,350,218 

      
19,167,445 

       
(182,773)

11 Fire                
19,148,746 

      
19,144,688 

           
(4,058)

12 Building                
12,271,738 

      
12,261,034 

         
(10,704)

13 Public Works                
18,826,654 

      
18,813,556 

         
(13,098)

15 Health and Human 
Services

                 
1,568,675 

        
1,558,622 

         
(10,053)

10.A.

Page: 746



2

18 Recreation                  
1,208,254 

        
1,207,130 

           
(1,124)

20 Collective Bargaining - 
Town

                 
2,700,584 

        
2,925,394 

        
224,810 

TOTAL                
76,686,719 

      
76,686,719 

                   
-   

Debt and Interest
With the completion of the Town’s recent bond sale, some adjustments are needed for the 
debt and interest portion of the budget.  The Town ended up borrowing $1.2M more for 
the Fire Stations project than what was anticipated in the Financial Plan.  This increased 
the debt service budget by $85,464, and provides a corresponding adjustment to the 
revenue estimate from property taxes.  There is no impact on the operating budget as a 
result of these changes.  

The new budget detail can be found below:

FY25 
Financial 

Plan

FY25 
Adjusted

Variance

34 a. Funded Debt - Principal               
21,897,817 

        
22,172,506 

         
274,689 

34 b. Funded Debt - Interest               
14,844,524 

        
14,655,299 

       
(189,225)

34 c. Bond Anticipation Notes                    
100,000 

             
100,000 

                    
-   

34 d. Abatement Interest and Refunds                       
60,000 

               
60,000 

                    
-   

DEBT SERVICE TOTAL               
36,902,341 

        
36,987,805 

           
85,464 

Group Health
As described in my 3/18/24 memo, the following adjustments are recommended due to 
confirmation of final Group Insurance Commission (GIC) rates and a recommendation 
from the Select Board on Retiree Group Health Trust Fund (OPEB) funding:

FY25 
Financial Plan

FY25 
Adjusted

Variance

20 Collective Bargaining - Town                 
3,002,030 

          
3,158,103 

           
156,073 

21 Schools             
136,413,421 

     
136,638,226 

           
224,805 

23 b. Group Health               
38,414,088 

        
38,033,210 

         
(380,878)

23 c. Retiree Group Health Trust Fund 
(OPEB's)

                
5,931,980 

          
5,431,980 

         
(500,000)

10.A.

Page: 747



3

26 Stabilization Fund                 
2,000,000 

          
2,500,000 

           
500,000 

TOTAL             
185,761,518 

     
185,761,518 

                      
-   

State Aid
The House Ways & Means budget provides an additional $354,766 in local aid for 
Brookline.  Given the budget pressures facing the Schools, we are recommending moving 
to this version of the budget with respect to projected State Aid revenue.   The 
recommendation for the Town side is that the  Collective Bargaining Reserve utilize this 
additional revenue, given the pressure coming from the other unions in reaction to the 
settled Police contract.  

 FY25 
Financial Plan 

 FY25 GIC 
Adjusted 

 Addl. 
State Aid 

 Variance 
from GIC 
adjustment 

20 Collective Bargaining - 
Town

                 
3,002,030 

          
3,158,103 

      
3,303,476 

             
145,373 

21 Schools              
136,413,421 

     
136,638,226 

  
136,847,619 

             
209,393 

TOTAL              
139,415,451 

     
139,796,329 

  
140,151,095 

             
354,766 

The attached budget tables reflect all of the changes listed above.  I will be working on 
adding a column to show the Advisory Committee’s changes, based on their departmental 
budget reviews.  

10.A.

Page: 748



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-1

__________
ARTICLE 10

_______________
TENTH ARTICLE
Submitted by:  Advisory Committee

To see if the Town will:

A.) Fiscal Year 2025 Budget

Appropriate the sums requested or proposed by the Select Board or by any other officer, 
board or committee, or any other sum or sums, for the fiscal year 2025 budget; without 
limiting the foregoing, appropriate the sums necessary for all town expenses, including the 
snow and ice budget, debt and interest, and operating expenses; fix the salaries of all elected 
officers as provided for in General Laws, Chapter 41, Section 108; authorize the leasing, 
leasing with an option to purchase or installment purchase of equipment; appropriate to or 
from a stabilization fund  as provided for in General Laws Chapter 40, Section 5B; Chapter 
44, Section 44B; authorize the continuation of all revolving funds in accordance with General 
Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E½ and all Enterprise Funds in accordance with General Laws, 
Chapter 44, Section 53F½; allocate available free cash; provide for a reserve fund; and 
establish the requirements for transfers among appropriations, interfund transfers, transfers 
for the purposes of salary adjustments, filling vacant positions and budgetary reporting.

B.) Fiscal Year 2025 Special Appropriations

Appropriate sums of money for the following special purposes:

1. Appropriate $225,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 
Board, for maintenance of town garage floors.

2. Appropriate $500,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 
Board, for the rehabilitation of Town buildings.

3. Appropriate $125,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Chief 
Information Officer, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the 
Select Board, for technology infrastructure.

4. Appropriate $300,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Director 
of Planning and Community Development, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to 
be approved by the Select Board, for the purpose of completing the Town’s Comprehensive 
Plan.

5. Appropriate $325,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Fire 
Chief, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for 
the rehabilitation of Engine #3.

10.A.

Page: 749



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-2

6. Appropriate $250,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Police 
Chief, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for 
equipment and software for the Body Worn and In-Car Camera program.

7. Appropriate $100,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner, for the feasibility study to improve the Public Safety building lobby and 
adjacent areas.

8. Appropriate $350,000, or any other sum, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 
Public Works, for traffic calming.

9. Appropriate $350,000, or any other sum, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 
Public Works, for bike access improvements.

10. Appropriate $400,000, or any other sum, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 
Public Works, for the parking meter replacement program.

11. Appropriate $1,950,000, or any other sum, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to 
be approved by the Select Board, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, for the Hammond Street at Woodland Road Traffic 
Signal And Road Diet Improvement Plan.

12. Appropriate $150,800, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, for Accessible Pedestrian Signals.

13. Appropriate $5,980,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for the rehabilitation of streets.

14. Appropriate $513,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for the rehabilitation of sidewalks.

15. Appropriate $800,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for design work related to the Washington Street 
Rehabilitation and Complete Streets Program.

16. Appropriate $3,000,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for wastewater system improvements.

10.A.

Page: 750



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-3

17. Appropriate $2,780,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for the renovation of Amory Tennis Courts, Parking and 
Halls Pond.

18. Appropriate $95,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, Big Belly compacting waste stations.

19. Appropriate $400,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for the design of the renovation of Griggs Park.

20. Appropriate $3,300,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for improvements at Larz Anderson Park.

21. Appropriate $550,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for improvements to Monmouth Park.

22. Appropriate $300,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for the renovation of playground equipment, fields, and 
fencing.

23. Appropriate $185,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works for the rehabilitation of Town and School grounds.

24. Appropriate $350,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board and the Tree Planting Committee, for the removal and 
replacement of trees.

25. Appropriate $200,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Recreation Director, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the 
Select Board and the Park and Recreation Commission, for tree work at Putterham 
Woods.

26. Appropriate $600,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Recreation Director, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the 
Select Board and the Park and Recreation Commission, for Golf Course Improvements.

27. Appropriate $1,115,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Building Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by 
the Select Board and the Park and Recreation Commission, for the Evelyn Kirrane 
Aquatics Center dehumidification and filter work project.

10.A.

Page: 751



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-4

28. Appropriate $200,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Chief 
Procurement Officer for school furniture upgrades.

29. Appropriate $100,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner for HVAC equipment.

30. Appropriate $100,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner for underground tank removal.

31. Appropriate $90,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner for ADA renovations to Town and School facilities.

32. Appropriate $400,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner for elevator renovations.

33. Appropriate $205,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner for upgrades to energy conservation projects in Town and School facilities.

34. Appropriate $100,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner for upgrades to energy management systems in Town and School facilities.

35. Appropriate $500,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Building Commission, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the 
Select Board and, with respect to School Buildings, by the School Committee, for 
building envelope / fenestration repairs to Town and School facilities.

36. Appropriate $225,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Building Commissioner, for public building fire alarm upgrades.

37. Appropriate $170,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Building Commissioner, for improvements to life safety systems and building security in 
Town and School facilities.

38. Appropriate $4,670,209 or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 
Building Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the 
Select Board and the School Committee, for minor renovations / upgrades to school 
buildings.

39. Appropriate $200,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the School 
Committee, for the modifications to school buildings in response to Individualized 
Education Program (IEP) accommodations.

40. Appropriate $250,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the School 
Superintendent, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the School 
Committee, for a long term capital planning study for school buildings.

10.A.

Page: 752



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-5

41. Appropriate $717,332, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the School 
Superintendent, with any necessary contracts to be approved by the School Committee, for 
the expansion of classroom capacity in various schools.

C.) Funding

And determine whether such appropriations shall be raised by taxation, transferred from 
available funds, borrowed or provided by any combination of the foregoing, and authorize the 
leasing, leasing with an option to purchase, or the installment purchase of any equipment or 
any capital items; and authorize the Select Board, except in the case of the School Department 
Budget, and with regard to the School Department, the School Committee, to apply for, accept 
and expend grants, gifts, reimbursements, and aid from both federal, state, and other sources 
and agencies for any of the purposes noted in this Article, or act on anything relative thereto.

_________________

PETITIONER’S ARTICLE DESCRIPTION
This is the annual appropriations article for FY2025.  Included in this omnibus budget article 
are operating budgets, special appropriations, enterprise funds, revolving funds, and conditions 
of appropriation.  This is the culmination of work that officially began with the publication of 
the Town Administrator’s Financial Plan on February 15th.  The proposed budget has since 
been reviewed by numerous sub-committees of the Advisory Committee, the full Advisory 
Committee, and the Select Board.  The vote ultimately recommended to Town Meeting is 
offered by the Advisory Committee.

_______________

10.A.

Page: 753



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-6

________________________________
SELECT BOARD’S RECOMMENDATION

Article 7 sets the Town’s budget and special appropriations for Fiscal Year (“FY”) 2024. It is 
the most important article taken up at the Annual Town Meeting, as well as the most detailed. 
The Select Board would like to thank the Deputy Town Administrator, Assistant Town 
Administrator for Finance, Finance Director, Department Heads, Superintendent of Schools 
along with his staff, and the School Committee for their tireless efforts in developing the 
FY2024 budget.

Financial Plan and Changes

The Town’s Financial Plan was released on March 7, 2023. Its assumptions were based on the 
Governor’s budget, which was released seven days earlier. Since then, the House has passed 
its own budget, based on its Ways & Means Committee’s bill, H.3900. While that bill included 
a small increase in per-pupil education pay under Chapter 70 for so-called “minimum aid” 
communities like Brookline, it decreased unrestricted general government aid funding. We 
estimate that this rebalancing will result in minimal additional funds becoming available if it 
holds through the remainder of the state budget process. As of the time of this report, the Town-
School Partnership has not met to discuss whether and how this minimal additional funding 
will pass through the community’s traditional revenue split between municipal and educational 
operations. As such, the Select Board’s budget recommendation remains tied to the Governor’s 
budget numbers at this time.

The Financial Plan assumed that overall costs of providing healthcare to employees would 
grow by 8%. When the actual insurance rates came in, they were roughly commensurate with 
that estimate. Importantly, however, there were major changes to virtually all existing plans 
the Town offers its employees due to the merger/creation of numerous providers and plans. 
We will not know the practical impact of these changes until after the close of the open 
enrollment period, which coincides with the deadline for the release of this report.

At the time the Select Board made its budget recommendation, the outcome of the proposed 
operating override ballot question was not known. As such, the Select Board’s 
recommendation includes contingencies for scenarios in which Question 2A (the so-called 
“base override”) either passes or fails to pass. Since the override passed, the Board’s motion 
reflects the recommendations made by the Town Administrator for the override.

One less significant change came in the form of an unexpected reimbursement from the Federal 
Emergency Management Agency (“FEMA”). This reimbursement lowers the amount needed 
to be appropriated to cover FEMA-ineligible expenses, which reduces the amount of Free Cash 
used to address this outstanding account.

Fiscal Snapshot at a Glance

10.A.

Page: 754



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-7

The Town of Brookline continues to move through fiscally uncertain times with prudence and 
confidence, aiming to provide the services its residents want with the limited resources 
available to it. As we adjust to the economically turbulent early period of endemic COVID-19 
and make the most of one-time funding sources that sprung up during the pandemic, we hope 
that FY2024 represents the end of the Town’s “maintenance” and “recovery” periods and the 
beginning of an era focused on a future of long-term sustainable growth and community 
resiliency.

To that end, the Select Board’s proposed FY2024 “no override” budget balanced $404,549,939 
in revenues and expenditures, a 5.2% increase from FY2023. This reflects an unfortunately 
recurring situation in both Brookline and other Massachusetts municipalities that rely 
predominantly on residential income tax receipts for revenue: even in realizing revenue growth 
when compared to last year’s figures, the Town and Schools alike face operational shortfalls 
due to the increases in costs from health care, sanitation, licenses, collective bargaining, our 
MBTA assessment, and the overall inflation-exacerbated costs of goods and services.

Although the new gubernatorial administration committed to an overall statewide increase of 
8.2% in local aid from last year, Brookline was not the primary beneficiary of that additional 
funding. Education payments under Chapter 70 increased for Brookline by only 1.3% from last 
year, while unrestricted general government aid saw only a 2.0% increase (0.4% higher than 
the FY2022 to FY2023 increase). Property tax increases remain capped at 2.5% plus the value 
of any “new growth,” which has also shown reduced results due to the lack of new 
opportunities like 10 Brookline Place and the Hilton Garden Inn that have supported the tax 
base over the past five years. When paired with our increased costs, these figures left the Town 
with an operating shortfall on the town side of $521,176 and a school deficit of $3,701,870.

With the passage of the operating override, an additional $6,556,061 is expected in FY2024 
revenue to cover the above shortfalls and be used for the purposes described in Ballot Question 
2A. The Select Board may consider delaying some restorations in order to cover collective 
bargaining shortfalls, but at present, all restorations are included in the Select Board’s motion. 
Overall, the Select Board’s override priorities are the maintenance of services we already 
provide, restoration of critical services pared back during the pandemic, infrastructure 
investment that can generate savings and transformational change down the line, sustainable 
and equitable smart community growth in a fossil-fuel-free context, and assistance to 
vulnerable and/or chronically underserved community members. For further information 
regarding the override, please visit http://www.brooklinema.gov/override.

Our better-than-average Free Cash revenue came from a one-time tax payment and another 
one-time payment from the issuance of a building permit for a large development structure. 
But as explained in more detail later on in the Financial Plan, Free Cash is a one-time source 
of funding that we allocate according to a careful rubric, and not a reliable source of recurring 
revenue. Regular use of Free Cash to cover operating expenses is not a sustainable financial 
model, especially for a community with a triple-A municipal debt rating. For FY2024, we 
continue to follow the Town’s Free Cash Policy to and provide support to our aggressive plan 
to address the Town’s capital needs in the Capital Improvement Plan (“CIP”), support 
liabilities and financial reserves, and address outstanding COVID expenses that have not been 
reimbursed by FEMA.    

10.A.

Page: 755

http://www.brooklinema.gov/override


May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-8

Regarding the CIP, Town financial policies require at least 7.5% of the prior year net revenue 
be allocated to the annual capital budget. This covers both the cost of pay-as-you-go cash 
projects and the annual debt service on projects that were financed with municipal bonds. Over 
the last few years, our fund balance has allowed additional investment to meet a backlog of 
capital projects. A significant portion of the community’s CIP activities are covered through 
“excluded” debt—that is, debt financed through a temporary property tax increase authorized 
by voters. As discussed in detail in Section VII of the Financial Plan, the current growth of the 
CIP is unsustainable, but we continue to make targeted choices to ensure needed repairs and 
replacements of school and municipal facilities such as parks and playgrounds can happen on 
a timely basis.

Inflation continues to put pressure on our municipal workforce, which is why we recommend 
an across-the-board cost-of-living increase of 3% for FY 2024. It remains a priority of the 
Select Board to attract and retain top talent in Brookline’s unionized and non-unionized 
workforces, which is why the current operating override proposal includes $500,000 to address 
pay disparities between technical staff (such as social workers) and managers here and in 
comparable communities. Restoring the proposed operational cuts with override funds also 
ensures that money in the collective bargaining reserve can be used to fund fair agreements 
with our unionized workforce. 

Through the second round of Brookline’s unique and community-oriented American Rescue 
Plan Act (“ARPA”) allocation process, the Town has also proposed a package of nearly $5M 
in one-time requests, primarily to address public sector capacity issues caused or exacerbated 
by the pandemic in a “green” way while also targeting vulnerable communities impacted by 
COVID-19. This use of one-time money to address serious needs without creating unfunded 
mandates when the ARPA period of performance ends in 2026 limits the potential systemic 
shock of cutting off new initiatives that community members had come to rely on. Most of the 
programs proposed or continued in the Town’s Round 2 ARPA asks are currently slated to 
move forward permanently as line items in the proposed “base” operating override.

The Select Board authorized up to $6M in payments of up to $4,000 in one-time federal ARPA 
funds to current full- and part-time benefits-eligible Town and PSB employees who worked 
40 or more days in person during the first year of the COVID-19 pandemic. We continue to be 
grateful to all municipal employees for their service to Brookline.

We continue to anxiously await the possibility of new local aid initiatives at the State level or 
through the Infrastructure Investment & Jobs Act (“IIJA”) and Inflation Reduction Act. 
Unfortunately, many of the initial IIJA grant initiatives were either targeted to communities of 
a lower income level or required too much of an initial investment for Brookline to seriously 
consider them. We continue to monitor for these and any alternative sources of funding that 
could help defray the costs of a potential override or offer alternative sources of short- and 
long-term benefits for the community.

This fall, as detailed further in the reports for Warrant Article 8, the Community Preservation 
Act Committee will make its first allocations from a pool of over $6,000,000 in additional 
funds for community priorities in the allowable categories of open space, historic preservation, 

10.A.

Page: 756



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-9

community housing, and recreation. All four of these areas provide new opportunities for 
smart, community-driven growth.

Last year, the previous Town Administrator Mel Kleckner noted that the FY2023 budget 
represented the beginning of what he called the “New Normal,” an era in which demands for 
a broader social safety net would be placed on the shoulders of local government. After all, 
this is the aftermath of the traumatic early years of a decade marked by a catastrophic global 
pandemic, runaway climate change, and a long-overdue increased awareness of 
institutionalized violence against people of historically marginalized communities. Larger 
entities proved unable or unwilling to address these societal concerns, and so the expectation 
fell to us in Town Hall. Mr. Kleckner urged the community to think creatively about how to 
fund longer-term transformative service-oriented efforts in the face of systemic operating 
shortfalls.

The abdication of responsibility by federal- and state-level institutions historically responsible 
for earlier versions of the social safety net requires local government to maximize its efficiency 
in evaluating how and when to step into the gap. Massachusetts places a fairly hard cap on how 
much money we can raise from property taxes. In a community as residential as Brookline is, 
we must think strategically about how to invest limited override opportunities into efforts that 
will reduce our reliance on overrides in the future so we can be confident that any expanded 
safety net will not be subject to sudden termination at the ballot box.

The Select Board believes that its budget, as developed by staff based on the Select Board’s 
stated priorities, balances the needs of the community with the limited resources available to 
address them.

Advisory Committee Reconciliation

As of the date of this report, the Advisory Committee has not make a formal motion for the 
Board to deliberate.   Select Board believes it appropriate at this juncture to offer their motion 
on the budget to consider until a balanced budget is presented by the Advisory Committee.  

Accordingly, following a public hearing on the matter, at a meeting held on April 25, 2023, 
the Select Board voted 4-0 to recommend FAVORABLE ACTION on the following motion 
(except as to those portions of the motion that included funding for the Pierce School 
reconstruction project, which the Select Board approved of by a vote of 3-1 (John VanScoyoc 
opposed).

MOVED: To approve the budget for fiscal year 2024 set forth in the attached Tables 
I and II; to appropriate the amounts set forth for such fiscal year in the departments and 
expenditure object classifications within departments, as set forth in Tables I and II, subject to the 
following conditions; to raise all sums so appropriated, unless other funding is provided herein; 
and to establish the following authorizations:

1.) TRANSFERS AMONG APPROPRIATIONS:  Transfers between the total departmental 
appropriations separately set forth in Tables 1 and 2 shall be permitted by vote of Town Meeting 
or as otherwise provided by Massachusetts General Laws Chapter 44, Section 33B(b). Within 

10.A.

Page: 757



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-10

each separate departmental appropriation, expenditures shall be restricted to the expenditure 
object classifications set forth in the recommendation of the Advisory Committee, and voted by 
the Town Meeting, for each department, subject to the following exceptions:

 
A) Expenditures within the appropriation for the School Department shall not be restricted.

B) The following transfers within the appropriations for each department (other than the 
School Department and the Library Department), shall be permitted only with the prior 
written approval of the Select Board and Advisory Committee:

i) Transfers from the appropriation for the capital outlay object classification to any 
other object classification.

ii) Transfers to the appropriation for the personal services object classification from 
any other object classification.

iii)  Any transfer which has the effect of increasing the number of positions or the 
compensation for any position, exclusive of adjustments in wages and benefits 
voted separately by Town Meeting.

v) Transfers within the Department of Public Works from the Parks Division to any 
other purpose.

vi) Transfers within the Department of Public Works from the Snow and Ice budget to 
any other purpose.

C)  Transfers within the Library Department appropriation shall be permitted with the 
approval of the Board of Library Trustees, and written notice of such approval shall 
be submitted promptly to the Advisory Committee, Town Administrator and Town 
Comptroller.

D)   All other transfers within the total appropriation for a particular department shall be 
permitted with the written approval of the Town Administrator, subject to review and 
approval of the Select Board, and upon the condition that written notice of each such 
approval shall be submitted promptly to the Advisory Committee and Town 
Comptroller. 

2.) PROCUREMENT CONTRACTS AND LEASES: The Chief Procurement Officer is 
authorized to lease, or lease with an option to purchase, any equipment or capital item funded 
within the FY2023 budget, and to solicit and award contracts for terms of not more than four 
years, provided that in each instance the longer term is determined to be in the best interest of the 
Town by a vote of the Select Board.

3.) ALLOCATION OF SALARY ADJUSTMENTS: Appropriations for salary and wage 
adjustments (Item #20) shall be transferred by the Town Comptroller to the various affected 

10.A.

Page: 758



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-
11

departments within (60) days from the beginning of the fiscal year, or in the absence of duly 
approved collective bargaining agreements, within (60) days of the approval of the collective 
bargaining agreements by Town Meeting.  The Select Board shall determine the salaries, which 
may include merit adjustments, for employees not included in any collective bargaining 
agreement.

Should a balance remain after the Town Comptroller has made the transfers specified herein, said 
balance shall be transferred by the Town Comptroller to a budget line entitled Personnel Services 
Reserve (Item #19), which shall be used to fund costs incurred over the course of the fiscal year 
pursuant to employee contracts and/or established personnel policies.  The Town Comptroller 
shall include an accounting of all transfers made from this reserve in the Annual Financial Report.

4.) STIPENDS / SALARIES OF ELECTED OFFICIALS: The stipends of members of the 
Select Board shall be at the rate of $4,500 per year for the Chair and at the rate of $3,500 per year 
for each of the other four members.  The annual salary of the Town Clerk shall be at the rate of 
$106,861 effective July 1, 2023, plus any adjustment approved by vote of the Select Board.  The 
Town Clerk shall pay all fees received by the Town Clerk by virtue of their office into the Town 
treasury for Town use.

5.) VACANT POSITIONS:  No appropriation for salaries, wages, or other compensation shall 
be expended for any benefit-eligible position which has become vacant during the fiscal year 
unless the Select Board, at an official meeting, has determined that the filling of the vacancy is 
either essential to the proper operation of the Town or is required by law.   This condition shall 
not apply to appropriations of the School Department.

6.) GOLF ENTERPRISE FUND: The following sums, totaling $2,517,574 shall be 
appropriated into the Golf Enterprise Fund, and may be expended under the direction of the Park 
and Recreation Commission, for the operation of the Golf Course:

Salaries $875,572
Purchase of Services $438,060
Supplies $481,000
Other $9,600
Utilities $137,741
Capital $170,642
Debt Service $119,721
Reserve $25,000

Total Appropriations $2,257,336

Indirect Costs $260,238

Total Costs $2,517,574

10.A.

Page: 759



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-12

Total costs of $2,517,574 to be funded from golf receipts with $260,238 to be reimbursed to the 
General Fund for indirect costs.

7.) WATER AND SEWER ENTERPRISE FUND: The following sums, totaling $32,522,728 
shall be appropriated into the Water and Sewer Enterprise Fund, and may be expended under the 
direction of the Commissioner of Public Works for the Water and Sewer purposes as voted below:

Water Sewer Total
Salaries 2,658,407 622,907 3,281,314
Purchase of Services 163,617 150,000 313,617
Supplies 149,805 27,000 176,805
Other 13,900 6,980 20,880
Utilities 141,379 0 141,379
Capital 543,349 65,000 608,349
Intergovernmental 8,551,815 14,169,817 22,721,632
Debt Service 925,750 1,261,540 2,187,290
Reserve 139,185 180,425 319,610

Total Appropriations 13,287,207 16,483,669 29,770,876

Indirect Costs 2,218,878 532,974 2,751,852

Total Costs 15,506,085 17,016,643 32,522,728

Total costs of $32,522,728 to be funded from water and sewer receipts with $2,751,852 to be 
reimbursed to the General Fund for indirect costs.

8.) REVOLVING FUNDS:  

a.) The Park and Recreation Commission is authorized to maintain and operate, under the 
provisions of General Laws Chapter 44, Section 53E1/2 and Chapter 79 of the Acts 
of 2005, a revolving fund for special recreation programs and events.  All receipts 
from said programs and events shall be credited to the fund.  Annual expenditures 
from the fund shall not exceed $4,600,000.

b.) The Building Commissioner is authorized to maintain and operate, under the 
provisions of General Laws Chapter 44, Section 53E1/2 and Chapter 79 of the Acts 
of 2005, a revolving fund for the repair and maintenance of the Town's rental 
properties, including all those listed in the vote under Article 13 of the Warrant for the 
1999 Annual Town Meeting.  All receipts from said rental properties shall be credited 
to the fund.  Annual expenditures from the fund shall not exceed $225,000.

10.A.

Page: 760



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-
13

c.) The Commissioner of Public Works is authorized to maintain and operate, under the 
provisions of General Laws Chapter 44, Section 53E1/2 and Chapter 79 of the Acts 
of 2005, a revolving fund for the construction and reconstruction, upkeep, 
maintenance, repair and improvement of sidewalks and walkways along public 
streets and ways over, across and through town owned property.  Annual 
expenditures from the fund shall not exceed $100,000.

d.) The Director of Planning and Community Development is authorized to maintain 
and operate, under the provisions of General Laws Chapter 44, Section 53E1/2 and 
Chapter 79 of the Acts of 2005, a revolving fund for the Façade Improvement Loan 
Program.  Annual expenditures from the fund shall not exceed $30,000.

e.) The Library Director is authorized to maintain and operate, under the provisions of 
General Laws Chapter 44, Section 53E1/2 and Chapter 79 of the Acts of 2005, a 
revolving fund for the Copier Program.  Annual expenditures from the fund shall not 
exceed $30,000.

f.) The School Department is authorized to maintain and operate, under the provisions of 
General Laws Chapter 44, Section 53E1/2 and Chapter 79 of the Acts of 2005, a 
revolving fund for the School bus Program.  Annual expenditures from the fund shall 
not exceed $75,000.

9.) SCHOOLHOUSE MAINTENANCE AND REPAIR:  The sum of $7,635,891 included 
within the Building Department appropriation for school building maintenance, shall be expended 
for School Plant repair and maintenance and not for any other purpose.  The listing of work to be 
accomplished shall be established by the School Department.  The feasibility and prioritization of 
the work to be accomplished under the school plant repair and maintenance budget shall be 
determined by the Superintendent of Schools and the Building Commissioner, or their designees.

10.) SNOW AND ICE BUDGET:  The sum of $457,530, included within the Department of 
Public Works appropriation for snow and ice operations, shall be expended for snow and ice 
operations and not for any other purpose, unless transferred per the provisions of Section 1.B.vi 
of this Article 9.

11.)  INTERFUND TRANSFERS:  In order to fund the appropriations voted for the various 
departments itemized on Table 1, the Town Comptroller is authorized to make the following 
interfund transfers:

 
Cemetery Sales Special Revenue Fund   $    100,000    
[to the General Fund for the Department of Public Works]

Recreation Revolving Fund $460,811
[to the General Fund for benefits reimbursement]

10.A.

Page: 761



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-14

13.)  HOST COMMUNITY FUNDS

Appropriate $683,639 to be expended under the direction of the Town Administrator for 
marijuana mitigation activities, and to meet the appropriation transfer $683,639 from the 
HCA stabilization fund.

14.)  BUDGETARY REPORTING:  The Town Comptroller shall provide the Advisory 
Committee with a report on the budgetary condition of the Town as of September 30, 
December 31, March 31, and June 30, within 45 days of said dates.  This financial report shall 
include a summary of the status of all annual and special appropriations voted in this article; a 
report on the status of all special appropriations voted in prior years which remain open at the 
reporting date; and a summary of the status of all revenues and inter-fund transfers which have 
been estimated to finance the appropriations voted under this article.

15.)  SPECIAL APPROPRIATIONS:  The appropriations set forth as items 36 through 70, 
inclusive, in Table 1 shall be specially appropriated for the following purposes.  In addition, with 
the exception of Items #65 - 70, they shall be transferred from the General Fund to the Revenue-
Financed Capital Fund.

Appropriate sums of money for the following special purposes:

42. Raise and appropriate $1,099,920, to resolve the special revenue account deficit as a 
result of COVID expenses that may not be eligible for reimbursement. 

43. Raise and appropriate $25,000, to be expended under the direction of the Chief 
Procurement Officer for town furniture upgrades.

44. Raise and appropriate $375,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 
Board, for the Brookline Village Library HVAC improvements.

45. Raise and appropriate $900,000, to be expended under the direction of the Police Chief, 
with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for 
upgrades/replacement of the Police and Fire Department’s radio infrastructure.

46. Raise and appropriate $200,000, to be expended under the direction of the Police Chief, 
with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for the 
equipment and of the Body Worn and In-Car Camera program.

10.A.

Page: 762



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-
15

47. Raise and appropriate $500,000, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 
Public Works, for traffic calming.

48. Raise and appropriate $700,000, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 
Public Works, for bike access improvements.

49. Raise and appropriate $75,400, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 
Public Works, for Accessible Pedestrian Signals.

50. Raise and appropriate $4,680,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner 
of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 
Board, for the rehabilitation of streets.

51. Raise and appropriate $500,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner 
of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 
Board, for the rehabilitation of sidewalks.

52. Raise and appropriate $800,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner 
of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 
Board, for design work related to the Washington Street Rehabilitation and Complete 
Streets Program.

53. Raise and appropriate $520,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner 
of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the 
Select Board, for the design of the renovation of Amory Tennis Courts, Parking and Halls 
Pond.

54. Raise and appropriate $350,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner 
of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the 
Select Board, for improvements to Monmouth Park.

55. Raise and appropriate $2,000,000, to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for the renovation of Schick Playground.

56. Raise and appropriate $285,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner 
of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 
Board, for the renovation of playground equipment, fields, and fencing.

57. Raise and appropriate $100,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner 
of Public Works for the rehabilitation of Town and School grounds.

58. Raise and appropriate $300,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner 
of Public Works, with any necessary contracts to be approved by the Select Board and the 
Park and Recreation Commission, for the rehabilitation of tennis courts and basketball 
courts.

10.A.

Page: 763



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-16

59. Raise and appropriate $375,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner 
of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 
Board and the Tree Planting Committee, for the removal and replacement of trees.

60. Appropriate $150,000, to be expended under the direction of the Recreation Director for 
the renovation of the Soule Courtyard, and to meet the appropriation transfer $150,000 
from the recreation revolving fund balance.

61. Raise and appropriate $300,000, to be expended under the direction of the Recreation 
Director, with any necessary contracts to be approved by the Select Board and the Park and 
Recreation Commission, for tree work at Putterham Woods.

62. Raise and appropriate $25,000, to be expended under the direction of the Chief 
Procurement Officer for school furniture upgrades.

63. Raise and appropriate $200,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner for HVAC equipment.

64. Raise and appropriate $90,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner for ADA renovations to Town and School facilities.

65. Raise and appropriate $250,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner for elevator renovations.

66. Raise and appropriate $130,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner for upgrades to energy management systems in Town and School facilities.

67. Raise and appropriate $125,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner, for public building fire alarm upgrades.

68. Raise and appropriate $170,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner, for improvements to life safety systems and building security in Town and 
School facilities.

69. Raise and appropriate $1,000,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 
Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the School 
Committee, for minor renovations / upgrades to school buildings.

70. Raise and appropriate $2,026,982, to be expended under the direction of the School 
Superintendent, with any necessary contracts to be approved by the School Committee, for 
the expansion of classroom capacity in various schools.

71. Raise and appropriate $600,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of 
the Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for storm water improvements and to meet the appropriation, 
authorize the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, to borrow $600,000 under 
General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 8(5), as amended, or pursuant to any other enabling 

10.A.

Page: 764



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-
17

authority; and authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept, receive and expend grants, 
aid, reimbursements, loans, and all other forms of funding and financial assistance from 
both state and federal sources and agencies for such purpose.  

72. Raise and appropriate $2,000,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of 
the Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for water system improvements and to meet the 
appropriation, authorize the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, to borrow 
$2,000,000 under General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 8(5), as amended, or pursuant to any 
other enabling authority; and authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept, receive and 
expend grants, aid, reimbursements, loans, and all other forms of funding and financial 
assistance from both state and federal sources and agencies for such purpose.  

73. Raise and appropriate $3,000,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of 
the Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for wastewater system improvements and to meet the 
appropriation, authorize the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, to borrow 
$3,000,000 under General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 7(1), as amended, or pursuant to any 
other enabling authority; and authorize the Select Board to apply for, accept, receive and 
expend grants, aid, reimbursements, loans, and all other forms of funding and financial 
assistance from both state and federal sources and agencies for such purpose.

74.  To raise and appropriate $275,000 to be expended under the direction of the 
Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 
approved by the Select Board, for improvements at Robinson Playground; and to meet 
the appropriation, authorize the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, to 
borrow $275,000 under General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 7(1), as amended, or 
pursuant to any other enabling authority; and authorize the Select Board to apply for, 
accept, receive and expend grants, aid, reimbursements, loans, and all other forms of 
funding and financial assistance from both state and federal sources and agencies for 
such purpose; and to rescind a like amount voted at the November 15, 2022 Special 
Town Meeting under Article 1, Item 4, which item was inadvertently omitted from the 
warrant for such meeting.

75. To raise and appropriate $355,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction 
of the Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to 
be approved by the Select Board, for improvements at Murphy Playground, and to meet 
the appropriation, authorize the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select Board, to 
borrow $355,000 under General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 7(1), as amended, or 
pursuant to any other enabling authority; and authorize the Select Board to apply for, 
accept, receive and expend grants, aid, reimbursements, loans, and all other forms of 
funding and financial assistance from both state and federal sources and agencies for 
such purpose and to rescind a like amount voted at the November 15, 2022 Special 
Town Meeting under Article 1, Item 5, which item was inadvertently omitted from the 
warrant for such meeting

76. Appropriate Two Hundred Nine Million Nine Hundred Fifteen Thousand Nine Hundred 
Fifty-Eight Dollars ($209,915,958) to pay costs of constructing a new PreK-8 School 

10.A.

Page: 765



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-18

which includes renovations/addition to the existing historic Pierce School and other site 
improvements including reconstruction and repair of the Town Hall and Pierce School 
garages which are beneath the new school and the Town Park across School Street, 
including the payment of all costs related to designing the new school project, equipping 
and furnishing the school, site improvements, and all other costs incidental and related 
thereto (the “Project”), which new school facility shall have an anticipated useful life as an 
educational facility for the instruction of school children of at least 50 years, and for which 
the Town may be eligible for a grant from the Massachusetts School Building Authority 
(the “MSBA”), said amount to be expended under the direction of the Town of Brookline 
Select Board; that to meet this appropriation the Treasurer, with the approval of the Select 
Board, is authorized to borrow said amount pursuant to G.L. c.44, §7(1) or G.L. c.70B, or 
pursuant to any other enabling authority, and to issue bonds or notes of the Town therefor; 
that the Town acknowledges that the MSBA’s grant program is a non-entitlement, 
discretionary program based on need, as determined by the MSBA, and any project costs 
the Town incurs in excess of any grant approved by and received from the MSBA shall be 
the sole responsibility of the Town; that any grant that the Town may receive from the 
MSBA for the Project shall not exceed the lesser of (1) thirty-five and fifty-five hundredths 
percent (35.55%) of eligible, approved project costs, as determined by the MSBA, or (2) 
the total maximum grant amount determined by the MSBA; that the amount of the 
borrowing authorized by this vote shall be reduced by any grant amount set forth in and 
received pursuant to the Project Funding Agreement that may be executed between the 
Town and the MSBA; provided, however, that the appropriation and authorization to 
borrow pursuant to this vote shall be contingent upon the Town’s passage of a ballot 
question to exempt the principal and interest payments on such borrowing from the tax 
limitations of G.L. c.59, §21C (Proposition 2 ½). 

16.) FREE CASH:  Appropriate and transfer $20,067,869 from free cash for the following 
purposes:

a.) Operating Budget Reserve Fund (MGL Chapter 40, Section 6) – $767,368;
b.) Liability/Catastrophe Fund (Chapter 66 of the Acts of 1998, as amended) – 

$381,006;
c.) Stabilization Fund (MGL Chapter 40, Section 5B) - $4,500,000
d.) Reduce the tax rate (Special Appropriations) – $14,419,495.

 

XXX

10.A.

Page: 766



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-
19

TOWN OF BROOKLINE’S FISCAL POLICIES
Adopted by the Board of Select Board on June 28, 2011

FREE CASH POLICIES

Free Cash shall not be used for Operating Budget purposes. It shall be utilized in the following 
manner and order:

1. Appropriated Budget Reserve – an amount equivalent to 0.25% of the prior year’s net 
revenue shall be appropriated as part of the Town’s 1% Appropriated Budget Reserve 
Fund, as allowed for under MGL Chapter 40, Section 6 and as described in the Town’s 
Reserve Policies.

2. Unreserved Fund Balance / Stabilization Fund – Free Cash shall be used to maintain 
an Unreserved Fund Balance plus Stabilization Fund in an amount equivalent to no less 
than 10% of revenue, as defined in the Town’s Audited Financial Statements, with a 
goal of 12.5%, as described in the Town’s Reserve Policies.  If the Stabilization Fund 
were drawn down in the immediate prior fiscal year, then an allocation shall be made 
to the Fund in an amount at least equivalent to the draw down of the immediate prior 
fiscal year.

3. Liability / Catastrophe Fund – to the extent necessary, Free Cash shall be used to reach 
the funding target of the Town’s Liability / Catastrophe Fund, as described in the 
Town’s Reserve Policies. 

4. Capital Improvement Program (CIP) – remaining Free Cash shall be dedicated to the 
CIP so that total CIP funding as a percent of the prior year’s net revenue is not less than 
7.5%, to the extent made possible by available levels of Free Cash.

5. Affordable Housing Trust Fund (AHTF) – in order to support the Town’s efforts toward 
creating and maintaining affordable housing, 15% of remaining Free Cash shall be 
appropriated into the AHTF if the unreserved fund balance in the AHTF, as calculated 
in the Town’s financial system, is less than $5 million.

6. Special Use – remaining Free Cash may be used to augment the trust funds related to 
fringe benefits, unfunded liabilities related to employee benefits, including pensions 
and Other Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB’s), and other one-time uses, including 
additional funding for the CIP and AHTF.

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

10.A.

Page: 767



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-20

RESERVE POLICIES

The establishment and maintenance of adequate financial reserves provide the Town of 
Brookline with financial flexibility and security and is recognized as an important factor 
considered by bond rating agencies, the underwriting community and other stakeholders.  The 
Town shall maintain the following general, special, and strategic reserve funds:

 Budget Reserve – to respond to extraordinary and unforeseen financial obligations, an 
annual budget reserve shall be established under the provisions of MGL Chapter 40, 
Section 6.  The funding level shall be an amount equivalent to 1% of the prior year’s 
net revenue, maintained in the manner set out below.  Any unexpended balance at the 
end of the fiscal year must go toward the calculation of free cash; no fund balance is 
maintained.  

o Funding from Property Tax Levy – an amount equivalent to 0.75% of the prior 
year’s net revenue shall be allocated from the Property Tax levy to the 
Appropriated Budget Reserve.

o Funding from Free Cash – an amount equivalent to 0.25% of the prior year’s 
net revenue shall be allocated from Free Cash, per the Town’s Free Cash 
Policies, to the Appropriated Budget Reserve.

 Unreserved Fund Balance / Stabilization Fund – the Town shall maintain an 
Unreserved Fund Balance plus Stabilization Fund in an amount equivalent to no less 
than 10% of revenue, as defined in the Town’s Audited Financial Statements, with a 
goal of 12.5%. If the balance falls below 10% at the end of the fiscal year, then Free 
Cash shall be used to bring the amount up to 10%, as described in the Free Cash Policy, 
as part of the ensuing fiscal year’s budget.  The Stabilization Fund shall be established 
under the provisions of MGL Chapter 40, Section 5B.  

1. The Stabilization Fund may only be used under the following circumstances:
a. to fund capital projects, on a pay-as-you-go basis, when available Free Cash 

drops below $2 million in any year; and/or
b. to support the operating budget when Net Revenue, as defined in the CIP 

policies, increases less than 3% from the prior fiscal year.

2. The level of use of the Stabilization Fund shall be limited to the following:
a. when funding capital projects, on a pay-as-you-go basis under #1a. above, 

no more than $1 million may be drawn down from the fund in any fiscal 
year. The maximum draw down over any three year period shall not exceed 
$2.5 million.

b. when supporting the operating  budget under #1b. above, the amount drawn 
down from the fund shall be equal to the amount necessary to bring the year-
over-year increase in the Town’s prior year net revenue to 3%, or $1 million, 
whichever is less.  The maximum draw down over any three year period 
shall not exceed $2.5 million.

10.A.

Page: 768



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-
21

3. In order to replenish the Stabilization Fund if used, in the year immediately 
following any draw down, an amount at least equivalent to the draw down shall be 
deposited into the fund.  Said funding shall come from Free Cash.

 Liability / Catastrophe Fund – established by Chapter 66 of the Acts of 1998, and 
amended by Chapter 137 of the Acts of 2001, this fund shall be maintained in order to 
protect the community against major facility disaster and/or a substantial negative 
financial impact of litigation.  The uses of and procedures for accessing the fund are 
described in the above referenced special act.  The target fund balance is 1% of the 
prior year’s net revenue and funding shall come from available Free Cash and other 
one-time revenues.

 Overlay Reserve – established per the requirements of MGL Chapter 59, Section 25, 
the Overlay is used as a reserve, under the direction of the Board of Assessors, to fund 
property tax exemptions and abatements resulting from adjustments in valuation.  The 
Board of Select Board shall, at the conclusion of each fiscal year, require the Board of 
Assessors to submit an update of the Overlay reserve for each fiscal year, including, 
but not limited to, the current balances, amounts of potential abatements, and any 
transfers between accounts.  If the balance of any fiscal year overlay exceeds the 
amount of potential abatements, the Board of Select Board may request the Board of 
Assessors to declare those balances surplus, for use in the Town’s Capital Improvement 
Plan (CIP) or for any other one-time expense.

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM (CIP) POLICIES

Planning, budgeting and financing for the replacement, repair and acquisition of capital assets 
is a critical component of the Town of Brookline’s financial system.  Prudent planning and 
funding of its capital infrastructure ensures that the Town can continue to provide quality 
public services in a financially sound manner. The development of a Capital Improvement 
Program (CIP) is the mechanism that the Town uses to identify projects, prioritize funding and 
create a long-term financial plan that can be achieved within the limitations of the Town’s 
budget.  

Definition of a CIP Project

A capital improvement project is any project that improves or adds to the Town's infrastructure, 
has a substantial useful life, and costs $25,000 or more, regardless of funding source.  
Examples of capital projects include the following:

                             .  Construction of new buildings
                             .  Major renovation of or additions to existing buildings
                             .  Land acquisition or major land improvements

10.A.

Page: 769



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-22

                             .  Street reconstruction and resurfacing
                             .  Sanitary sewer and storm drain construction and rehabilitation
                             .  Water system construction and rehabilitation
                             .  Major equipment acquisition and refurbishment
                             .  Planning, feasibility studies, and design for potential capital projects

Evaluation of CIP Projects

The capital improvement program shall include those projects that will preserve and provide, 
in the most efficient manner, the infrastructure necessary to achieve the highest level of public 
services and quality of life possible within the available financial resources.

Only those projects that have gone through the CIP review process shall be included in the 
CIP.  The CIP shall be developed in concert with the operating budget and shall be in 
conformance with the Board's CIP financing policy.  No project, regardless of the funding 
source, shall be included in the CIP unless it meets an identified capital need of the Town and 
is in conformance with this policy.

Capital improvement projects shall be thoroughly evaluated and prioritized using the criteria 
set forth below.  Priority will be given to projects that preserve essential infrastructure.  
Expansion of the capital plan (buildings, facilities, and equipment) must be necessary to meet 
a critical service.  Consideration shall be given to the distributional effects of a project and the 
qualitative impact on services, as well as the level of disruption and inconvenience.

The evaluation criteria shall include the following:

 Eliminates a proven or obvious hazard to public health and safety
 Required by legislation or action of other governmental jurisdictions
 Supports adopted plans, goals, objectives, and policies
 Reduces or stabilizes operating costs
 Prolongs the functional life of a capital asset of the Town by five years or more
 Replaces a clearly obsolete facility or maintains and makes better use of an existing 

facility
 Prevents a substantial reduction in an existing standard of service
 Directly benefits the Town's economic base by increasing property values
 Provides new programs having social, cultural, historic, environmental, economic, or 

aesthetic value
 Utilizes outside financing sources such as grants

CIP Financing Policies

An important commitment is to providing the funds necessary to fully address the Town's 
capital improvement needs in a fiscally prudent manner.  It is recognized that a balance must 
be maintained between operating and capital budgets so as to meet the needs of both to the 
maximum extent possible.

10.A.

Page: 770



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-
23

For the purposes of these policies, the following definitions apply:

 Net Operating Revenue - Gross revenues, less net debt exclusion funds, enterprise (self-
supporting) operations funds, free cash, grants, transfers from other non-recurring non-
general funds, and non-appropriated costs.

 Net Direct Debt (and Debt Service) - Gross costs from local debt, less Prop 2 1/2 debt 
exclusion amounts and amounts from enterprise operations.

 Net Tax-Financed CIP - Gross amount of appropriations for capital improvements from 
current revenues, less amounts for enterprise operations, grants, free cash, transfers, 
and non-recurring special revenue funds.

The capital improvements program shall be prepared and financed in accordance with the 
following policies:

OUTSIDE FUNDING
State and/or federal grant funding shall be pursued and used to finance the capital 
budget wherever possible.

ENTERPRISE OPERATIONS - SELF SUPPORTING
Capital projects for enterprise operations shall be financed from enterprise revenues 
solely.

CIP BUDGET ALLOCATIONS - 6% OF NET REVENUES
Total net direct debt service and net tax-financed CIP shall be maintained at a level 
equivalent to 6% of prior year net operating revenues.          

 TAX FINANCED ALLOCATION - 1.5% OF NET REVENUES
Net tax-financed capital expenditures shall be maintained at a target level 
equivalent to 1.5% of prior year net operating revenues.

 DEBT-FINANCED ALLOCATION - 4.5% OF NET REVENUES
Net direct debt service shall be maintained at a target equivalent to 4.5% of 
prior year net operating revenues.

DEBT MANAGEMENT POLICIES
Debt financing of capital projects shall be utilized in accordance with the following 
policies:

 Debt financing for projects supported by General Fund revenue shall be 
reserved for capital projects and expenditures which either cost in excess of 
$250,000 or have an anticipated life span of five years or more, or are 
expected to prolong the useful life of a capital asset by five years or more.  
For projects supported by Enterprise Fund revenue, debt financing shall be 
reserved for capital projects and expenditures that cost in excess of 
$100,000.

 Bond maturities shall not exceed the anticipated useful life of the capital 

10.A.

Page: 771



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-24

project being financed.  Except for major buildings and water and sewer 
projects, bond maturities shall be limited to no more than ten years.

 Bond maturities shall be maintained so that at least 60% of the outstanding 
net direct debt (principal) shall mature within 10 years.

 Total outstanding general obligation debt shall not exceed 2.5% of the total 
assessed value of property.

 Total outstanding general obligation debt per capita shall not exceed $2,385, 
which reflects $2,000 inflated annually since July 1, 2004.  This amount 
shall continue to be adjusted annually by the consumer price index (CPI) 
for all urban consumers (northeast region all items).

 Total outstanding general obligation debt per capita shall not exceed 6% of 
per capita income, as defined by the Census Bureau of the U.S. Department 
of Commerce.

FREE CASH
After using free cash in accordance with the Town's free cash policy, available free 
cash shall be used to supplement the CIP so that total CIP funding as a percent of the 
prior year’s net revenue is not less than 7.5%, to the extent made possible by levels of 
available free cash. 

----------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

UNFUNDED LIABILITIES POLICY

Defined as “the actuarial calculation of the value of future benefits payable less the net assets 
of the fund at a given balance date”, unfunded liabilities represent a significant financial 
obligation for all levels of government across the country.  In Brookline and other 
Massachusetts municipalities, the two primary unfunded liabilities are for Pensions and Other 
Post-Employment Benefits (OPEB’s).

 Pensions – the Contributory Retirement System is a defined benefit program that is 
governed by Massachusetts General Laws, Ch. 32 and is regulated by the Public 
Employee Retirement Administration Commission (PERAC), a State entity 
responsible for the oversight, guidance, monitoring, and regulation of Massachusetts' 
105 public pension systems. Funding for this system covers the costs of employees who 
are part of the Town's retirement system, which does not include teachers, as their 
pensions are funded by the State.  

In accordance with State law, PERAC regulations and government accounting 
standards, the Town contracts for an actuarial valuation of the retirement system to 
quantify the unfunded liability on a biennial basis.  Under current State law, the Town 
then establishes a funding schedule to fully-fund this liability by 2040.  The Town shall 

10.A.

Page: 772



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-
25

continue to fund this liability in the most fiscally prudent manner, recognizing the fact 
that the adoption of a funding schedule is, by law, the responsibility of the local 
retirement board.

 OPEB’s – these consist primarily of the costs associated with providing health 
insurance for retirees and their spouses.  The Government Accounting Standards Board 
(GASB) issued Statements No. 43 and No. 45 in 2004 to address the OPEB issue.  
GASB 43 required the accrual of liabilities of OPEB generally over the working career 
of plan members rather than the recognition of pay-as-you-go contributions, while 
GASB 45 required the accrual of the OPEB expense over the same period of time.  The 
reporting requirements of GASB 43 and 45 include disclosures and schedules providing 
actuarially determined values related to the funded status of the OPEB.  This requires 
that the accrued liabilities be determined by a qualified actuary using acceptable 
actuarial methods.

While there is currently no legal requirement to fund OPEB’s, the Town shall continue 
to follow its plan to move toward fully-funding the Annual Required Contribution 
(ARC), ultimately developing a funding schedule that fully-funds OPEB’s according 
to a schedule similar to the pension funding schedule.  This plan should continue to 
include annual increases in the portion of the appropriation supported by General Fund 
revenues.  It should also include using the “run-off” from the pension system once that 
system is fully-funded.  In order to determine the funding schedule, the Town shall 
continue its current practice of having an independent actuary prepare biennial 
valuations, which is in compliance with GASB’s requirement.

10.A.

Page: 773



May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting
10-26

________________________________________
ADVISORY COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDATION

A report and recommendation under Article 7 will be included in the supplement.  

10.A.

Page: 774



OFFICE OF THE SELECT BOARD

MEMORANDUM

TO: Select Board
Advisory Committee

FROM: Melissa Goff, Deputy Town Administrator

RE: Summary of budget adjustments since Financial Plan

DATE: 4/23/24
________________________________________________________________________

The following adjustments are recommended prior to a final vote on the FY25 budget:

Police MOA – Article 2:
The Town has been in active collective bargaining discussions with the Police union 
during the development of the FY25 budget.  The current MOA approved by the Select 
Board is $224,810 higher than what was included in the collective bargaining reserve for 
FY25, which has necessitated additional reductions to those proposed in the Financial 
Plan.  Both the Board and the Police Chief reviewed these reductions prior to the 
approval of the MOA.  Since the agreement is above the parameters established for 
collective bargaining, the recommendation is to utilize anticipated salary savings from the 
vacancies in the Department as the primary source of funding.  Reduced funding will 
compel the department to operate with less flexibility than in years past, but the move 
away from civil service is beneficial enough to warrant implementing these reductions.  
The positions will be held open with the goal of restoring to full funding for them in 
future years as staffing levels improve.  Other reductions are recommended to lessen the 
immediate impact on the Police budget.  The following adjustments are recommended 
prior to a final vote on the FY25 budget:

FY25 Financial 
Plan

FY25 
Adjusted

Variance

9 Planning & CD                  
1,611,850 

        
1,608,850 

           
(3,000)

10 Police                
19,350,218 

      
19,167,445 

       
(182,773)

11 Fire                
19,148,746 

      
19,144,688 

           
(4,058)

12 Building                
12,271,738 

      
12,261,034 

         
(10,704)

13 Public Works                
18,826,654 

      
18,813,556 

         
(13,098)

15 Health and Human 
Services

                 
1,568,675 

        
1,558,622 

         
(10,053)

10.A.

Page: 775



2

18 Recreation                  
1,208,254 

        
1,207,130 

           
(1,124)

20 Collective Bargaining - 
Town

                 
2,700,584 

        
2,925,394 

        
224,810 

TOTAL                
76,686,719 

      
76,686,719 

                   
-   

Debt and Interest
With the completion of the Town’s recent bond sale, some adjustments are needed for the 
debt and interest portion of the budget.  The Town ended up borrowing $1.2M more for 
the Fire Stations project than what was anticipated in the Financial Plan.  This increased 
the debt service budget by $85,464, and provides a corresponding adjustment to the 
revenue estimate from property taxes.  There is no impact on the operating budget as a 
result of these changes.  

The new budget detail can be found below:

FY25 
Financial 

Plan

FY25 
Adjusted

Variance

34 a. Funded Debt - Principal               
21,897,817 

        
22,172,506 

         
274,689 

34 b. Funded Debt - Interest               
14,844,524 

        
14,655,299 

       
(189,225)

34 c. Bond Anticipation Notes                    
100,000 

             
100,000 

                    
-   

34 d. Abatement Interest and Refunds                       
60,000 

               
60,000 

                    
-   

DEBT SERVICE TOTAL               
36,902,341 

        
36,987,805 

           
85,464 

Group Health
As described in my 3/18/24 memo, the following adjustments are recommended due to 
confirmation of final Group Insurance Commission (GIC) rates and a recommendation 
from the Select Board on Retiree Group Health Trust Fund (OPEB) funding:

FY25 
Financial Plan

FY25 
Adjusted

Variance

20 Collective Bargaining - Town                 
3,002,030 

          
3,158,103 

           
156,073 

21 Schools             
136,413,421 

     
136,638,226 

           
224,805 

23 b. Group Health               
38,414,088 

        
38,033,210 

         
(380,878)

23 c. Retiree Group Health Trust Fund 
(OPEB's)

                
5,931,980 

          
5,431,980 

         
(500,000)

10.A.

Page: 776



3

26 Stabilization Fund                 
2,000,000 

          
2,500,000 

           
500,000 

TOTAL             
185,761,518 

     
185,761,518 

                      
-   

State Aid
The House Ways & Means budget provides an additional $354,766 in local aid for 
Brookline.  Given the budget pressures facing the Schools, we are recommending moving 
to this version of the budget with respect to projected State Aid revenue.   The 
recommendation for the Town side is that the  Collective Bargaining Reserve utilize this 
additional revenue, given the pressure coming from the other unions in reaction to the 
settled Police contract.  

 FY25 
Financial Plan 

 FY25 GIC 
Adjusted 

 Addl. 
State Aid 

 Variance 
from GIC 
adjustment 

20 Collective Bargaining - 
Town

                 
3,002,030 

          
3,158,103 

      
3,303,476 

             
145,373 

21 Schools              
136,413,421 

     
136,638,226 

  
136,847,619 

             
209,393 

TOTAL              
139,415,451 

     
139,796,329 

  
140,151,095 

             
354,766 

The attached budget tables reflect all of the changes listed above.  I will be working on 
adding a column to show the Advisory Committee’s changes, based on their departmental 
budget reviews.  

10.A.

Page: 777



5  

 

 

ARTICLE 10 

Submitted by: Advisory Committee 

 

To see if the Town will: 

 

A.) Fiscal Year 2025 Budget 

 

Appropriate the sums requested or proposed by the Select Board or by any other officer, 

board or committee, or any other sum or sums, for the fiscal year 2025 budget; without 

limiting the foregoing, appropriate the sums necessary for all town expenses, including 

the snow and ice budget, debt and interest, and operating expenses; fix the salaries of all 

elected officers as provided for in General Laws, Chapter 41, Section 108; authorize the 

leasing, leasing with an option to purchase or installment purchase of equipment; 

appropriate to or from a stabilization fund as provided for in General Laws Chapter 40, 

Section 5B; Chapter 44, Section 44B; authorize the continuation of all revolving funds in 

accordance with General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53E½ and all Enterprise Funds in 

accordance with General Laws, Chapter 44, Section 53F½; allocate available free cash; 

provide for a reserve fund; and establish the requirements for transfers among 

appropriations, interfund transfers, transfers for the purposes of salary adjustments, filling 

vacant positions and budgetary reporting. 

 

B.) Fiscal Year 2025 Special Appropriations 

 

Appropriate sums of money for the following special purposes: 

 

1.) Appropriate $225,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building Commissioner, 

with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for 

maintenance of town garage floors. 

 

2.) Appropriate $500,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building Commissioner, 

with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for the 

rehabilitation of Town buildings. 

 

3.) Appropriate $125,000, to be expended under the direction of the Chief Information 

Officer, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, 

for technology infrastructure. 

 

4.) Appropriate $400,000 to be expended under the direction of the Director of Planning and 

Community Development, with any necessary contracts over 

$100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for the purpose of completing the Town’s 

Comprehensive Plan. 

 

5.) Appropriate $325,000to be expended under the direction of the Fire Chief, with any 

necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for the 

rehabilitation of Engine #3. 

10.A.

Page: 778



6  

 

 

 

 

6.) Appropriate $250,000, to be expended under the direction of the Police Chief, with any 

necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for equipment 

and software for the Body Worn and In-Car Camera program. 

 

7.) Appropriate $100,000, , to be expended under the direction of the Building 

Commissioner, for the feasibility study to improve the Public Safety building lobby and 

adjacent areas. 

 

8.) Appropriate $350,000, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by 

the Select Board, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of Public 

Works, for traffic calming. 

 

9.) Appropriate $350,000, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by 

the Select Board, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of Public 

Works, for bike access improvements. 

 
10.) Appropriate $400,000, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the 

Select Board, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of Public Works, for 

the parking meter replacement program. 

 
11.) Appropriate $1,950,000, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the 

Select Board, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of Public Works, for 

the Hammond Street at Woodland Road Traffic Signal And Road Diet Improvement Plan. 

 

MISSING TNC APPROPRIATION OF $100,000 

12.)  Appropriate $150,800, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 

Public Works, for Accessible Pedestrian Signals. 

 

13.)  Appropriate $5,980,000, 6,947,688or any other sum, to be expended under the 

direction of the Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over 

$100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for the rehabilitation of streets. 

 

14.)  Appropriate $513,000, 632,521 or any other sum, to be expended under the direction 

of the Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 

approved by the Select Board, for the rehabilitation of sidewalks. 

 

15.)  Appropriate $800,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 

Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 

Board, for design work related to the Washington Street Rehabilitation and Complete 

Streets Program. 

 
16.) Appropriate $3,000,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of Public 

Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board, for 

wastewater system improvements. 

Formatted: Highlight

Formatted: Highlight

10.A.

Page: 779



7  

 
 
 

 
17.) Appropriate $2,780,000, , to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 

Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 

Board, for the renovation of Amory Tennis Courts, Parking and Halls Pond. 

 
18.) Appropriate $95,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 

Public Works, Big Belly compacting waste stations. 

 
19.) Appropriate $400,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 

Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved 

by the Select Board, for the design of the renovation of Griggs Park. 

 

 

20.) Appropriate $3,300,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 

Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 

approved by the Select Board, for improvements at Larz Anderson Park, provided that 

any such funds pertaining to renovations or alterations to Larz Anderson Park or the 

buildings or structures thereon shall not be committed, encumbered or expended until 

such time as the Preservation Commission has been consulted and within 60 days of 

receiving documents, including plans and drawings, has advised the Town of all 

necessary state and federal requirements pertaining to such alterations or renovations and 

has reviewed and made recommendations with respect to such proposed renovations or 

alterations for purposes of preserving the cultural and historical integrity of these 

resources. 

 
21.) Appropriate $550,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 

Commissioner of Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved 

by the Select Board, for improvements to Monmouth Park. 

 

 

22.)  Appropriate $300,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 

Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 

Board, for the renovation of playground equipment, fields, and fencing. 

 

23.)  Appropriate $185,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 

Public Works for the rehabilitation of Town and School grounds. 

 

24.)  Appropriate $550,000, to be expended under the direction of the Commissioner of 

Public Works, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 

Board and the Tree Planting Committee, for the removal and replacement of trees. 

 
25.) Appropriate $200,000, to be expended under the direction of the Recreation Director, 

with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board and the 

Park and Recreation Commission, for tree work at Putterham Woods. 

 
26.) Appropriate $600,000, to be expended under the direction of the Recreation Director, 

with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board and the 

Park and Recreation Commission, for Golf Course Improvements. 

 
27.) Appropriate $1,115,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 

10.A.

Page: 780



8  

Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select 

Board and the Park and Recreation Commission, for the Evelyn Kirrane Aquatics Center 

dehumidification and filter work project. 

10.A.

Page: 781



9  

 

 
28.)  Appropriate $200,000, to be expended under the direction of the Chief Procurement 

Officer for school furniture upgrades, including new cafeteria tables for Brookline High 

School. 

 

29.)  Appropriate $170,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 

Commissioner for HVAC equipment. 

 

30.)  Appropriate $200,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 

Commissioner for underground tank removal. 

 

31.)  Appropriate $100,000to be expended under the direction of the Building 

Commissioner for ADA renovations to Town and School facilities. 

 

32.)  Appropriate $650,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 

Commissioner for elevator renovations. 

 

33.)  Appropriate $410,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building 

Commissioner for upgrades to energy conservation projects in Town and School 

facilities. 

 

34.)  Appropriate $300,000, , to be expended under the direction of the Building 

Commissioner for upgrades to energy management systems in Town and School 

facilities. 

 
35.) Appropriate $500,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building Commission, with 

any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by the Select Board and, with respect 

to School Buildings, by the School Committee, for building envelope 

/ fenestration repairs to Town and School facilities. 

 
36.) Appropriate $225,000, , to be expended under the direction of the Building Commissioner, 

for public building fire alarm upgrades. 

 
37.) Appropriate $180,000, to be expended under the direction of the Building Commissioner, for 

improvements to life safety systems and building security in Town and School facilities. 

 

 

38.)   

• a) Appropriate,$1,128,000 to be expended under the direction of the 

Building Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to 

be approved by the Select Board and the School Committee, for minor 

renovations / upgrades to the Baker School building, as noted in the 

“Revised School Building CIP Allocation FY 25 dated April 12, 2024. 

 

• b) Appropriate $1,430,000 to be expended under the direction of the 

Building Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to 

be approved by the Select Board and the School Committee, for minor 

10.A.

Page: 782



10  

renovations / upgrades to the Lincoln School building (new) as noted in 

the “Revised School Building CIP Allocation FY 25 dated April 12, 2024. 

•  

• c) Appropriate $250,000 to be expended under the direction of the 

Building Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to 

be approved by the Select Board and the School Committee, for minor 

renovations / upgrades to the Hayes School building, as noted in the 

“Revised School Building CIP Allocation FY 25 dated April 12, 2024. 

•  

• d) Appropriate $15,000 to be expended under the direction of the Building 

Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be 

approved by the Select Board and the School Committee, for minor 

renovations / upgrades to the Brookline High School Main Building, as 

noted in the “Revised School Building CIP Allocation FY 25 dated April 

12, 2024. 

 

• e) Appropriate $100,000 to be expended under the direction of the 

Building Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to 

be approved by the Select Board and the School Committee, for minor 

renovations / upgrades to the Lawrence School building, as noted in the 

“Revised School Building CIP Allocation FY 25 dated April 12, 2024. 

•  

• f) Appropriate $785,000 to be expended under the direction of the 

Building Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to 

be approved by the Select Board and the School Committee, for minor 

renovations / upgrades to the Runkle School building, as noted in the 

“Revised School Building CIP Allocation FY 25 dated April 12, 2024. 

•  

• g) Appropriate $180,000 to be expended under the direction of the 

Building Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to 

be approved by the Select Board and the School Committee, for minor 

renovations / upgrades to the first floor (main entryway floor) of the 

Baldwin School building, as noted in the “Revised School Building CIP 

Allocation FY 25 dated April 12, 2024; and provided that any such funds 

pertaining to renovations or alterations to the exterior or interior of 

the Baldwin School or to the Baldwin School Playground not committed, 

encumbered or expended before June 30, 2024 shall not be committed, 

encumbered or expended until such time as (1) the requirements of Article 

5.3 of the Town's General Bylaws with respect to demolition have been 

met, and (2) the Preservation Commission, within 60 days of receiving 

relevant plans and drawings, has reviewed and made recommendations 

regarding any such proposed renovations or alterations for purposes of 

preserving the cultural and historical integrity of these public resources.  

Furthermore, an MOU between the Town and PSB governing the PSB’s 

use of the Baldwin School shall be executed no later than December 31, 

2024, and the occupancy shall terminate by June 30, 2027, unless 

extended after completion of a Town conducted planning study to 

determine the highest and best municipal or school use of the property. 

 

39.)  Appropriate $200,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 

Building Commissioner, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved 

Formatted: Indent: Left:  0.08", Hanging:  0.19", Right: 

1.74", Line spacing:  single,  No bullets or numbering,

Tab stops: Not at  0.27" +  0.46"

10.A.

Page: 783



11  

 

 

by the School Committee, for the modifications to school buildings in response to 

Individualized Education Program (IEP) accommodations. 

 

40.)  Appropriate $250,000, or any other sum, to be expended under the direction of the 

School Superintendent, with any necessary contracts over $100,000 to be approved by 

the School Committee, for a long term capital planning study for school buildings. 

 

41.)  Appropriate $717,332, to be expended under the direction of the School 

Superintendent, to fulfill contractual obligations under the Town of Brookline Amended 

School Space Lease, effective August 1, 2020 and further Amended on   MARCH **, 

2024 with Temple Ohabei Shalom; and under the Town of Brookine Amended School 

Space Lease effective September 1, 2019, and further Amended on June 26, 2020 with 

Temple Emeth, with any future amendments to existing leases to be approved by the 

School Committee and Select Board, for the provision of BEEP classrooms at those two 

locations. 

 

C.) Funding 

 

And determine whether such appropriations shall be raised by taxation, transferred from 

available funds, borrowed or provided by any combination of the foregoing, and authorize 

the leasing, leasing with an option to purchase, or the installment purchase of any equipment 

or any capital items; and authorize the Select Board, except in the case of the School 

Department Budget, and with regard to the School Department, the School Committee, to 

apply for, accept and expend grants, gifts, reimbursements, and aid from both federal, state, 

and other sources and agencies for any of the purposes noted in this Article, or act on 

anything relative thereto. 

 

 

ARTICLE 11 

Submitted by: Community Preservation Act Committee 

 

To see if the Town will vote to make appropriations from the Community Preservation Act 

Fund for eligible community preservation projects; for community preservation reserve 

accounts for historic preservation, open space and recreation, and affordable housing; for 

Community Preservation Act Committee administrative expenses or other eligible expenses 

in fiscal year 2025. 

 

The Community Preservation Act Committee will make recommendations on how the 

appropriations will be allocated from among the list of 15 applications listed below and will 

complete its analysis and review in April, 2024, 

 

 

Title of Application Name of Submitting Organization 

Invasive Species Removal at Hall's Pond Friends of Hall's Pond 

Park & Recreation Open Space Trust Park and Rec Commission/Alexandra Vecchio 

Tree Inventory Park and Rec Commission/Alexandra Vecchio 

Egmont Street Roof Replacement Brookline Housing Authority 

High Street Redevelopment Brookline Housing Authority 

Housing Assistance & Program Support Brookline Community Development Corp. 

10.A.

Page: 784



12  

Boylston St Property Preservation Brookline Community Development Corp. 

Beacon Street Property Preservation Brookline Community Development Corp. 

10.A.

Page: 785



Revised School Building CIP Allocation FY 25 dated April 12, 2024

April 12, 2024
Page 1

Location Project Details FY25 FY26 TOTAL FY25 - FY26 FY27 FY28 FY29 FY30 Total FY 25 - FY 30

$30,000 $33,000 $63,000 $63,000

Baker Paint 10 classrooms $10,000 $5,000 $15,000 $15,000

Refurbish the Staircase by room 202 (the 
stairs used for recess)

$50,000 $50,000 $50,000

Baker Total $90,000 $38,000 $128,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $128,000

Classroom Cabinet Millwork Repairs 2nd 
and 3rd Floor

$50,000 $50,000 $50,000

2nd/3rd Floor Recondition (floors, paint) $600,000 $600,000 $600,000

Library Recondition  (floors, paint, and 
millwork)

$75,000 $75,000 $75,000

Gym Renovation (floors, painting, and 
scoreboard)

$70,000 $70,000 $70,000

Electrical Repairs/Replacements Needed for 
1994 Bldg

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000

Lincoln Replace All Ceiling Tiles in Building $150,000 $150,000 $150,000

Bathroom Renovation ($30k per bathroom) $90,000 $120,000 $210,000 $210,000

Cafeteria Reconditioning  (floors, paint, and 
millwork)

$50,000 $50,000 $50,000

Kitchen Renovation $100,000 $100,000 $100,000

Finish Removing Wallpaper in Basement, 
Paint (about 40% done)

$25,000 $25,000 $25,000

Lincoln Total $1,135,000 $295,000 $1,430,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $1,430,000

Upgrade Main Electric to Building to Install 
Heat Pumps (2)

$250,000 $250,000 $250,000

Replace Wall Mats with New School Name 
(paid from maintenance budget FY 24)

$0 $0

Replace School Name on Front of School 
(paid from maintenance budget FY 24)

$0 $0

Library Carpet Replacement (and library 
movers)

$55,000 $55,000

Auditorium Renovation (floor, paint, seats if 
applicable)

$75,000 $75,000

Hayes Paint (halls, classrooms, offices) $50,000 $60,000 $70,000 $180,000

Bathroom Renovation $105,000 $140,000 $245,000

Replace Window Shades in Classrooms $25,000 $25,000

Hayes Total $250,000 $0 $250,000 $130,000 $180,000 $200,000 $70,000 $830,000

Revised School Building CIP Allocation FY 25 dated April 12, 2004

Remove Carpet, Replace with VCT - 5 rooms

10.A.

Page: 786



Revised School Building CIP Allocation FY 25 dated April 12, 2024

April 12, 2024
Page 2

Replace Door in Café Overflow $15,000 $15,000 $15,000

Extend Lowell Rd Loading Dock Another 10 
ft, Widen Door

$30,000 $30,000

Paint 2/3 of the Interior at 115 Greenough $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $300,000 $1,200,000

Classroom and Hallway Flooring (Est. 
300,000 SF. Main Campus, Greenough 
St.)

$100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $100,000 $400,000

BHS Upgrade HVAC in Wrestling Room, (add 
dehumidification replace entire floor & all 
mats)

$350,000 $350,000

Main Building Install AC in Cafeteria $100,000 $100,000

Bathroom Renovation (new fixtures, 
flooring, etc. for a full renovation)

$350,000 $350,000 $350,000 $1,050,000

Renovate Auto Space for Engineering 
Program

$75,000 $75,000

Schluntz Foyer Upgrade/Reuse  (floor, 
paint, ceiling tiles )

$50,000 $50,000

BHS Total (3)) $0 $15,000 $15,000 $430,000 $1,200,000 $825,000 $800,000 $3,270,000

Replace Carpets in 10 Classrooms $60,000 $60,000 $60,000

Lawrence Repair / Replace Stair Treads, Various 
Stairways

$40,000 $40,000 $40,000

Turn Boys Locker Room Into Small 
Classroom

$250,000 $250,000

Lawrence Total $100,000 $0 $100,000 $250,000 $0 $0 $0 $350,000

Multi Purpose Room (MPR) Curtain/Drapes 
(cords are broken and don't work)

$10,000 $10,000 $10,000

Update Sound Board and Control Panel in 
MPR (4)

$15,000 $15,000 $15,000

Runkle Lighting Not Working in MPR $35,000 $35,000 $35,000

Paint (all classrooms and hallways) (4) $225,000 $225,000 $225,000

Flooring Refresh - where and is this a 
replacement

$500,000 $500,000 $500,000

Runkle Total $60,000 $725,000 $785,000 $0 $0 $0 $0 $785,000

$1,635,000 $1,073,000 $2,708,000 $810,000 $1,380,000 $1,025,000 $870,000 $6,793,000

10.A.

Page: 787



Revised School Building CIP Allocation FY 25 dated April 12, 2024

April 12, 2024
Page 3

Original 
Proposal

April 12 2024 
Update

April 12, 
2024 Update -
FINAL

Upgrade Electrical Service to Meet Code $74,250
$74,250 $74,250

$74,250

Ceiling Work/Replaster Upper Level $20,000
$20,000 $20,000

$20,000

$10,000

Paint Interior $90,000 $90,000 $90,000 $90,000

Update Flooring (excluding bathrooms) - $75,000
$50,000 $25,000

skip downstairs 
bathroom

$75,000

Baldwin HVAC: Heat Pumps (1) - not operable until 
new elec service. 

$100,000
$100,000 $100,000

$100,000

Bathroom Renovation for ADA Compliance $135,000
$135,000 $135,000 skip downstairs bathroom

$135,000

Window Shades - as needed $10,000
$5,000 $5,000

$10,000

Build, Alter or Repair Walls -
$200,000 $50,000 $15,000

assume some 
spent and finish

$200,000

Contingency (10% of other) $71,425 $15,000 $15,000 $71,425

Baldwin Total $775,675 $539,250 $479,250 $0 $0 $0 $785,675

Less FY24 carryover  $       (300,000.00)

New Money Request Baldwin $475,675 $239,250 $180,000 ROUNDED TO

10.A.

Page: 788



The Capital Subcommittee of the Advisory Committee held 10 meetings to review operating 
budgets for the Building, DPW, Water & Sewer and Recreation Departments, as previously 
presented to the AC, and to review the CIP requests from those departments as well as the 
remaining Town departments and the Public Schools of Brookline. Two additional meetings 
were held to discuss general CIP policies and guidelines.  Links to each meeting are found at the 
end of this report. A site visit was made to the Baldwin School by 3 committee members 
accompanied by School and Building Department Staff.

Votes on the CIP Appropriations, Warrant Article 10 (b) subsections 1 -12 and 15 -41, were 
taken at the April 12, 2024 meeting of the Capital Sub-committee.

Committee Members in Attendance on April 12, 2024:  Carol Levin (chair), Harry Friedman, 
Carlos Ridruejo, John Dogget, Pamela Lodish.

Votes for Warrant Article 10(b) subsections 13 – 14 were taken at the April 18, 2024 meeting. 
Committee Members In Attendance on April 18:  Carol Levin (chair), Harry Friedman, Carlos 
Ridruejo, Michael Berger, Pamela Lodish, Alok Somani, and John Dogget.

All meetings were attended by members of the public and the appropriate Town and/or School 
staff including but not limited to:  Melissa Goff, Charles Young, Charles Carey, Dan Bennet, 
Charlie Simmons, Erin Chute, Susan Givens, Karen King, and Sara Gooding.  School Committee 
members Helen Charlupski and Mariah Norbrega were also in attendance.

VOTES on April 12:

ARTICLE 10 (B) 1  Town Garage Floors: 5-0-0 $   225,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 2 Rehabilitation of Town Buildings 5-0-0 $   500,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 3 Technology Infrastructure 5-0-0 $   125,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 4 Comprehensive Plan 5-0-0 $   400,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 5 Fire Department Engine #3 Rehab 5-0-0 $   325,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 6 Body Camera & In-Car Camera 5-0-0 $   250,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 7 Public Safety Lobby Study 5-0-0 $   100,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 8 Traffic Calming 5-0-0 $   350,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 9 Bike Access Improvements 5-0-0 $   350,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 10 Parking Meter Replacement 5-0-0 $   400,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 11 Woodland Road 5-0-0 $1,950,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 12 Accessible Pedestrian Signals 5-0-0 $    150,800

ARTICLE 10 (B) 15 Washington Street Rehabilitation 5-0-0 $   800,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 16 Wastewater System Improvements 5-0-0 $3,000,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 17 Amory Tennis Courts, Parking, Halls Pond 5-0-0 $2,780,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 18:  Big Belly Compacting Stations 5-0-0 $       95,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 19:  Griggs Park Renovation 0-5-0 $    400,000

10.A.

Page: 789



ARTICLE 10 (B) 20: Larz Anderson Improvements 5-0-0 $3,300,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 21: Monmouth Park Improvements 0-5-0 $    500,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 22 Playgrounds, Fields & Fencing 5-0-0 $    300,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 23 Rehabilitation of Town & School Grounds 5-0-0 $     185,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 25 Tree Work at Putterham Woods 5-0-0 $      200,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 26 Golf Course Improvements 5-0-0 $      600,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 27 Pool Dehumidification and Filter 5-0-0 $ 1,115,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 28 School Furniture 5-0-0 $     200,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 29 Town/School HVAC Equipment 5-0-0 $     170,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 30 Town/School Underground Tank Removal 5-0-0 $     200,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 31 Town/School ADA Renovations 5-0-0 $     100,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 32 Town/School Elevator Renovations 5-0-0 $      650,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 33 Town/School Energy Conservation 5-0-0 $      410,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 34 Town/School Energy Management 5 0-0 $      300,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 35 Town/School Building Envelope 5-0-0 $      500,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 36 Town/School Fire Alarm Upgrades 5-0-0 $      225,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 37  Town/School Life Safety & Security 5-0-0 $      180,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 38 

A Baker School 5-0-0 $ 1,128,000
B Lincoln School 5-0-0 $  1,430,000
C Hayes School 5-0-0 $      250,000
D BHS Main Building 5-0-0 $         15,000
E Lawrence School 5-0-0 $      100,000
F Runkle School  5-0-0 $       785,000
G Baldwin School 3-2-0 $       180,000

ARTICLE 10 (B) 39 IEP Accommodations 0-3-2 $       200,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 40 Long-Term Capital Plan, Schools 0-5-0 $       250,000
ARTICLE 10 (B) 41 BEEP Leases 3-2-0 $       717,332

April 18, 2024

Votes:

Article 10 (B) 24) Removal & Replacement of Trees:  6-0-0 $       550,000
Article 10 (B) 13 Street Rehabilitation: 6-0-0 $   6,947,688
Article 10 (B) 14 Sidewalk Rehabilitation 6-0-0 $        632,521

Missing a vote for TNC MITIGATION PROJECTS $       100,000

GENERAL CIP CONCERNS

1)  FUNDING NEEDS VS FUNDING SOURCES

10.A.

Page: 790



“The Top 10 Management Characteristics Of Highly Rated State And Local Borrowers “
Standard & Poors

Number 9. A capital planning process 
A government with a comprehensive assessment of capital and infrastructure 
requirements, including deferred maintenance, will be better positioned to manage 
these requirements over time in the most cost effective way. Neglecting critical capital 
needs may contribute to higher future costs and also impede economic growth and 
endanger future revenue generation. A capital improvement plan indicating both 
funding needs and anticipated funding sources is a useful planning tool for 
determining future borrowing needs. 

A FUNDING SOURCES PLAN
Brookline’s CIP is a funding sources plan, rather than a plan of funding needs.  It shows how 
dollars from multiple funding sources (Property Tax, Free Cash, General Fund Bond, 
State/Federal aid, and others) are distributed or designated among different projects in a given 
fiscal year over a 5-year horizon, and many of the out-year numbers are placeholder funding 
amounts rather than a statement of fund needs. 

The current CIP does not provide information on the timing of multi-year expenditures which 
are appropriated in their entirety in a single year.  A bond, whether inside or outside the levy, 
can be authorized for a specific purpose with the funds appropriated in a specific year, yet 
those funds are expended over multiple years and those out-year expenditures not shown in 
the CIP.   

As of March 12, 2024, there were $260.5 million in available bond financed, capital funds.  All 
but about $10 million of these funds are for the Pierce and the Fire Station projects, yet the Fire 
Station project isn’t even listed in the CIP because it was funded in FY23, and the Pierce project 
will not be listed in the FY26 CIP because it was funded in FY24.   A similar “pre-funding” of 
capital improvement projects funded from general revenues or free cash also occurs for out-
year scheduled projects.  As a result, it is not clear the magnitude of the capital investment 
occurring in a single year or in a single category.

A FUNDING NEEDS PLAN

There are many line items within the current CIP for which detailed multi-year funding needs 
plans do exist, such as the Town/School Building Envelope and the Town/School Building Roof 
Repair Replacement programs.  DPW also has multi-year plans for streets, sidewalks, and parks. 
The Fire Department has plans for vehicle replacements and rehabilitation.  There are other 
components of the Town’s infrastructure for which multi-year replacement plans are also being 
developed, such as parking meters.  What does not exist, however, is a consolidated roll-up of 
all these plans.  There is nothing which lays out the magnitude of funding needs in their totality 
over a planning horizon.

10.A.

Page: 791



THERE EXISTS A GENERAL CONCERN ABOUT VARIABILITY IN THE DEGREE OF FORWARD 
PLANNING AMONG TOWN DEPARTMENTS & THE PSB, THE LEVEL OF CONSISTENCY IN THE 
APPLICATION OF CIP FUNDING CRITERIA, AND THE OPAQUENESS OF FUNDING ALLOCATION 
DECISIONS.

The FY 25 CIP totals $34,141,586 as compared to FY 24 total of $233,715,408.  When removing 
funding for the Pierce School ($209,915,958) the FY 24 number is $23,799,450.  The largest FY 
25 increases proposed by the Town Administrator were in Parks & Playgrounds, $4.055 million; 
Engineering/Highways, $1.223 million, General Government, $750,000; and School, $4.0 million 
(exclusive of the Pierce project.) 

DISCUSSION
In general, the Capital Subcommittee concurred with the CIP recommendations submitted by 
the Town Administrator and were satisfied with each Department’s explanation of need.   
However, the Subcommittee was surprised to learn that due to the FY 25 budget’s strong free 
cash number and approximately $3.0 million in funds being released from the Overlay account, 
certain CIP categories were receiving funding for work occurring in future years.  There was 
considerable discussion over which CIP categories were and should be the beneficiaries of this 
pre-funding, and there was a particular focus on the SCHOOLS subcategory. That category 
includes work both exclusively for the benefit of the PSB and line items which are for both 
Town and School facilities.

The proposed FY25 CIP included approximately $4.7 million for “School Rehab,” also referred to 
as the “mini-CIP” which in recent years has been budgeted at $1.0. The mini-CIP is historically 
used for painting, re-flooring, and refurbishment exclusively of the schools.  These three items 
should be occurring on a regular schedule in accordance with a plan, similar to the plans for 
roofs and building envelopes.  

In the FY 25 CIP, the “School Rehab” line proposal was increased to fund what has been 
characterized as “deferred maintenance” work that is scheduled to be done over the next three 
fiscal years in School buildings. As recently as FY 23 the PSB was reporting “deferred 
maintenance” at $15 million.  The PSB, after scrubbing the deferred maintenance list of items 
which were completed, not well documented, inappropriately classified or funded elsewhere, 
as well as the removal of the Driscoll ($1.4 million) and Pierce Schools ($3.4 million), presented 
a revised “deferred maintenance list” of approximately $6.8 million through FY 30. It is not 
known what portion of this $6.8 million represents true “deferred maintenance” versus 
appropriately scheduled future painting, flooring and other periodic maintenance work.

The Capital Subcommittee has reviewed each of the proposed projects and schedules.  With the 
exception of the Baldwin School, it has voted to fund in full the School Building Rehab Requests 
for FY 25 and FY 26.  It did not approve funds for work proposed in FY27. For the Baker, Lincoln 
and Runkle Schools this will complete the funding of all planned work.  For the Lawrence and 

10.A.

Page: 792



Hayes Schools this will leave unfunded work scheduled for FY 27 – FY 30 in the amounts of 
$250,000 and $580,000 respectively, and for BHS $3.255 million. 

The Subcommittee is very concerned by PSB plans for the Baldwin School and it is not 
supportive of the initial CIP request.  The PSB intends to move some of the administrative staff 
vacating 2 Clark Road to this location.
 
The Subcommittee’s concerns include:

 $300,000 in “surplus” funds from the FY24 CIP which were intended for specific work at 
the Lincoln School but which came in under budget, are instead being used to prepare 
the Baldwin School for occupancy.  These funds should have been used for additional 
items at the Lincoln School.

 The “mini-CIP” funds from the FY24 CIP were not intended for improvements for a new 
space use.

 The Baldwin School is a vacant Town asset.  Determination of its next use should have 
been via a structured process.

 The Baldwin School is a historic structure and is subject to oversight by the Preservation 
Commission. This was not obtained, and some of the work which has been completed 
both to the exterior and interior would likely not have been approved.

 The PSB is seeking an additional $486,000 in new FY25 CIP funds to complete the 
improvements.

 Most of the work at the Baldwin School required for the PSB occupancy has been 
completed, though full funding for the project was not yet available.

The subcommittee voted on April 12, 2024, by a vote of 3-2-0, to approve a reduced 
appropriation for the Baldwin School of $180,000.  This amount, along with the $300,000 from 
the FY24 CIP will permit completion of the minimal improvements necessary for occupancy of 
the first floor of the Baldwin School and an upgrade of the electrical service to the school, 
which is necessary for the electrification of the property regardless of its occupant.

The appropriation is conditioned upon oversight by the Preservation Commission, a 
requirement for an MOU between the Town and PSB governing the PSB occupancy, and a term 
limit of June 30, 2027 for the PSB occupancy, unless extended after a Town planning study to 
determine the property’s best use.  Reasons for the “no” votes include:

 A belief the PSB must not be rewarded for circumventing rules.
 The need for consistency of consequences between private and public property owners.
 Fears that absent a negative consequence, this behavior of the PSB will continue.

The Capital Subcommittee, desiring to prevent the future re-direction of appropriated CIP funds 
to projects which were not approved (i.e. Baldwin using Lincoln School funds), and in keeping 
with the project specific nature of most of the CIP appropriations, voted separate CIP 

10.A.

Page: 793



appropriations for each school on April 12, 2024, by votes of 5 -0-0 (with the exception of the 
Baldwin School as noted above), as follows:

The cumulative result of these decisions is a reduction of the School Rehab request from $4.7 
million to $2.888 million as detailed above. 

There should not be concern about this limiting of the ability to move funds among different 
school projects. 

 Project specific appropriations are the norm within the CIP.
 Most school CIP work occurs during the summer break, with occasional work during 

other vacation periods. Since the appropriations are for 2 years of scheduled projects, if 
needed funds at a specific school can be accelerated for FY 25 projects occurring in the 
summer of 2024.

 Because of the beforementioned project scheduling, there will be ample opportunity 
for a supplemental CIP request for each school for FY 2026 if funds are insufficient.

 The Building Department historical makes conservative estimates (for example the 
$300,000 in excess funds for the Lincoln School work which occurred in the summer of 
2023).

The Capital Subcommittee also voted on April 12, 2024, against a $250,000 appropriation for a 
PSB Capital Planning study by a vote of 0-5-0.  The reasons include: 1) the concept is only 
vaguely conceived; 2)  much of the forward looking capital planning for the PSB is related to the 
upkeep of the current facilities and is done by the Building department; 3) the recent PSB 
demographic projection studies upon which long range capital plans would be based have a 
high degree of uncertainty beyond five years;  and 4) the PSB does not currently have staff to 
run a project looking at longer term requirements.

The Capital Subcommittee also voted on April 12, 2024, against a $200,000 appropriation to 
fund building modifications made in response to Individualized Education Programs (IEP) by a 
vote of 0-5-0.  This is a new line item in the CIP.  Historically all IEP accommodations were made 
from other operating funds.  These modifications to the building are specific to an individual 
student and may require restoration to the original building conditions when the student leaves 

10.A.

Page: 794



the school.  In addition, modifications to a handicap bathroom to accommodate a specific 
student, have, in some instances, rendered the bathroom non-handicap accessible.  The 
subcommittee voted unanimously (0-5-0) to not fund this item.

CIP RE-ALLOCATION

As a result of the reductions in the School Rehab, the School Capital Plan and the IEP 
Accommodation appropriations, the Capital Subcommittee was able to re-allocate $2,232,209 
to other existing CIP line items for which there is certainty of future need. The details of the 
reallocation can be found on the accompanying tables but fall into four categories:  other 
Town/School Building uses, $845,000; Streets and Sidewalks, $1,087,209, Tree Removal and 
Replacement $200,000; and the Comprehensive Plan, $100,000, which is a known FY26 
obligation.  The Subcommittee understands, as should the Advisory Committee, that not all 
these funds will be expended in FY25.  Rather these appropriations will be available for current 
and future years’ projects.

CONDITIONS OF APPROPRIATION

1) Larz Anderson Park (10 (b) 20)

The FY 25 CIP includes $3.3 million for improvements to the Park.  Concerns were raised by a 
member of the subcommittee about whether the Preservation Commission has been properly 
consulted regarding work being done at the Park.  Language was added to the Larz 
Appropriation requiring this consultation, and this conditioned appropriation was voted 
approved by a vote of 5-0-0 on April 12, 2024.

2) Griggs Park (10 (B) 19)) and Monmouth Park (10 (B) 21))

On April 12, the Subcommittee voted against appropriations for these two parks by votes of 0-
5-0.  For both parks, the subcommittee is concerned by a ban of abutters from the Design 
Review Boards for each project.  The no vote was intended as a lever to push for a 
reconsideration of this exclusion before Town Meeting.  Town Counsel joined the 
Subcommittee at its April 18 meeting. Town Counsel stated that 

3) Baldwin School  (10 (B) 38G))
 
In addition to the reduction in the amount of the appropriation, the appropriation also included 
a requirement that all funds not expended or encumbered by June 30, 2024 be subject to a 
review of plans and drawings by the Preservation Commission prior to such encumbrance.  The 
appropriation is further conditioned upon the PSB and Town executing an MOU governing the 
PSB’s occupancy, with an initial termination of June 30, 2027, and a Town study to determine 
the best municipal use of the property.

4) Classroom Capacity Leases – to be renamed BEEP LEASES

10.A.

Page: 795



Long characterized as “excess capacity” this line item is now solely funding two leases for BEEP 
space at Temple Ohabei Shalom and Temple Emeth.  The conditions of appropriation are now 
specific to these two leases.  Two members of the subcommittee voted against the 
appropriation due to long held belief that the lease payments should be in the operating 
budget not the CIP.  The subcommittee was in agreement that the presence of these leases in 
the CIP should be phased out over the next few years.

10.A.

Page: 796



Amount RC
2

6

2

2

2

6

6

GENERAL GOVERNMENT

Larz Anderson Garage 

Town Building Furniture 

Garage Floor Sealants 

Main Library HVAC

 Town Rehab/Upgrade

Technology Infrastructure 

Comprehensive Plan

225,000 

500,000

125,000

300,000

A

A A 

A

225000    

500,000    

125,000   

400,000

General Government Total 1,150,000             1,250,000 100,000                
Engineering/Highway            

Street Rehab - Town                  5,980,000             6,947,688 967,688                
Street Rehab - State                  920,245               920,245 -                        
Sidewalk Repair                  513,000               632,521 119,521                
Parking Lot Rehab
Davis Path Footbridge
Pedestrian Lighting
Washington St. Rehab and Complete Streets                  800,000               800,000 -                        
Washington St. Rehab and Complete Streets - State

Public Works - Engineering/Highway Sub-Total 8,213,245 9,300,454 1,087,209             

3

3

3

Conservation/Open Space

Tree Removal&Repl/Urban Forestry Mgmt Old Burial 

Ground

Walnut Hills Cemetery

350,000 A 550,000 200,000

Public Works - Conser /Open Space Sub-Total 350,000 550,000 200,000

SCHOOL

6 Furniture Upgrades 200,000 A               200,000 -                        
2 HVAC Equipment 100,000 A               170,000 70,000                  
2 Underground tank removal 100,000 A               200,000 100,000                
2 Town/School ADA Renovations 90,000 A               100,000 10,000                  
2 Town/School Elevator Renov. Program 400,000 A               650,000 250,000                
2 Town/School Energy Conservation Projects 205,000 A               410,000 205,000                
2 Town/School Energy Management System 100,000 A               300,000 200,000                
2 Town/School Bldg Envelope/Fenestration Rep 500,000 A               500,000 -                        
2 Town/School Roof Repair/Repl. Program -                        
2 Public Building Fire Alarm upgrades 225,000 A               225,000 -                        
2 Town/School Bldg Security / Life Safety Sys 170,000 A               180,000 10,000                  
2 School Rehab/Upgrade ** 4,670,209 A             2,888,000 (1,782,209)            includes reduced Baldwin
2 Pierce School - Town share -                        
3 Pierce School - State Share -                        
3 IEP Accomodations - School Modifications 200,000 A                      -   (200,000)               
3 Lawrence Cafeteria Expansion - Feasibility Study -                        
3 Long Term Capital Plan (Schools) 250,000 A                      -   (250,000)               
2 Classroom Capacity 717,332 A               717,332 -                        

School Total 7,927,541 6,540,332 (1,387,209)            

CHANGE FROM 
ORIGINAL CIP

TOWN OF BROOKLINE CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROGRAM:  FY2025 ‐ FY2030

CATEGORY CODES (CC):

1 = New Facility Construction

2 = Facility Renovation / Repair

3 = Parks/Open Space/Playgrounds

REVENUE CODES (RC):

A = Property Tax/Free Cash/Overlay Surplus                 D 

= Golf Budget                         G = Utility Bond                     

J = Re-Appropriation of Funds
CC FY2025 Revised FY 2025

10.A.

Page: 797



Total of these 4categories 17,640,786 17,640,786 0

$17,640,786

TOTAL FY 25 CIP 34,141,586$      

School Rehab/Upgrade Total Re-allocation

  Baker $128,000 School Rehab (1,782,209)           

  Lincoln $1,430,000 School Capital Plan (250,000)              

  Hayes $250,000 IEP Accomodations (200,000)              

  BHS $15,000 (2,232,209)           

  Lawrence $100,000 Town/School Uses 845,000               

  Runkle $785,000 Comp Plan 100,000               

  Baldwin $180,000 Tree Removal & Repl. 200,000               

$2,888,000 Streets/Sidewalks 1,087,209            
2,232,209            

10.A.

Page: 798



Submit Date: Feb 26, 2024

First Name Middle
Initial

Last Name

Email Address

Home Address Suite or Apt

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone

Brookline, MA Boards & Commissions
Application Form

Profile

What Precinct do you live in? *

 Precinct 17 

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Small Business Development Committee: Submitted

Interests & Experiences

What type of experience can you offer this Board/Commission?

I operated two small businesses in Coolidge Corner from 2015-2019 called Green Lines
Growers and Brookline Grown. I understand what it takes to hire and manage a staff of
employees. I have also started several other companies in the past few years and can advise
someone going through that process. I’ve also lived in Brookline for 10 years and have seen
the evolution of the business community.

What type of issue would you like to see this Board/Commission address?

I want to see the board fulfill its stated mission of: “ incubate, launch, recruit, and sustain
small businesses in Brookline. Special attention will be paid to minority, women, veteran,
service-disabled veteran, lesbian, gay, bisexual, transgender, and disability-owned
businesses.”

Are you involved in any other Town activities?

Town Meeting Member and co-chair of a school committee sustainability task force.

Do you have time constraints that would limit your ability to attend one to
two meetings a month?

I am currently a stay at home parent but the proposed times should work well.

Christopher S Mutty

Christopher S Mutty Page: 799



Upload a Resume

Date of Birth

Demographics

Ethnicity

 Caucasian/Non-Hispanic 
Gender

 Male 

Mutty_Resume.pdf

06/04/1987

Christopher S Mutty Page: 800

https://brooklinema.granicus.com/boards/admin/answers/8319380/attachment?timestamp=1708958044


Submit Date: Mar 21, 2024

First Name Last Name

Email Address

Home Address

City State Postal Code

Primary Phone

Brookline, MA Boards & Commissions
Application Form

Profile

What Precinct do you live in? *

 Precinct 15 

Which Boards would you like to apply for?

Preservation Commission: Submitted

Interests & Experiences

What type of experience can you offer this Board/Commission?

I am an artist and have raised 2 children here who had serious health problems and have
had to go to extreme lengths to get them the care they needed. We used early intervention,
including BEEP, and utilized IEPs for PT, OT and speech therapies. My children needed many
accommodations to be able to go to school. I am Brazilian and have dual citizenship, as do
my children. I am an environmentalist, we keep bees and grow our own food. I am a curator
for the Brandegee Estate and oversee their preservation issues.

What type of issue would you like to see this Board/Commission address?

Protection of green spaces and impact on wildlife/nature. I am also deeply concerned about
the growing addiction issues and the lack of resources available due to fewer local churches
being amenable to hosting 12 step groups at reasonable rates. Alcoholism and drug
addiction are disabilities that the town has shoved out of sight and is not properly
addressing. I also deeply value town history and the cultural roles Brookline residents have
played and I want to be sure that we do not allow our history to be lost.

Are you involved in any other Town activities?

Yes, I am an alternate Preservation commissioner and TMM P’15.

Arisa Boit

Arisa Boit Page: 801



Upload a Resume

Date of Birth

Do you have time constraints that would limit your ability to attend one to
two meetings a month?

No

Demographics

Ethnicity

 Hispanic 
Gender

 Female 

CV__resume_.pdf

02/20/1972

Arisa Boit Page: 802

https://brooklinema.granicus.com/boards/admin/answers/7876954/attachment?timestamp=1684432208

	Agenda
	3.A. - Question of approving the following meeting minutes:

April 9, 2024
April 16, 2024
	3.B. - Question of approving CO 37 with Gilbane Building Company in the amount of $9,689.00O 37 for various ATPs related to the Driscoll School project
	3.C. - Question of approving amendment # 34 with William Rawn Associates in the amount of $5,000.00 for additional construction admin services for $5,000.00
	3.D. - Question of approving an appropriation transfer request from the Police Department in the amount of $28,554.00:

From Administration leased equip $28,554.00
To: Patrol training $8,437
      Patrol supplies $20,117
	3.E. - Question of approving an appropriation transfer request from the Building Department for $19,000
From: personnel accounts
	3.F. - Question of approving the following CDBG FY2024 Extensions:
	3.G. - Question of accepting scholarships and grants from the Brookline Asian American Family Network and the Office of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Community Relations in the amount of $3,400 from various Brookline Businesses Organizations and Individu
	3.H. - Question of approving the following two (2) requests from the Brookline Commission for the Arts:

Request from the Brookline Commission for the Arts to extend the Poet Laureate term for one year due to Covid interruptions. Expires on 4.30.2025
Reques
	3.I. - Question of approving a petition of NStar Electric Company d/b/a Eversource Energy for permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits
and manholes with the necessary cables therein under the following public way(s):

Westbourne
	3.J. - Question of approving the petition of Verizon New England, Inc. for permission to construct, and a location for, such a line of conduits and manholes with the necessary cables therein under the following public way(s):
	3.K. - Question of approving the application for an alteration of licensed premises for an All Alcohol License for Stoked Pizza Brookline LLC d/b/a Stoked Pizza at 1632 Beacon Street.  Expanding its alcohol license to include outdoor dining
	3.L. - Question of approving the application for an alteration of licensed premises for an All Alcohol License for Bartaco Brookline LLC d/b/a Bartaco at 1634 Beacon Street.  Expanding its alcohol license to include outdoor dining.
	3.M. - Question of approving the application for an alteration of licensed premises for an All Alcohol License for DC Associates LLC d/b/a Garrison House at 6 Harvard Square.  Expanding its alcohol license to include outdoor dining.
	3.N. - Question of approving the application for an alteration of licensed premises for an All Alcohol License for Four S Enterprise, Inc d/b/a BAB at 1374 Beacon Street.  Expanding its alcohol license to include outdoor dining.   

Question of approving th
	3.O. - Question of approving the application for a transfer of an All Alcoholic Beverages License from Taberna De Haro, Inc. d/b/a Taberna De Haro to Weisser, LLC. d/b/a Taberna De Haro at 999 Beacon Street.  Proposed manager will be Kristina Weiss. 

Quest
	3.P. - Question of approving the application for a Food Vendor License Cheryl-Ann’s of Brookline, Inc d/b/a Cheryl-Ann’s at 1010 W. Roxbury Pkwy.  Hours of operation will be Monday – Wednesday 8:00am – 5:00PM, Thursday – Friday 7:00AM – 7:
	3.Q. - Question of approving the application of a Common Victualler for Keneddy Lavour d/b/a Brother Roast Beef & Pizza at 293 Cypress Street.  Hours of operation will be Sunday – Saturday 10:30AM – 10:00PM. Seating will consist of 18 inside seat
	3.R. - Question of approving the application for a change in D/B/A at 123 Fisher Ave From Well Balfour Brookline Tenant LLC d/b/a Well Tower To 123 Fisher Avenue Tenant LLC. d/b/a The Newbury of Brookline.
	3.S. - Question of approving the application for a change in the alternate manager to Jill Cyr as an Assistant Operations Manager of NETA located at 160 Washington St. Brookline, MA.

Question of approving the application for a change in the alternate manag
	3.T. - Question of renewing the Special Outdoor Dining program for Prairie Fire, Hamilton, and Punch Bowl.
*Prairie Fire and Punch Bowl contingent upon Transportation Board approval
	3.V. - Question of approving a Temporary Wine and Malt Beverages, Non-Sales License, for John Heavey (Brookline High School Hall of Fame) to be held on Saturday, April 27, 2024 for Banquet 1:00PM – 4:00PM at Brookline High School.
	5.A. - Review of the FY25 Departmental Budgets for:
	6.A. - Question of approving and executing an easement between 123 Fisher Avenue, Owner, LLC, and the Town of Brookline for a 6,920 sf easement on Fisher Avenue providing for protection and maintenance of 6 trees, and to delegate to the Town Administrator t
	7.A. - Approval of the Language Access Policy as revised by the Office of Diversity, Equity, Inclusion and Community Relations
	8.A. - Ewana Lindo-Smith, Community Development Administrator, will provide an update on the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) recommendations as required by HUD as part of their Annual Action Plan.
	 - Small Business Development

Chris Mutty
	10.A. - Public Hearing, discussion and possible vote on the following Warrant Articles for the May 28, 2024 Annual Town Meeting:

Article 2 Collective Bargaining (HR)
Article 6 - Unpaid Bills (Select Board)
Article 10 - FY25 Budget (Advisory Committee)
Artic
	 - Small Business Development Committee

Preservation - Associate member to full member

		2024-04-11T06:53:37-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com


		2024-04-12T07:48:42-0700
	Digitally verifiable PDF exported from www.docusign.com




